

050416132

HOUSE BILL NO. 2640

Offered January 12, 2005

Prefiled January 12, 2005

A *BILL to amend and reenact §§ 2.2-122, 2.2-604, 2.2-2200, 2.2-3901, 3.1-383, 3.1-411, 3.1-412, 8.01-227.2, 15.2-715, 15.2-2000, 15.2-6301, 16.1-69.35, 16.1-241, 17.1-207, 18.2-246.6, 18.2-308, 19.2-5, 19.2-95, 21-119, 22.1-208.01, 22.1-212.1, 28.2-1205, 30-13, 30-14, 30-28.18, 32.1-229.01, 32.1-325.1:1, 33.1-12, 33.1-320.2, 34-32, 43-35, 43-36, 46.2-728.3, 52-10, 54.1-3401, 55-161, 55-531, 56-123, 56-124, 56-265.10, 56-435, 58.1-3732.4, 59.1-21.10, 59.1-443.1, and 62.1-44.114 of the Code of Virginia; to amend the Code of Virginia by adding in Title 1 a chapter numbered 2.1, containing articles numbered 1 and 2, consisting of sections numbered 1-200 through 1-257, a chapter numbered 3.1, consisting of sections numbered 1-300 through 1-313, a chapter numbered 4, consisting of sections numbered 1-400 through 1-408, and a chapter numbered 5, containing articles numbered 1 and 2, consisting of sections numbered 1-500 through 1-512, and in Title 30 a section numbered 30-15.1:1; and to repeal Chapter 2 (§§ 1-10 through 1-17.2) and Chapter 3 (§§ 1-18 through 1-21) of Title 1, Title 7.1 (§§ 7.1-1 through 7.1-43), and §§ 13.1-1069 and 18.2-5 of the Code of Virginia, relating to revising the laws pertaining to general provisions and boundaries, jurisdiction, and emblems of the Commonwealth; recodification of Titles 1 and 7.1.*

Patrons—Hurt and Landes; Senators: Edwards and Mims

Referred to Committee on Rules

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:

1. That §§ 2.2-122, 2.2-604, 2.2-2200, 2.2-3901, 3.1-383, 3.1-411, 3.1-412, 8.01-227.2, 15.2-715, 15.2-2000, 15.2-6301, 16.1-69.35, 16.1-241, 17.1-207, 18.2-246.6, 18.2-308, 19.2-5, 19.2-95, 21-119, 22.1-208.01, 22.1-212.1, 28.2-1205, 30-13, 30-14, 30-28.18, 32.1-229.01, 32.1-325.1:1, 33.1-12, 33.1-320.2, 34-32, 43-35, 43-36, 46.2-728.3, 52-10, 54.1-3401, 55-161, 55-531, 56-123, 56-124, 56-265.10, 56-435, 58.1-3732.4, 59.1-21.10, 59.1-443.1, and 62.1-44.114 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted and that the Code of Virginia is amended by adding in Title 1 a chapter numbered 2.1, containing articles numbered 1 and 2, consisting of sections numbered 1-200 through 1-257, a chapter numbered 3.1, consisting of sections numbered 1-300 through 1-313, a chapter numbered 4, consisting of sections numbered 1-400 through 1-408, and a chapter numbered 5, containing articles numbered 1 and 2, consisting of section 1-500 through 1-512, and in Title 30 a section numbered 30-15.1:1, as follows:

CHAPTER 2.1.**COMMON LAW AND RULES OF CONSTRUCTION.****Article 1.****Common Law and Acts of Parliament.****§ 1-200. The common law.**

The common law of England, insofar as it is not repugnant to the principles of the Bill of Rights and Constitution of this Commonwealth, shall continue in full force within the same, and be the rule of decision, except as altered by the General Assembly.

§ 1-201. Acts of Parliament.

The right and benefit of all writs, remedial and judicial, given by any statute or act of Parliament, made in aid of the common law prior to the fourth year of the reign of James the First, of a general nature, not local to England, shall still be saved, insofar as the same are consistent with the Bill of Rights and Constitution of this Commonwealth and the Acts of Assembly.

Article 2.**Rules of Construction and Definitions.****§ 1-202. General rule of construction.**

The rules and definitions set forth in this chapter shall be used in the construction of this Code and the acts of the General Assembly, unless the construction would be inconsistent with the manifest intention of the General Assembly.

§ 1-203. Adult.

"Adult" means a person 18 years of age or more.

§ 1-204. Age of majority.

For the purposes of all laws of the Commonwealth including common law, case law, and the acts of the General Assembly, unless an exception is specifically provided in this Code, a person shall be an adult, shall be of full age, and shall reach the age of majority when he becomes 18 years of age.

INTRODUCED

HB2640

59 § 1-205. Bond with surety.

60 "Bond with surety" includes the payment in cash of the full amount of the required bond and, in
61 such case, no surety shall be required.

62 § 1-206. Certified mail equivalent to registered mail.

63 If any mail or notice is required to be sent by registered mail, it shall constitute compliance with this
64 requirement if such mail or notice is sent by certified mail.

65 § 1-207. Child; juvenile; minor; infant.

66 "Child," "juvenile," "minor," "infant," or any combination thereof means a person less than 18 years
67 of age.

68 § 1-208. City.

69 "City" means an independent incorporated community which became a city as provided by law
70 before noon on July 1, 1971, or which has within defined boundaries a population of 5,000 or more and
71 which has become a city as provided by law.

72 § 1-209. Collegial body.

73 "Collegial body" means a governmental entity whose power or authority is vested within its
74 membership.

75 § 1-210. Computation of time.

76 A. When an act of the General Assembly or rule of court requires that an act be performed a
77 prescribed amount of time before a motion or proceeding, the day of such motion or proceeding shall
78 not be counted against the time allowed, but the day on which such act is performed may be counted as
79 part of the time. When an act of the General Assembly or rule of court requires that an act be
80 performed within a prescribed amount of time after any event or judgment, the day on which the event
81 or judgment occurred shall not be counted against the time allowed.

82 B. When the last day for performing an act during the course of a judicial proceeding falls on a
83 Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or any day or part of a day on which the clerk's office is closed as
84 authorized by an act of the General Assembly, the act may be performed on the next day that is not a
85 Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day or part of a day on which the clerk's office is closed as
86 authorized by an act of the General Assembly.

87 C. Any court or proceeding authorized to be adjourned from day to day shall not be required to
88 meet on a Sunday or legal holiday.

89 § 1-211. Constitutional references.

90 Whenever any act of the General Assembly in effect at noon on July 1, 1971, refers to any section,
91 article, or provision of the prior Constitution of Virginia, such reference shall apply to any comparable
92 section, article, or provision of the Constitution of Virginia then in effect unless the construction would
93 be contrary to the legislative intent of the act.

94 § 1-212. Courts of record.

95 "Courts of record" means the Supreme Court of Virginia, the Court of Appeals of Virginia, and the
96 circuit courts.

97 § 1-213. Delegation of duties assigned to political subdivision.

98 The governing body of a political subdivision shall be responsible for any duty or responsibility
99 imposed upon its political subdivision.

100 § 1-214. Effective dates.

101 A. All laws enacted at a regular session of the General Assembly, including laws which are enacted
102 by reason of actions taken during the reconvened session following a regular session, but excluding
103 general appropriation acts, decennial reapportionment acts, and emergency acts, shall take effect on the
104 first day of July following the adjournment of the regular session at which they were enacted, unless a
105 subsequent date is specified.

106 B. All laws enacted at a special session of the General Assembly, including laws which are enacted
107 by reason of actions taken during the reconvened session following a special session, but excluding
108 general appropriations acts, decennial reapportionment acts, and emergency acts, shall take effect on
109 the first day of the fourth month following the month of adjournment of the special session at which they
110 were enacted, unless a subsequent date is specified.

111 C. A general appropriation act shall take effect from its passage, unless another effective date is
112 specified in the act.

113 D. An emergency act shall take effect from its passage, or on a subsequent date if specified in the
114 act, provided that the emergency shall be expressed in the body of the act and that the emergency shall
115 be approved by a four-fifths vote of the members voting in each house of the General Assembly. The
116 name of each member voting and how he voted shall be recorded in the journal.

117 E. A decennial reapportionment act to reapportion the Commonwealth into electoral districts shall
118 take effect immediately.

119 1-215. Ex officio.

120 "Ex officio" means service by virtue of one's office and includes voting privileges unless otherwise

provided.

§ 1-216. Gender.

A word used in the masculine includes the feminine and neuter.

§ 1-217. Headlines of sections.

The headlines of the sections printed in black-face type are intended as mere catchwords to indicate the contents of the sections and do not constitute part of the act of the General Assembly.

§ 1-218. Includes.

"Includes" means includes, but not limited to.

§ 1-219. Land; real estate.

"Land," "lands," or "real estate" includes lands, tenements and hereditaments, and all rights and appurtenances thereto and interests therein, other than a chattel interest.

§ 1-220. Local ordinances incorporating state law by reference.

When counties, cities and towns are empowered to incorporate by reference provisions of the Code, acts of the General Assembly, or state regulations into a local ordinance, any ordinance incorporating by reference provisions of the Code, acts of the General Assembly or state regulations may include future amendments to the provisions of the Code, acts of the General Assembly or state regulations provided such intent is specifically stated in such ordinance.

§ 1-221. Locality.

"Locality" means a county, city, or town as the context may require.

§ 1-222. Majority authority.

Whenever authority is conferred by law to three or more persons, a majority of such persons shall have the power to exercise such authority, unless otherwise provided.

§ 1-223. Month; year.

"Month" means a calendar month and "year" means a calendar year.

§ 1-224. Municipality; incorporated communities; municipal corporation.

"Municipality," "incorporated communities," "municipal corporation," and words or terms of similar import mean cities and towns.

§ 1-225. Nonlegislative citizen member.

"Nonlegislative citizen member" means any natural person who is not a member of the General Assembly of Virginia.

§ 1-226. Notary.

"Notary" means notary public.

§ 1-227. Number.

A word used in the singular includes the plural and a word used in the plural includes the singular.

§ 1-228. Oath.

"Oath" includes affirmation.

§ 1-229. Optional form of county government; effect of change in form.

Whenever any county, city, town, political subdivision, or combination thereof is identified in an act of the General Assembly by reference to its proximity to a county that has adopted an optional form of government provided in Title 15.2, and that county changes its form of government, the act shall continue to apply to such county, city, town, political subdivision, or combination thereof and shall cease to apply only upon the subsequent enactment by the General Assembly of a measure in which such intent clearly is stated.

§ 1-230. Person.

"Person" includes any individual, corporation, partnership, association, cooperative, limited liability company, trust, joint venture, government, political subdivision, or any other legal or commercial entity and any successor, representative, agent, agency, or instrumentality thereof.

§ 1-231. When "person" includes business trust and limited liability company.

Whenever the term "person" is defined to include both "corporation" and "partnership," such term shall also include "business trust and limited liability company."

§ 1-232. Person under disability.

"Person under disability" includes a person less than 18 years of age.

§ 1-233. Personal estate.

"Personal estate" includes chattels real and such other estate as, upon the death of the owner intestate, would devolve upon his personal representative.

§ 1-234. Personal representative.

"Personal representative" includes the executor of a will or the administrator of the estate of a decedent, the administrator of such estate with the will annexed, the administrator of such estate unadministered by a former representative, whether there is a will or not, any person who is under the order of a circuit court to take into his possession the estate of a decedent for administration, and every other curator of a decedent's estate, for or against whom suits may be brought for causes of action that

182 accrued to or against the decedent.

183 § 1-235. Population; inhabitants.

184 "Population" or "inhabitants" means with reference to any county, city, town, political subdivision of
185 the Commonwealth or any combination thereof, the natural persons in such county, city, town, political
186 subdivision or combination as shown by the unadjusted United States decennial census last preceding
187 the time at which any provision dependent upon population is being applied or the time as of which it is
188 being construed. Where two or more political subdivisions are consolidated, the population of the
189 consolidated county or city or other political subdivision shall be the combined population of the
190 consolidating subdivisions, under the last preceding unadjusted United States decennial census.

191 § 1-236. Population classifications.

192 Any act of the General Assembly with a population classification applicable to any county, city,
193 town, or subdivision of the Commonwealth or any combination thereof shall continue to apply to any
194 such body notwithstanding any subsequent change in population and shall apply to any county, city,
195 town, or political subdivision of the Commonwealth or any combination thereof subsequently falling
196 within such population classification. The provisions of this section shall not apply to, or limit, the
197 distribution of any state funds, grants-in-aid, or other allocation from the state treasury, to any county,
198 city, town, or other political subdivision of the Commonwealth.

199 § 1-237. Process.

200 "Process" includes subpoenas in chancery, notices to commence actions at law and process in
201 statutory actions.

202 § 1-238. Reenacted.

203 "Reenacted," when used in the title or enactment of a bill or act of the General Assembly, means
204 that the changes enacted to a section of the Code of Virginia or an act of the General Assembly are in
205 addition to the existing substantive provisions in that section or act, and are effective prospectively
206 unless the bill expressly provides that such changes are effective retroactively on a specified date.

207 The provisions of this section are declaratory of existing public policy and law.

208 § 1-239. Repeal not to affect liabilities; mitigation of punishment.

209 No new act of the General Assembly shall be construed to repeal a former law, as to any offense
210 committed against the former law, or as to any act done, any penalty, forfeiture, or punishment
211 incurred, or any right accrued, or claim arising under the former law, or in any way whatever to affect
212 any such offense or act so committed or done, or any penalty, forfeiture, or punishment so incurred, or
213 any right accrued, or claim arising before the new act of the General Assembly takes effect; except that
214 the proceedings thereafter held shall conform, so far as practicable, to the laws in force at the time of
215 such proceedings; and if any penalty, forfeiture, or punishment be mitigated by any provision of the new
216 act of the General Assembly, such provision may, with the consent of the party affected, be applied to
217 any judgment pronounced after the new act of the General Assembly takes effect.

218 § 1-240. Repeal not to revive former act.

219 When an act of the General Assembly that has repealed another act shall itself be repealed, the
220 previous act shall not be revived without express words to that effect, unless the act repealing it be
221 passed during the same session.

222 § 1-241. Seal.

223 "Seal," when required to be affixed by any court or public office to any paper, includes an
224 impression or print of such official seal made upon the paper. When the seal of any natural person is
225 required, it shall be sufficient for the person to place a mark intended as a seal.

226 § 1-242. Senate Committee on Privileges and Elections.

227 "Senate Committee on Privileges and Elections," whenever the Committee is referred to as an
228 appointing authority, means the Senate Committee designated under the Rules of the Senate to make
229 Senate appointments to study committees and commissions.

230 § 1-243. Severability.

231 The provisions of acts of the General Assembly or the application thereof to any person or
232 circumstances that are held invalid shall not affect the validity of other acts, provisions, or applications
233 that can be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications. The provisions of all acts, except
234 for the title of the act, are severable unless (i) the act specifically provides that its provisions are not
235 severable; or (ii) it is apparent that two or more acts or provisions must operate in accord with one
236 another.

237 § 1-244. Short title citations.

238 Whenever a subtitle, chapter, or article does not have a section or provision establishing or
239 authorizing a short title citation for such subtitle, chapter or article, such subtitle, chapter or article
240 may be cited by its caption. The caption is that word or group of words appearing directly below the
241 numerical designation given the subtitle, chapter or article. Captions are intended as mere catchwords
242 to indicate the contents of the subtitles, chapters, and articles and do not constitute part of the act of
243 the General Assembly.

§ 1-245. State.

"State," when applied to a part of the United States, includes any of the 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Northern Mariana Islands, and the United States Virgin Islands.

§ 1-246. Stricken language or italics.

Stricken language for deletions and italics for additions or changes may be used in legislative drafts, printed bills, enrolled bills, and printed Acts of Assembly, in an attempt to call attention to amendments to existing acts of the General Assembly. The stricken language and italics shall not be construed as evidence of amendments to acts of the General Assembly.

§ 1-247. Summaries of legislation.

Any legislative summary associated with a bill, joint resolution or resolution, including any summary appearing on the face of such legislation, shall not constitute a part of the legislation considered, agreed to, or enacted, and shall not be used to indicate or infer legislative intent.

§ 1-248. Supremacy of federal and state law.

The Constitution and laws of the United States and of the Commonwealth shall be supreme. Any ordinance, resolution, bylaw, rule, regulation, or order of any governing body or any corporation, board, or number of persons shall not be inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the United States or of the Commonwealth.

§ 1-249. Supreme Court.

"Supreme Court" means the Supreme Court of Virginia.

§ 1-250. Swear; sworn.

"Swear" or "sworn" means "affirm" or "affirmed."

§ 1-251. Systems of state highways.

"Systems of state highways" means all systems of highways within the Commonwealth over which the Commonwealth Transportation Board exercises jurisdiction and control. In context, such words shall apply to the extent, but only to the extent, that the Commonwealth Transportation Board exercises such jurisdiction and control.

§ 1-252. Tier-city.

"Tier-city" means an incorporated community within a consolidated county that (i) has within defined boundaries a population of 5,000 or more, (ii) has been designated as a tier-city by the General Assembly, and (iii) has both the powers of a town and such additional powers as may be granted tier-cities by the General Assembly. All references in this Code and the acts of the General Assembly to towns shall be deemed references to tier-cities, except to the extent tier-cities may be specifically excluded or where the context requires otherwise.

§ 1-253. Time zone.

The United States Eastern Standard Time shall be in effect in all parts of the Commonwealth except during the period when the United States Eastern Daylight Time shall be in effect as provided by federal law. This section shall not be construed to be in contravention of federal law, or duly authorized orders of the United States Secretary of Transportation with respect to the time zones of the United States and the application of standard time to interstate commerce and other matters within such zones.

In all laws, statutes, orders, decrees, rules and regulations relating to the time of performance of any act by any officer or agency of the Commonwealth, or any political subdivision thereof, or relating to the time in which any rights shall accrue or determine, or within which any act shall or shall not be performed by any person subject to the jurisdiction of the Commonwealth, and in all public schools, institutions of the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions, and contracts or choses in action made or to be performed in the Commonwealth, it shall be understood and intended that the time applicable thereto or referred to or implied therein shall be the United States Eastern Standard Time, or the United States Eastern Daylight Time, when and during such is in effect.

§ 1-254. Town.

"Town" means any existing town or an incorporated community within one or more counties which became a town before noon, July 1, 1971, as provided by law or which has within defined boundaries a population of 1,000 or more and which has become a town as provided by law.

§ 1-255. United States.

"United States" includes the 50 states, the District of Columbia the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Northern Mariana Islands and the United States Virgin Islands.

§ 1-256. Weights and measurements; metric equivalents.

Words or terms relating to the customary system of weights and measurements include their International System (SI) metric equivalents, but shall not require the posting or publishing of the equivalents along with the customary system of weights and measurements.

§ 1-257. Written; writing; in writing.

"Written," "writing," and "in writing" include any representation of words, letters, symbols, numbers,

305 or figures, whether (i) printed or inscribed on a tangible medium or (ii) stored in an electronic or other
306 medium and retrievable in a perceivable form and whether an electronic signature authorized by
307 Chapter 42.1 (§ 59.1-479 et seq.) of Title 59.1 is or is not affixed.

308 CHAPTER 3.1.

309 BOUNDARIES OF THE COMMONWEALTH.

310 §1-300. Boundaries.

311 The territory and boundaries of the Commonwealth shall be and remain the same as they were after
312 the Constitution of Virginia was adopted on June 29, 1776, except for the territory that constitutes West
313 Virginia and its boundaries, and other boundary adjustments as provided in this chapter.

314 § 1-301. Extent of territory of the Commonwealth after the Constitution of 1776.

315 The authorities in determining the extent of the territory of the Commonwealth after the adoption of
316 the Constitution of 1776 shall consist of:

317 1. The charter of April 10, 1606, granted by James the First, in the fourth year of his reign, that
318 authorized the first plantation at any place upon the coast of the Commonwealth between the
319 thirty-fourth and forty-first degrees of north latitude; and granted the territory from the seat of the
320 plantation (which under this charter was begun at Jamestown), for 50 miles along the coast towards the
321 west and southwest, as the coast lay, and for 50 miles along the coast, towards the east and northeast,
322 or towards the north, as the coast lay, together with all the islands within 100 miles directly over
323 against the seacoast, and all the territory from the same 50 miles every way on the seacoast, directly
324 into the mainland for the space of 100 miles.

325 2. The second charter of James, dated May 23, 1609, in the seventh year of his reign, that granted
326 all the territory from the point of land called Cape or Point Comfort, all along the seacoast to the
327 northward 200 miles, and from the point of Cape Comfort all along the seacoast to the southward 200
328 miles, and all that space and circuit of land lying from the seacoast of the precinct, up into the land,
329 throughout from sea to sea, west and northwest, and also all the islands lying within 100 miles along
330 the coast of both seas of the precinct aforesaid.

331 3. The third charter of James, dated March 12, 1611-12, in the ninth year of his reign, that granted
332 all the islands in any part of the seas within 300 leagues of any territory granted in the former patents.

333 4. The 1763 treaty of peace between Great Britain and France that established a line along the
334 middle of the river Mississippi and became the Commonwealth's western boundary.

335 5. Section 21 of the Constitution of Virginia adopted June 29, 1776, that ceded, released, and
336 confirmed to the people of Maryland, Pennsylvania, North and South Carolina, such parts of the
337 territory of the Commonwealth as were contained within the charters erecting those colonies, with all
338 the rights in those parts that might have been claimed by the Commonwealth, except the free navigation
339 of the Rivers Potomac and Pocomoke, with the property of the Commonwealth shore or strands
340 bordering on either of the rivers, and all improvements thereon; and that at the same time laid down in
341 the section that the western and northern extent of the Commonwealth should in all other respects stand
342 as fixed by the charter of James the First, granted in 1609, and by the treaty of peace between Great
343 Britain and France in 1763, unless by act of the legislature one or more territories should thereafter be
344 laid off, and governments established, westward of the Alleghany mountains.

345 § 1-302. Jurisdiction and ownership of Commonwealth over offshore waters and submerged lands.

346 A. The jurisdiction of the Commonwealth shall extend to and over, and be exercisable with respect
347 to, waters offshore from the coasts of the Commonwealth as follows:

348 1. The marginal sea and the high seas to the extent claimed in the Virginia Constitution of 1776 and
349 not thereafter ceded by action of the General Assembly.

350 2. All submerged lands, including the subsurface thereof, lying under the waters listed in subdivision
351 1 of this subsection.

352 B. The ownership of the waters and submerged lands enumerated or described in subsection A of
353 this section shall be in the Commonwealth unless it shall be, with respect to any given parcel or area,
354 in any other person or entity by virtue of a valid and effective instrument of conveyance or by operation
355 of law.

356 C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit or restrict in any way:

357 1. The jurisdiction of the Commonwealth over any person or with respect to any subject within or
358 without the Commonwealth which jurisdiction is exercisable by reason of citizenship, residence, or for
359 any other reason recognized by law.

360 2. The jurisdiction or ownership of or over any other waters or submerged lands, within or forming
361 part of the boundaries of the Commonwealth. Nor shall anything in this section be construed to impair
362 the exercise of legislative jurisdiction by the United States over any area to which such jurisdiction has
363 been validly ceded by the Commonwealth and that remains in the ownership of the United States.

364 D. Nothing in this section shall alter the geographic area to which any act of the General Assembly
365 applies if the act specifies the area precisely in miles or by some other numerical designation of
366 distance or position. However, nothing in the act or in this section shall be construed as a waiver or

relinquishment of jurisdiction or ownership by the Commonwealth over or in any area to which such jurisdiction or ownership extends by virtue of this section or any other provision or rule of law.

§ 1-303. Cession of territory northwest of Ohio River.

A. The territory northwest of the Ohio River ceded by the Commonwealth shall be and remain the same as provided by:

1. An act of the General Assembly passed on January 2, 1781, that resolved that this Commonwealth would on certain conditions yield for the benefit of the United States all her right to the territory northwest of the Ohio River.

2. An act of the General Assembly passed on December 20, 1783, that authorized the transfer to the United States, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the act of the United States Congress passed on September 13, 1783 and the deed of cession that was made accordingly.

3. An act of the General Assembly passed on December 13, 1788, whereby, after referring to an ordinance for the government of the territory, passed by the United States Congress on July 13, 1787, and reciting a particular article declared in the ordinance to be part of the compact between the original states and the people and states in the territory, the article of compact was ratified and confirmed.

B. Such cession shall be deemed and taken according to the true intent and meaning of the acts and deed, and subject to all the terms and conditions therein expressed.

§ 1-304. Boundary with North Carolina.

The boundary line between the Commonwealth and North Carolina shall be and remain the same as the line run by Fry and Jefferson, and afterwards extended by Walker and Smith and approved on December 7, 1791, by an act of the General Assembly.

§ 1-305. Boundary with North Carolina eastward from low-water mark of Atlantic Ocean.

The boundary line between the Commonwealth and North Carolina eastward from the low-water mark of the Atlantic Ocean shall be and remains the line beginning at the intersection with the low-water mark of the Atlantic Ocean and the existing North Carolina-Virginia boundary line; thence due east to the seaward jurisdictional limit of Virginia; such boundary line to be extended on the true 90 degree bearing as far as a need for further delimitation may arise.

§ 1-306. Boundary with Tennessee.

The boundary line between the Commonwealth and Tennessee shall be and remain the same as established by the Supreme Court of the United States in the case of Tennessee v. Virginia, 190 U.S. 64 (1903), and the compact between the Commonwealth and Tennessee approved on February 9, 1901, by an act of the General Assembly.

§ 1-307. Compact and boundary with Kentucky.

A. Except such part as may constitute the boundary line between West Virginia and the Commonwealth of Kentucky, the boundary between this Commonwealth and the Commonwealth of Kentucky, shall be and remain as the line approved on January 13, 1800, by an act of the General Assembly.

B. The articles set forth in the act of separation of the Commonwealth of Kentucky from this Commonwealth adopted by the General Assembly on December 18, 1789, shall be and remain a solemn compact mutually binding on the Commonwealths of Virginia and Kentucky, and unalterable by either without the consent of the other.

§ 1-308. Boundary with Maryland.

The Black-Jenkins Award, which established the boundary line between the Commonwealth and Maryland and was ratified on March 14, 1878, by an act of the General Assembly shall be and remain obligatory on this Commonwealth and the citizens thereof, and shall be forever observed and kept by the Commonwealth and all of its citizens according to the true intent and meaning of the same, and to that end the faith of the Commonwealth stands pledged.

§ 1-309. Boundary with Maryland eastward from Assateague Island.

The boundary line between the Commonwealth and Maryland eastward from Assateague Island shall be and remain as follows: Beginning at a point on the Maryland-Virginia line located on Assateague Island designated as station "Pope Island Life Saving Station (1907)" defined by latitude 38°01'36.93" and longitude 75°14'47.105"; thence running N 84°05'43.5" E (true) - 1,100.00 feet to station "Atlantic"; thence due east (true) to the Maryland-Virginia jurisdictional limit.

§ 1-310. Boundary with Maryland in upper reaches of Pocomoke sound and lower reaches of Pocomoke River.

A. The boundary line between the Commonwealth and Maryland in the previously undescribed portion of the Maryland-Virginia line in the upper reaches of the Pocomoke sound and lower reaches of the Pocomoke River shall be and remain as follows:

Beginning at a point which is corner D defined by latitude 37°56'28.00" and longitude 75°45'43.56"; which is the last point on the Maryland-Virginia line that was defined by the "joint report of engineers

428 on relocating and remarking Maryland-Virginia boundary line across Tangier and Pocomoke sounds
 429 December 1916'; thence running N 73°34'31.9" E about 17,125.11 feet to corner H a point defined by
 430 latitude 37°57'115.82" and longitude 75°42'18.48"; thence running N 85°39'33.9" E about 3,785.82 feet
 431 to corner J a point defined by latitude 37°57'18.65" and longitude 75°41'31.25"; thence running S
 432 74°16'00.8" E about 7,278.41 feet to corner K a point defined by latitude 37°56'59.13" and longitude
 433 75°40'03.89"; thence running S 61°57'55.7" E about 3,664.73 feet to corner L a point defined by latitude
 434 37°56'42.10" and longitude 75°39'23.51"; thence running N 76°15'24.5" E about 2,263.49 feet to corner
 435 M a point defined by latitude 37°56'47.65" and longitude 75°38'54.85"; thence running N 00°49'51.5" W
 436 about 7,178.56 feet to corner N a point defined by latitude 37°57'58.61" and longitude 75°38'56.15";
 437 thence northeasterly about 3 1/2 miles following the middle thread of the meandering Pocomoke river to
 438 corner P a point defined by latitude 37°59'39.37" and longitude 75°37'26.52", which is at or near the
 439 point of intersection with the Scarborough and Calvert boundary line of May 28, 1668; corners N and P
 440 are connected by a line running N 35°08'33.5" E about 12,465.32 feet; thence N 83°45'59.9" E about
 441 24,156.95 feet to the boundary monument near triangulation station Davis on the Scarborough and
 442 Calvert boundary line of May 28, 1668. Geographic positions are based on 1927 datum.

443 B. No vested right of any individual, partnership or corporation within the area affected by this
 444 section shall in any wise be impaired, restricted or affected thereby. This section shall not be
 445 retrospective in its operation nor shall it in any way affect the rights of any individual, partnership or
 446 corporation in any suit now pending in any of the courts of this Commonwealth or of the United States
 447 wherein such cause of action arose over, or is in any way based upon, the area affected. This section
 448 shall in no wise preclude the Commonwealth from prosecuting any individual, partnership or
 449 corporation for violation of any of the criminal laws of this Commonwealth within such area until this
 450 section shall become effective.

451 § 1-311. *Recession of portion of District of Columbia.*

452 That portion of the District of Columbia which, by an act of the General Assembly, passed December
 453 3, 1789, was ceded to the United States and receded and forever relinquished to this Commonwealth by
 454 an act of Congress approved July 9, 1846, and accepted by the Commonwealth by an act of the General
 455 Assembly adopted on February 3, 1846, shall be and remain reannexed to this Commonwealth and
 456 constitutes a portion thereof, subject to such reservation and provisions respecting the public property of
 457 the United States, as the United States Congress has enacted in its act of recession.

458 § 1-312. *Boundary with District of Columbia.*

459 The boundary line between the Commonwealth and the District of Columbia shall be and remain as
 460 described by the United States Public Law 208, Seventy-Ninth Congress, approved October 31, 1945,
 461 and amended by Chapter 772 of the 1968 Acts of Assembly and Chapter 94 of the 2002 Acts of
 462 Assembly.

463 § 1-313. *Boundary line between Loudoun County, Virginia, and Jefferson County, West Virginia.*

464 A. The boundary line between Loudoun County, Virginia, and Jefferson County, West Virginia shall
 465 be the watershed line of the top of the ridge of the Blue Ridge Mountains as established by the survey
 466 approved by the Commission on April 29, 1997, and recorded in the land books in the courthouses of
 467 Loudoun County, Virginia, and Jefferson County, West Virginia.

468 B. No vested right of any individual, partnership, or corporation within the territory affected by this
 469 act shall in any wise be impaired, restricted, or affected by this act. This act shall not be retrospective
 470 in its operation nor shall it in any way affect the rights of any individual, partnership, or corporation in
 471 any suit now pending in any of the courts of this Commonwealth or of the United States wherein the
 472 cause of action arose over, or is in any way based upon, the territory affected.

473 CHAPTER 4.

474 JURISDICTION OVER LANDS ACQUIRED BY THE UNITED STATES.

475 § 1-400. *Conditional consent given to acquisition of lands by United States; concurrent jurisdiction*
 476 *ceded.*

477 A. On and after July 1, 1981, the conditional consent of the Commonwealth is hereby given in
 478 accordance with clause 17, § 8, Article 1 of the United States Constitution to the acquisition by the
 479 United States, or under its authority, by purchase, lease, condemnation, or otherwise, of any lands in
 480 the Commonwealth, whether under water or not, required for customhouses, post offices, arsenals, forts,
 481 magazines, dockyards, military reserves, or for needful public buildings.

482 B. The acquisition by condemnation of any property within the Commonwealth, not expressly
 483 consented to in subsection A of this section, shall require the prior approval of the General Assembly.

484 C. Over all lands hereafter acquired by the United States, the Commonwealth hereby cedes to the
 485 United States concurrent governmental, judicial, executive and legislative power and jurisdiction.

486 D. There is hereby expressly reserved in the Commonwealth, over all lands so acquired by the
 487 United States the following:

488 1. Tax on motor vehicle fuels and lubricants. - The Commonwealth shall have the jurisdiction and
 489 power to levy a tax on oil, gasoline and all other motor fuels and lubricants thereon owned by others

than the United States and a tax on the sale thereof, on such lands, except sales to the United States for use in the exercise of essentially governmental functions.

2. Service of civil and criminal process. - The Commonwealth shall have the jurisdiction and power to serve criminal and civil process on such lands.

3. Sale of intoxicating liquors. - The Commonwealth shall have the jurisdiction and power to license and regulate, or to prohibit, the sale of intoxicating liquors on any such lands.

4. Tax on property and businesses. - The Commonwealth shall have the jurisdiction and power to tax all property, including buildings erected thereon, not belonging to the United States, and to require licenses and impose license taxes upon any business or businesses conducted thereon.

E. For all purposes of taxation and of the jurisdiction of the courts of the Commonwealth over persons, transactions, matters and property on such lands, the lands shall be deemed to be a part of the county or city in which they are situated.

F. Any such acquisition by or conveyance or lease to the United States, as provided in this section, shall be deemed to have been secured or made upon the express condition that the reservations of power and limitations provided in this section are recognized as valid by the United States and, in the event the United States shall deny the validity of the reservations, as to all or any part of such lands, then and in that event, the title and possession of all or any such part of such lands, conveyed to the United States by the Commonwealth, shall immediately revert to the Commonwealth.

G. Nothing contained in this section shall affect any special act adopted ceding jurisdiction to the United States, nor any deeds executed pursuant to § 1-401.

§ 1-401. Ceding additional jurisdiction to United States.

A. Whenever the head or other authorized officer of any department or independent establishment or agency of the United States shall deem it desirable that additional jurisdiction or powers be ceded over any lands in the Commonwealth acquired or proposed to be acquired by the United States under his immediate jurisdiction, custody or control, and whenever the Governor and Attorney General of the Commonwealth shall agree to the same, the Governor and Attorney General shall execute and acknowledge a deed in the name of and under the lesser seal of the Commonwealth ceding such additional jurisdiction. The deed shall accurately and specifically describe the area and location of the land over which the additional jurisdiction and powers are ceded and shall set out specifically what additional jurisdiction and powers are ceded, and may set out any reservations in the Commonwealth of jurisdiction which may be deemed proper in addition to those referred to in subsection D.

B. No such deed shall become effective or operative until the jurisdiction therein provided for is accepted on behalf of the United States as required by 40 U.S.C. § 255. The head or other authorized officer of a department or independent establishment or agency of the United States shall indicate such acceptance by executing and acknowledging such deed and admitting it to record in the office of the clerk of the court in which deeds conveying the lands affected would properly be recorded.

C. When such deed has been executed and acknowledged on behalf of the Commonwealth and the United States, and admitted to record as provided in subsection B, it shall have the effect of ceding to and vesting in the United States the jurisdiction and powers therein provided for and none other.

D. Every such deed as is provided for in this section shall reserve in the Commonwealth over all lands therein referred to the jurisdiction and power to serve civil and criminal process on such lands and in the event that the lands or any part thereof shall be sold or leased to any person, under the terms of which sale or lease the vendee or lessee shall have the right to conduct thereon any private industry or business, then the jurisdiction ceded to the United States over any such lands so sold or leased shall cease and determine, and thereafter the Commonwealth shall have all jurisdiction and power she would have had if no jurisdiction or power had been ceded to the United States. This provision, however, shall not apply to post exchanges, officers' clubs and similar activities on lands acquired by the United States for purposes of national defense. It is further provided that the reservations provided for in this subsection shall remain effective even though they should be omitted from any deed executed pursuant to this section.

E. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as repealing any special acts ceding jurisdiction to the United States to acquire any specific tract of land.

§ 1-402. Shenandoah National Park.

The respective jurisdiction and powers of the Commonwealth and the United States over all lands within the Shenandoah National Park, as it is now constituted or may hereafter be extended, shall be as follows:

1. Criminal and police jurisdiction. - The United States shall have exclusive jurisdiction, legislative, executive and judicial, with respect to the commission of crimes, and the arrest, trial and punishment therefor, and exclusive general police jurisdiction thereover.

2. Sale of alcoholic beverages. - The United States shall have the power to regulate or prohibit the sale of alcoholic beverages on such lands; provided, that, if the sale of alcoholic beverages is prohibited

551 by general law in the Commonwealth outside of such lands, no such alcoholic beverages shall be sold
552 on the lands contained in the Park area; and provided further, that if the general laws of the
553 Commonwealth permit the sale of alcoholic beverages, then the regulations of the United States relating
554 to such sales on such lands shall conform as nearly as possible to the regulatory provisions in
555 accordance with which such sales are permitted in the Commonwealth outside of such Park lands.
556 Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as reserving in the Commonwealth power to require
557 licenses of persons engaged in the sale of intoxicating beverages on such lands, nor the power to
558 require that any sales be made through official liquor stores.

559 3. Service of civil and criminal process. - The Commonwealth shall have jurisdiction to serve civil
560 process within the limits of the Park in any suits properly instituted in any of the courts of the
561 Commonwealth and to serve criminal process within such limits in any suits or prosecutions for or on
562 account of crimes committed in the Commonwealth but outside of the Park.

563 4. Tax on alcoholic beverages. - The Commonwealth shall have jurisdiction and power to levy a
564 nondiscriminatory tax on all alcoholic beverages possessed or sold on such lands.

565 5. Tax on motor vehicle fuels and lubricants. - The Commonwealth shall have jurisdiction and power
566 to tax the sales of oil and gasoline, and other motor vehicle fuels and lubricants for use in motor
567 vehicles. This subsection shall not be construed as a consent by the United States to the taxation by the
568 Commonwealth of such sales for the exclusive use of the United States.

569 6. Tax on businesses. - The Commonwealth shall have jurisdiction and power to levy
570 nondiscriminatory taxes on private individuals, associations and corporations, their franchises and
571 properties, on such lands, and on their businesses conducted thereon.

572 7. Jurisdiction of courts. - The courts of the Commonwealth shall have concurrent jurisdiction with
573 the courts of the United States of all civil causes of action arising on such lands to the same extent as if
574 the cause of action had arisen in the county or city in which the land lies outside the Park area, and
575 the state officers shall have jurisdiction to enforce on such lands the judgments of the state courts and
576 the collection of taxes by appropriate process.

577 8. Voting residence. - Persons residing in or on any of the lands embraced in the Park shall have
578 the right to establish a voting residence in the Commonwealth by reason thereof, and the consequent
579 right to vote at all elections within the county or city in which the land or lands upon which they reside
580 are located upon like terms and conditions, and to the same extent as they would be entitled to vote in
581 such county or city if the lands on which they reside had not been deeded or conveyed to the United
582 States.

583 9. Fugitives. - All fugitives from justice taking refuge in the Park shall be subject to the same laws
584 as refugees from justice found in the Commonwealth.

585 § 1-403. Conveyances of certain waste and unappropriated lands and marshlands to the United
586 States.

587 A. The Governor is authorized to execute in the name of the Commonwealth deeds conveying, subject
588 to the jurisdictional and other limitations and reservations contained in §§ 1-400 and 1-405, to the
589 United States such title as the Commonwealth may have in waste and unappropriated lands entirely
590 surrounded by lands owned by the United States, when the same are certified as being vacant and
591 unappropriated by a duly authorized agent of the United States and are described by metes and bounds
592 descriptions filed with the Secretary of the Commonwealth and with the clerk of the court in the county
593 wherein such unappropriated land is situated.

594 B. The Governor is authorized to execute, in the name and on behalf of the Commonwealth, a deed
595 or other appropriate instrument conveying to the United States, without any consideration but subject to
596 the jurisdictional limitations and reservations contained in §§ 1-400 and 1-405, such right, title and
597 interest in or easement over and across the marshes lying along the seaside of the Counties of
598 Accomack and Northampton as may be necessary and proper for the construction, operation and
599 maintenance of a canal or channel for small boats over and through such marshlands.

600 § 1-404. Licensing sale of mixed alcoholic beverages on lands ceded to or owned by United States.

601 The Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board may license the sale of mixed alcoholic beverages as
602 defined in Chapter 1 (§ 4.1-100 et seq.) of Title 4.1 at places primarily engaged in the sale of meals on
603 lands ceded by the Commonwealth to the United States or owned by the government of the United States
604 or any agency thereof provided that such lands are used as ports of entry or egress to and from the
605 United States, and provided that such lands lie within or partly within the boundaries of any county in
606 this Commonwealth which permits the lawful dispensing of mixed alcoholic beverages. The Board is
607 hereby authorized to adopt rules and regulations governing the sale of such spirits, and to fix the fees
608 for such licenses, within the limits fixed by general law.

609 § 1-405. Reversion to Commonwealth; recorded title prerequisite to vesting jurisdiction.

610 A. As used in this section, unless the context requires otherwise:

611 "Corrective action" means the response and remediation to environmental contamination to the
612 extent required by any applicable environmental law or regulation applicable to the property.

"Environmental contamination" means any hazardous waste, substance or toxic material, or its discharge or release, that is regulated under any environmental law or regulation applicable to the property, and shall include petroleum (including crude oil), natural gas, liquefied natural gas, ordnance, unexploded munitions, and asbestos.

B. If the United States shall cease to be the owner of any lands, or any part thereof, granted or conveyed to it by the Commonwealth; if the purposes of any such grant or conveyance to the United States shall cease; or if the United States shall for five consecutive years fail to use any such land for the purposes of the grant or conveyance, then, and in that event, the right and title to such land, or such part thereof, shall immediately revert to the Commonwealth unless such land, or part thereof, contains environmental contamination. No land containing environmental contamination shall be transferred or revert to the Commonwealth, unless and until all corrective action necessary to protect human health and the environment with respect to any environmental contamination on the lands, or portion thereof, has been completed to the satisfaction of the Commonwealth and approved by the Governor pursuant to § 2.2-1149, and the United States has executed and delivered a transfer instrument including covenants warranting that (i) all corrective action necessary to protect human health and the environment with respect to any environmental contamination on the land or any portion thereof has been taken, and (ii) any corrective action for environmental contamination occurring before the date of transfer found to be necessary after the date of the transfer of the title of the land or any portion thereof shall be conducted by the United States.

In cases where the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Commission (BRAC Commission) established pursuant to P.L. 101-510 (1990), as amended, identifies United States military bases located in the Commonwealth for closure, the Commonwealth shall have, in addition to the foregoing, the right to enter upon such lands so identified for the purpose of inspection for environmental contamination. Upon completion of such inspection, the Commonwealth shall report its findings to the Governor and the appropriate federal agencies.

C. All deeds, conveyances or title papers for the transfer of title of lands to the United States shall be recorded in the county or city wherein the land or the greater part thereof lies, but no tax shall be required on any such instrument made to the United States by which they acquire lands for public purposes.

D. The jurisdiction ceded by § 1-400 shall not vest until the United States shall have acquired the title of record to such lands, or rights or interest therein, by purchase, condemnation, lease or otherwise. So long as the lands, or any rights or interest therein, are held in fee simple by the United States, and no longer, such lands, rights or interest, as the case may be, shall continue exempt and exonerated, from all state and local taxes which may be levied or imposed under the authority of the Commonwealth.

§ 1-406. Conveyances to political subdivisions of lands ceded to and no longer used by United States.

Whenever any land in the Commonwealth has been or is conveyed to the United States with a provision in the deed that upon abandonment or use for any purpose other than that stated in the deed such land shall revert to the Commonwealth, and if any such land is abandoned or is no longer used for the purpose for which conveyed, the Governor is hereby authorized to convey to the political subdivision in which such land is situated, all right, title and interest of the Commonwealth in and to such land. This section shall not affect any lease made under Chapter 321 of the Acts of 1952.

§ 1-407. Concurrent jurisdiction of Commonwealth and United States over certain lands leased to political subdivisions.

Whenever the United States government has exclusive jurisdiction over property located in the Commonwealth of Virginia, and leases the property, or part thereof, to any political subdivision to be used by it for a public purpose, the exclusive jurisdiction shall cease as to the property so leased and the Commonwealth and the United States government shall have concurrent jurisdiction over the property so long as the lease continues. At the termination of the lease the jurisdiction of the Commonwealth shall cease and the United States shall have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

§ 1-408. Relinquishment by United States of jurisdiction over lands in the Commonwealth.

Whenever a duly authorized official or agent of the United States, acting pursuant to authority conferred by the United States Congress, notifies the Governor that the United States desires or is willing to relinquish to the Commonwealth the jurisdiction, or a portion thereof, held by the United States over lands located in the Commonwealth, as designated in such notice, the Governor may, in his discretion, accept such relinquishment. Such acceptance shall be made by sending a notice of acceptance to the official or agent designated by the United States to receive such notice of acceptance. The Governor shall send a signed copy of the notice of acceptance, together with the notice of relinquishment received from the United States, to the Secretary of the Commonwealth, who shall maintain a permanent file of said notices.

674 Upon the sending of the notice of acceptance to the designated official or agent of the United States,
675 the Commonwealth shall immediately have such jurisdiction over the lands designated in the notice of
676 relinquishment as the notice shall specify.

677 Upon receipt of a copy of the notice of relinquishment and a copy of the notice of acceptance, the
678 Secretary of the Commonwealth shall immediately give written notice of such change in jurisdiction to
679 the Attorney General and the attorney for the Commonwealth of the city or county in which such lands
680 are located. The Secretary of the Commonwealth shall also certify a copy of each of the notices to the
681 clerk of court in which deeds are admitted to record for the city or county in which such lands are
682 located. The clerk shall record the notices in his deed book and index them in the name of the United
683 States and the Commonwealth.

684 CHAPTER 5.

685 EMBLEMS.

686 Article I.

687 Symbols of Sovereignty.

688 § 1-500. The great seal.

689 The great seal of the Commonwealth shall consist of two metallic discs, two and one-fourth inches in
690 diameter, with an ornamental border one fourth of an inch wide, with such words and figures engraved
691 as follows: On the obverse, Virtus, the genius of the Commonwealth, dressed as an Amazon, resting on
692 a spear in her right hand, point downward, touching the earth; and holding in her left hand, a sheathed
693 sword, or parazonium, pointing upward; her head erect and face upturned; her left foot on the form of
694 Tyranny represented by the prostrate body of a man, with his head to her left, his fallen crown nearby,
695 a broken chain in his left hand, and a scourge in his right. Above the group and within the border
696 conforming therewith, shall be the word "Virginia," and, in the space below, on a curved line, shall be
697 the motto, "Sic Semper Tyrannis." On the reverse, shall be placed a group consisting of Libertas,
698 holding a wand and pileus in her right hand; on her right, Aeternitas, with a globe and phoenix in her
699 right hand; on the left of Libertas, Ceres, with a cornucopia in her left hand, and an ear of wheat in
700 her right; over this device, in a curved line, the word "Perseverando."

701 § 1-501. The lesser seal.

702 The lesser seal of the Commonwealth shall be one and nine sixteenths inches in diameter, and be
703 engraved with the device and inscriptions contained in the obverse of the great seal.

704 § 1-502. Custody; impressions displayed in The Library of Virginia.

705 The seals of the Commonwealth described in §§ 1-500 and 1-501 shall be kept by the Secretary of
706 the Commonwealth and used as provided by law, and at least three clear impressions of the seals shall
707 be kept and displayed by the Librarian of Virginia in some suitable place in The Library of Virginia, for
708 public inspection.

709 § 1-503. Uses and tax of great seal.

710 The great seal shall be affixed to documents, signed by the Governor, which are to be used before
711 tribunals, or for purposes outside of the jurisdiction of the Commonwealth; and in every such case,
712 except where the Commonwealth is a party concerned in the use to be made of the document, the tax
713 imposed by § 58.1-1725 on the seal of the Commonwealth shall be collected and accounted for by the
714 Secretary of the Commonwealth.

715 § 1-504. Uses and tax on lesser seal.

716 The lesser seal shall be affixed to all grants for lands and writs of election issued by the Governor;
717 to all letters of pardon and reprieve; to all commissions, civil and military, signed by the Governor, and
718 to all other papers, requiring a seal, authorized to be issued by the Governor for the purpose of
719 carrying the laws into effect within the Commonwealth; and also, when deemed necessary by the
720 Secretary of the Commonwealth, may be used by him as an authentication of his official signature. No
721 tax shall be imposed on the use of such lesser seal, except upon commissions appointing notaries, and
722 commissioners in other states for taking acknowledgments, and upon certificates of the Secretary of the
723 Commonwealth, when, at the request of the parties desiring such certificates, the seal is attached. In all
724 such cases the tax shall be the same as upon the great seal, and shall be collected and accounted for in
725 the same manner.

726 § 1-505. Seals deemed property of Commonwealth; unauthorized use; penalty.

727 The seals of the Commonwealth shall be deemed the property of the Commonwealth; and no persons
728 shall exhibit, display, or in any manner utilize the seals or any facsimile or representation of the seals
729 of the Commonwealth for nongovernmental purposes unless such use is specifically authorized by law.

730 Except for the authorized commercial use of the seal as provided in § 2.2-122, any person violating
731 the provisions of this section shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$100, or by imprisonment for
732 not more than 30 days or both.

733 § 1-506. Flag of the Commonwealth.

734 The flag of the Commonwealth shall be a deep blue field, with a circular white centre of the same
735 material. Upon this circle shall be painted or embroidered, to show on both sides alike, the coat of

arms of the Commonwealth, as described in § 1-500 for the obverse of the great seal of the Commonwealth; and there may be a white fringe on the outer edge, furthest from the flagstaff. This shall be known and respected as the flag of the Commonwealth.

§ 1-507. Governor to prescribe size of flag.

The Governor shall regulate the size and dimensions of the flag proper for forts, arsenals and public buildings, for ships-of-war and merchant marine, for troops in the field, respectively, and for any other purpose, according to his discretion by proclamation.

§ 1-508. Director of General Services to have available flags of the Commonwealth for sale.

The Director of the Department of General Services shall have available at all times flags of the Commonwealth, to be offered for sale to the public in such manner as the Director may determine.

Such flags shall be of good quality, shall conform to the specifications prescribed in § 1-506, and shall be offered in the various sizes prescribed by the Governor pursuant to § 1-507.

The prices to be charged for such flags shall be at cost as determined by the Director.

§ 1-509. When flag to be suspended over Capitol.

During the sessions of either house of the General Assembly the flag of the Commonwealth shall be kept raised over the respective chambers of the Capitol, or other place of session, if practicable, as directed by the Director of the Department of General Services and the Chief of the Virginia Capitol Police in consultation with the Clerk of the House of Delegates and the Clerk of the Senate.

Article 2.

Emblems, Designations, and Honors.

§ 1-510. Official emblems and designations.

The following are hereby designated official emblems and designations of the Commonwealth:

Artisan Center - "Virginia Artisans Center," located in the City of Waynesboro.

Beverage - Milk.

Blue Ridge Folklore State Center - Blue Ridge Institute located in the village of Ferrum.

Boat - "Chesapeake Bay Deadrise."

Dog - American Foxhound.

Emergency medical services museum - "To The Rescue," located in the City of Roanoke.

Fleet - Replicas of the three ships, Susan Constant, Godspeed, and Discovery, which comprised the Commonwealth's founding fleet that brought the first permanent English settlers to Jamestown in 1607, and which are exhibited at the Jamestown Settlement in Williamsburg.

Flower - American Dogwood (*Cornus florida*).

Folk dance - Square dancing, the American folk dance that traces its ancestry to the English Country Dance and the French Ballroom Dance, and is called, cued, or prompted to the dancers, and includes squares, rounds, clogging, contra, line, the Virginia Reel, and heritage dances.

Fossil - *Chesapecten jeffersonius*.

Gold mining interpretive center - Monroe Park, located in the County of Fauquier.

Insect - Tiger Swallowtail Butterfly (*Papilio glaucus* Linne).

Motor sports museum - "Wood Brothers Racing Museum and Virginia Motor Sports Hall of Fame," located in Patrick County.

Outdoor drama - "The Trail of the Lonesome Pine Outdoor Drama," adapted for the stage by Clara Lou Kelly and performed in the Town of Big Stone Gap.

Outdoor drama, historical - "The Long Way Home" based on the life of Mary Draper Ingles, adapted for the stage by Earl Hobson Smith, and performed in the City of Radford.

Shell - Oyster shell (*Crassostrea virginica*).

Song emeritus - "Carry Me Back to Old Virginia," by James A. Bland, as set out in the House Joint Resolution 10, adopted by the General Assembly of Virginia at the Session of 1940.

Sports hall of fame - "Virginia Sports Hall of Fame," located in the City of Portsmouth.

War memorial museum - "Virginia War Museum," (formerly known as the War Memorial Museum of Virginia), located in the City of Newport News.

§ 1-511. English designated the official language of the Commonwealth.

English shall be designated as the official language of the Commonwealth. Except as provided by law, no state agency or local government shall be required to provide and no state agency or local government shall be prohibited from providing any documents, information, literature or other written materials in any language other than English.

§ 1-512. Poet laureate.

The honorary position of Poet Laureate of Virginia is hereby created. The Governor may appoint a poet laureate from a list of nominees submitted by the Poetry Society of Virginia. Each poet laureate shall serve a term of two years with no restrictions on reappointment.

§ 2.2-122. Commercial use of seals of the Commonwealth.

A. Notwithstanding the provisions of § ~~7-1-34~~ 1-505, the Governor may authorize the use of the

seals of the Commonwealth for commercial purposes upon a finding that such use promotes an appropriate image of the Commonwealth, its heritage and its history, and that such use is carried out in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth. In considering whether the use of the seals in association with a product promotes an appropriate image of the Commonwealth, preference shall be given to products that (i) preserve traditional methods of production, including handcrafting techniques, (ii) enhance public appreciation of the Commonwealth's aesthetic values, and (iii) incorporate workmanship and materials of the highest quality. A prospective licensee shall be deemed qualified to protect and promote the image of the Commonwealth if it holds licenses to produce products associated with museums and sites of major historical importance in the Commonwealth, including but not limited to homes of Presidents of the United States and restored historical areas.

B. The Secretary of the Commonwealth and the Director of the Division of Purchases and Supply shall assist the Governor in determining the appropriateness of (i) any contract entered into for the commercial use of the seals of the Commonwealth, (ii) the product intended to be sold, (iii) any marketing activities undertaken to promote the sale of the product, and (iv) the pricing structure, including royalties to be paid to the Commonwealth for such use and sale. Any such royalties paid to the Commonwealth shall be deposited in the general fund.

§ 2.2-604. Performance of duties assigned to an agency.

The chief executive officer shall be responsible for any duty or task imposed upon his agency. The chief executive officer may delegate or assign to any officer or employee of his agency any tasks required to be performed by him or the agency and, in the case of an agency with a supervisory board, such board may delegate or assign the tasks. Except as otherwise provided by law, the chief executive officer may also delegate to any officer or employee of any state or quasi-state agency nondiscretionary duties conferred or imposed upon the chief executive officer or his agency by law where the delegation of duties is necessary to achieve efficiency and economy in the administration of government. The chief executive officer or supervisory board delegating or assigning tasks shall remain responsible for the performance of such tasks.

Any delegation pursuant to this section shall, where appropriate, be accompanied by written guidelines for the exercise of the tasks delegated. Where appropriate, the guidelines shall require that agency heads receive summaries of actions taken. Such delegation shall not relieve the chief executive officer or supervisory board of the responsibility to ensure faithful performance of the duties and tasks.

§ 2.2-2200. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, unless the context requires a different meaning:

"Authority" means the respective political subdivisions of the Commonwealth created in this subpart.

"Board" means the respective boards of directors for the authorities created in this subpart.

"Bonds" means any bonds, refunding bonds, notes, debentures, interim certificates, or any bond, grant, revenue anticipation notes or any other evidences of indebtedness or obligation of an authority, whether in temporary or definitive form and whether the interest thereon is exempt from federal income taxation.

"Commonwealth" or "state" means the Commonwealth of Virginia or any of its agencies or departments.

"Federal agency" means the United States; the President of the United States; and any department, corporation, agency, or instrumentality heretofore or hereafter created, designated, or established by the United States.

~~"Person" means the same as that term is defined in § 1-13.19 of Title 1.~~

§ 2.2-3901. Unlawful discriminatory practice and gender discrimination defined.

Conduct that violates any Virginia or federal statute or regulation governing discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, age, marital status, or disability shall be an "unlawful discriminatory practice" for the purposes of this chapter.

The terms "because of sex or gender" or "on the basis of sex or gender" or terms of similar import when used in reference to discrimination in the Code and acts of the General Assembly include because of or on the basis of pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions. Women affected by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions shall be treated the same for all purposes as persons not so affected but similar in their abilities or disabilities.

§ 3.1-383. Food forbidden to be sold; seizure; prosecution and punishment; inspection.

It shall be unlawful for any person, ~~firm or corporation~~ to sell or to offer or expose for sale for human food any article which has been prepared, handled or kept where the sanitary conditions are such that the article is rendered unhealthy, unwholesome, deleterious, or otherwise unfit for human food, or which consists in whole or in part of diseased, filthy, decomposed or putrid animal or vegetable matter.

The Commissioner, his agents or assistants, and all peace and health officers shall have the power and are required to seize any and all articles which are offered or exposed for sale for human food, which have been prepared, handled or kept where the sanitary conditions are such that the article is

rendered unhealthy, unwholesome, deleterious or otherwise unfit for human food, or which consist in whole or in part of diseased, filthy, decomposed or putrid animal or vegetable matter; and shall deliver the same forthwith to and before the nearest ~~justice of the peace~~ *magistrate*, or other officer authorized to issue such warrants, together with all information obtained, and the ~~justice~~ *magistrate* or other officer shall, upon sworn complaint being filed, issue a warrant, for the arrest of any person charged in any such complaint with a violation of the provisions of this section, returnable before the ~~trial justice of the city or county~~ *general district court*, ~~who~~ *which* shall proceed to try the case. Any person, ~~firm or corporation~~ who shall violate any of the provisions of this section, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined not less than \$10 nor more than \$100, and the article or articles of food in question shall be destroyed.

The Commissioner, his agents or assistants, and all peace and health officers in the execution of the provisions of this section, shall have full right to enter and inspect all places in which any articles of human food are stored, offered or exposed for sale; and any person, ~~firm or corporation~~ who shall hinder or obstruct any of the officers in the discharge of the authority or duty imposed by the provisions of this section shall be guilty of a violation of the same.

§ 3.1-411. Proceeding for forfeiture before ~~trial justice~~.

If upon such analysis it shall appear that the food or dairy products are adulterated, substituted, misbranded, or imitated within the meaning of this chapter, the Commissioner, or his deputy, or any person by him duly authorized may make complaint before ~~any justice of the peace~~ *a magistrate*, or other officer authorized to issue such summons, having jurisdiction where such goods were seized, and thereupon the ~~justice of the peace~~ *magistrate* or other officer shall issue his summons to the person from whom such goods were seized, directing him to appear before the ~~trial justice~~ *general district court* in such jurisdiction not less than six nor more than ~~twelve~~ 12 days from the date of issuing the summons and show cause why the goods should not be condemned and disposed of. If the person from whom the goods were seized cannot be found, the summons shall be served upon the person then in possession of the goods. The summons shall be served at least six days before the time of appearance mentioned therein. If the person from whom the goods were seized cannot be found, and no one can be found in possession of the goods, and the defendant shall not appear on the return day, then the ~~trial justice~~ *general district court* shall proceed in the cause in the same manner as where a writ of attachment is returned not personally served upon any of the defendants and none of the defendants shall appear upon the return day.

§ 3.1-412. Judgment as to goods seized; procedure before ~~trial justice~~ *general district court*; appeal.

Unless cause to the contrary thereof is shown, or if the goods shall be found upon trial to be in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or other laws which now exist or which may be hereafter enacted, it shall be the duty of the ~~trial justice~~ *general district court* to render judgment that the seized property be forfeited to the Commonwealth, and that the goods be destroyed or sold by the Commissioner for any purpose other than to be used for food. The mode of procedure before the ~~trial justice~~ *general district court* shall be the same, as near as may be in civil proceedings. Either party may appeal to the circuit ~~or corporation~~ *courts court* as appeals are taken from the ~~trial justices'~~ *courts general district court*, but it shall not be necessary for the Commonwealth to give any appeal bond.

§ 8.01-227.2. Definitions.

For purposes of this article:

"Person" means the same as defined in § ~~4-13.191~~ 230.

"Regulated entity" means any insured financial institution or public utility.

"Third party" means, with respect to a person against whom a claim for damages is made based upon a Year 2000 problem, any (i) person having no contractual or affiliate relationship with the person against whom a claim is made, (ii) state or federal governmental or quasi-governmental agency or entity, or (iii) regulated entity other than the person against whom a claim is made.

"Year 2000 problem" means any computing, physical, enterprise, or distribution system complication that has occurred or may occur as a result of the change of the year from 1999 to 2000 in any person's technology system, including, without limitation, computer hardware, programs, software, or systems; embedded chip calculations or embedded systems; firmware; microprocessors; or management systems, business processes, or computing applications that govern, utilize, drive, or depend on the Year 2000 processing capabilities of the person's technology systems. Such complications may include the common computer programming practice of using a two-digit field to represent a year, resulting in erroneous date calculations; an ambiguous interpretation of the term or field "00"; the failure to recognize 2000 as a leap year; algorithms that use "99" or "00" to activate another function; or the use of any other applications, software, or hardware that are date-sensitive.

"Year 2000 processing" means the processing, calculating, comparing, sequencing, displaying, storing, transmitting, or receiving of date or date-sensitive data from, into, or between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, during the years 1999 and 2000, and leap year calculations.

920 § 15.2-715. Abolition of offices and distribution of duties.

921 The board, by a majority vote of all the members elected, may abolish any board, commission, or
922 office of such county except the school board; *and* school superintendent ~~and trial justice~~, and the
923 officers elected by popular vote provided for in Article VII, Section 4 of the Constitution of Virginia,
924 and may delegate and distribute the duties, authority and powers of the boards, commissions, or offices
925 abolished to the county manager or to any other officer of the county it may think proper. If any such
926 board, commission, or office is abolished, those to whom the duties thereof are delegated or distributed
927 shall discharge the duties and exercise the powers and authorities of the abolished entity. Both they and
928 the county for which they were appointed, or by whom they were employed, shall enjoy the immunities
929 and exemptions from liability or otherwise that were enjoyed by the abolished boards, commissions, or
930 offices, prior to the adoption of the county manager plan of government, except insofar as such duties,
931 powers, authority, immunities and exemptions have been or hereafter may be changed according to law.

932 § 15.2-2000. State highway systems excepted; town streets.

933 A. Nothing contained in this chapter, except as otherwise provided, shall apply to any highway, road,
934 street or other public right-of-way which constitutes a part of any system of state highways as defined in
935 § 1-13.40; however, any highway for which a locality receives highway maintenance funds pursuant to
936 § 33.1-23.5:1 or § 33.1-41.1 shall not, for purposes of this section, be deemed to be a part of any system
937 of state highways.

938 B. Public rights-of-way subject to local control under this chapter which lie within the boundaries of
939 incorporated towns which receive highway maintenance funds pursuant to § 33.1-41.1 shall be subject to
940 the jurisdiction of the town council of such town and not the board of supervisors of the county in
941 which such town is located.

942 C. The term "public right-of-way" as used in this chapter means any area over which the public has
943 a general privilege to travel. It includes, but is not limited to, ways, areas between deeded right-of-way
944 boundary lines, and easements of all descriptions that are available for general travel by the public.

945 § 15.2-6301. Definitions.

946 As used in this chapter, unless the context or subject matter requires otherwise:

947 "Adjacent to such authority" includes real or personal property which is contiguous, neighboring, or
948 within reasonable proximity of an authority.

949 "Area of operation" means an area coextensive with the territorial boundaries of the land acquired
950 from the federal government by the authority.

951 "Authority" means any political subdivision created by this chapter. The terms "an authority" or "the
952 authority" refer to each such authority.

953 "Bonds" means any bonds, notes, interim certificates, debentures, or other obligations issued by an
954 authority pursuant to this chapter.

955 "Commissioners" means the members of the board of commissioners of an authority.

956 "Facility" means a particular building or structure or particular buildings or structures, including all
957 equipment, appurtenances and accessories necessary or appropriate for the operation of such facility.

958 "Federal government" includes the United States of America, or any department, agency or
959 instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of the United States of America.

960 "Former federal area" means an area coextensive with the territorial boundaries which is, or has been,
961 occupied by a United States governmental military installation and which is, or appears likely to be,
962 subject to disposal by the United States government to public bodies, or otherwise.

963 "Obligee of the authority" or "obligee" includes any bondholder, trustee or trustees for any
964 bondholders, and the federal government when it is a party to any contract with the authority.

965 "Person" means as defined in Chapter 2 (§ 1-10 et seq.) of Title 1.

966 "Project" means any specific enterprise undertaken by an authority, including the facilities as
967 hereinafter defined, and all other property, real or personal or any interest therein, necessary or
968 appropriate for the operation of such property.

969 "Public body of the Commonwealth" means any city, town, county, municipal corporation,
970 commission, district, authority, other political subdivision or public body of ~~this~~ the Commonwealth.

971 "Real property" means all lands, including improvements and fixtures thereon, and property of any
972 nature appurtenant thereto, or used in connection therewith, and every estate, interest and right, legal or
973 equitable, therein, including terms for years and liens by way of judgment, mortgage, or otherwise and
974 the indebtedness secured by such liens.

975 § 16.1-69.35. Administrative duties of chief district judge.

976 The chief judge of each district shall have the following administrative duties and authority with
977 respect to his district:

978 1. When any district court judge is under any disability or for any other cause is unable to hold court
979 and the chief judge determines that assistance is needed:

980 a. The chief district judge shall designate a judge within the district or a judge of another district
981 court within the Commonwealth, if one is reasonably available, to hear and dispose of any action or

actions properly coming before such district court for disposition;

b. If unable to designate a judge as provided in subdivision 1 a, the chief district judge may designate a retired district judge for such hearing and disposition if such judge consents; or

c. If unable to assign a retired district court judge, the chief district judge may designate a retired circuit court judge if such judge consents or the chief district judge may request that the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court designate a circuit judge if such judge consents.

If no judges are available under subdivision a, b or c, then a substitute judge shall be designated pursuant to § 16.1-69.21.

While acting, any judge so designated shall have all the authority and power of the judge of the court, and his order or judgment shall, to all intents and purposes, be the judgment of the court. A general district court judge designated pursuant to subdivision 1 a, may, with his consent, substitute for or replace a juvenile and domestic relations district court judge, and vice versa. The names of the judges designated under subdivisions b and c shall be selected from a list provided by the Executive Secretary and approved by the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court.

2. The chief general district court judge of a district may designate any juvenile and domestic relations district court judge of the district, with the judge's consent, for an individual case or to sit and hear cases for a period of not more than 90 days, in any of the general district courts within the district. The chief juvenile and domestic relations district court judge of a district may designate any general district court judge of the district, with the judge's consent, for an individual case or to sit and hear cases for a period of not more than 90 days, in any of the juvenile and domestic relations district courts within the district. Every judge so designated shall have the same powers and jurisdiction and be authorized to perform the same duties as any judge of the district for which he is designated to assist, and, while so acting, his order or judgment shall be, for all purposes, the judgment of the court to which he is assigned.

3. If on account of congestion in the work of any district court there is in his opinion need therefor, the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court may, upon his own initiative or upon written application of the chief district court judge desiring assistance, designate a judge from another district or any circuit court judge, if such circuit court judge consents, or a retired judge to provide judicial assistance to such district. Every judge so designated shall have the same powers and jurisdiction and be authorized to perform the same duties as any judge of the district for which he is designated to assist and while so acting his order or judgment shall be, to all intents and purposes, the judgment of the court to which he is assigned.

4. Subject to such rules as may be established pursuant to § 16.1-69.32, the chief judge may establish special divisions of any general district court when the work of the court may be more efficiently handled thereby such as through the establishment of special civil, criminal or traffic divisions, and he may assign the judges of the general district court with respect to serving such special divisions. In the City of Richmond the general district court shall, in addition to any specialized divisions, maintain a separate division of such court in that part of Richmond south of the James River with concurrent jurisdiction in civil matters whenever one or more of the defendants reside or the cause of action or any part thereof arises in that part of the city, concurrent jurisdiction over all traffic matters arising in that part of the city and exclusive jurisdiction over all other criminal matters arising in that part of the city.

5. Subject to such rules as may be established pursuant to § 16.1-69.32, the chief judge shall determine when the district courts or divisions of such courts shall be open for the transaction of business. The chief judge or presiding judge of any district court may authorize the clerk's office to close on any date when the chief judge or presiding judge determines that operation of the clerk's office, under prevailing conditions, would constitute a threat to the health or safety of the clerk's office personnel or the general public. Closing of the clerk's office pursuant to this subsection shall have the same effect as provided in ~~§ 1-13.3-1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*. In determining whether to close because of a threat to the health or safety of the general public, the chief judge or the presiding judge of the district court shall coordinate with the chief judge or presiding judge of the circuit court so that, where possible and appropriate, both the circuit and district courts take the same action. He shall determine the times each such court shall be held for the trial of civil, criminal or traffic matters and cases. He shall determine whether, in the case of district courts in counties, court shall be held at any place or places in addition to the county seat. He shall determine the office hours and arrange a vacation schedule of the judges within his district, in order to ensure the availability of a judge or judges to the public at normal times of business. A schedule of the times and places at which court is held shall be filed with the Executive Secretary of the Supreme Court and kept posted at the courthouse, and in any county also at any such other place or places where court may be held, and the clerk shall make such schedules available to the public upon request. Any matter may, in the discretion of the judge, or by direction of the chief district judge, be removed from any one of such designated places to another, or to or from the county seat, in order to serve the convenience of the parties or to expedite the administration of

1043 justice; however, any town having a population of over 15,000 as of July 1, 1972, having court facilities
1044 and a court with both general criminal and civil jurisdiction prior to July 1, 1972, shall be designated by
1045 the chief judge as a place to hold court.

1046 6. Subject to the provisions of § 16.1-69.38, the chief judge of a general district court or the chief
1047 judge of a juvenile and domestic relations district court may establish a voluntary civil mediation
1048 program for the alternate resolution of disputes. The costs of the program shall be paid by the local
1049 governing bodies within the district or by the parties who voluntarily participate in the program.

1050 § 16.1-241. Jurisdiction; consent for abortion.

1051 The judges of the juvenile and domestic relations district court elected or appointed under this law
1052 shall be conservators of the peace within the corporate limits of the cities and the boundaries of the
1053 counties for which they are respectively chosen and within one mile beyond the limits of such cities and
1054 counties. Except as hereinafter provided, each juvenile and domestic relations district court shall have,
1055 within the limits of the territory for which it is created, exclusive original jurisdiction, and within one
1056 mile beyond the limits of said city or county, concurrent jurisdiction with the juvenile court or courts of
1057 the adjoining city or county, over all cases, matters and proceedings involving:

1058 A. The custody, visitation, support, control or disposition of a child:

1059 1. Who is alleged to be abused, neglected, in need of services, in need of supervision, a status
1060 offender, or delinquent except where the jurisdiction of the juvenile court has been terminated or
1061 divested;

1062 2. Who is abandoned by his parent or other custodian or who by reason of the absence or physical
1063 or mental incapacity of his parents is without parental care and guardianship;

1064 2a. Who is at risk of being abused or neglected by a parent or custodian who has been adjudicated
1065 as having abused or neglected another child in the care of the parent or custodian;

1066 3. Whose custody, visitation or support is a subject of controversy or requires determination. In such
1067 cases jurisdiction shall be concurrent with and not exclusive of courts having equity jurisdiction, except
1068 as provided in § 16.1-244;

1069 4. Who is the subject of an entrustment agreement entered into pursuant to § 63.2-903 or § 63.2-1817
1070 or whose parent or parents for good cause desire to be relieved of his care and custody;

1071 5. Where the termination of residual parental rights and responsibilities is sought. In such cases
1072 jurisdiction shall be concurrent with and not exclusive of courts having equity jurisdiction, as provided
1073 in § 16.1-244; and

1074 6. Who is charged with a traffic infraction as defined in § 46.2-100.

1075 In any case in which the juvenile is alleged to have committed a violent juvenile felony enumerated
1076 in subsection B of § 16.1-269.1, and for any charges ancillary thereto, the jurisdiction of the juvenile
1077 court shall be limited to conducting a preliminary hearing to determine if there is probable cause to
1078 believe that the juvenile committed the act alleged and that the juvenile was 14 years of age or older at
1079 the time of the commission of the alleged offense, and any matters related thereto. In any case in which
1080 the juvenile is alleged to have committed a violent juvenile felony enumerated in subsection C of
1081 § 16.1-269.1, and for all charges ancillary thereto, if the attorney for the Commonwealth has given
1082 notice as provided in subsection C of § 16.1-269.1, the jurisdiction of the juvenile court shall be limited
1083 to conducting a preliminary hearing to determine if there is probable cause to believe that the juvenile
1084 committed the act alleged and that the juvenile was 14 years of age or older at the time of the
1085 commission of the alleged offense, and any matters related thereto. A determination by the juvenile
1086 court following a preliminary hearing pursuant to subsection B or C of § 16.1-269.1 to certify a charge
1087 to the grand jury shall divest the juvenile court of jurisdiction over the charge and any ancillary charge.
1088 In any case in which a transfer hearing is held pursuant to subsection A of § 16.1-269.1, if the juvenile
1089 court determines to transfer the case, jurisdiction of the juvenile court over the case shall be divested as
1090 provided in § 16.1-269.6.

1091 In all other cases involving delinquent acts, and in cases in which an ancillary charge remains after a
1092 violent juvenile felony charge has been dismissed or a violent juvenile felony has been reduced to a
1093 lesser offense not constituting a violent juvenile felony, the jurisdiction of the juvenile court shall not be
1094 divested unless there is a transfer pursuant to subsection A of § 16.1-269.1.

1095 The authority of the juvenile court to adjudicate matters involving the custody, visitation, support,
1096 control or disposition of a child shall not be limited to the consideration of petitions filed by a mother,
1097 father or legal guardian but shall include petitions filed at any time by any party with a legitimate
1098 interest therein. A party with a legitimate interest shall be broadly construed and shall include, but not
1099 be limited to, grandparents, stepparents, former stepparents, blood relatives and family members. A party
1100 with a legitimate interest shall not include any person (i) whose parental rights have been terminated by
1101 court order, either voluntarily or involuntarily, (ii) whose interest in the child derives from or through a
1102 person whose parental rights have been terminated by court order, either voluntarily or involuntarily,
1103 including, but not limited to, grandparents, stepparents, former stepparents, blood relatives and family
1104 members, if the child subsequently has been legally adopted, except where a final order of adoption is

entered pursuant to § 63.2-1241, or (iii) who has been convicted of a violation of subsection A of § 18.2-61, § 18.2-63 or subsection B of § 18.2-366 when the child who is the subject of the petition was conceived as a result of such violation. The authority of the juvenile court to consider a petition involving the custody of a child shall not be proscribed or limited where the child has previously been awarded to the custody of a local board of social services.

B. The admission of minors for inpatient treatment in a mental health facility in accordance with the provisions of Article 16 (§ 16.1-335 et seq.) of this chapter and the commitment of a mentally ill person or judicial certification of eligibility for admission to a treatment facility of a mentally retarded person in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 1 (§ 37.1-1 et seq.) and 2 (§ 37.1-63 et seq.) of Title 37.1. Jurisdiction of the commitment and certification of adults shall be concurrent with the general district court.

C. Except as provided in subsections D and H hereof, judicial consent to such activities as may require parental consent may be given for a child who has been separated from his parents, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis and is in the custody of the court when such consent is required by law.

D. Judicial consent for emergency surgical or medical treatment for a child who is neither married nor has ever been married, when the consent of his parent, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis is unobtainable because such parent, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis (i) is not a resident of the Commonwealth, (ii) has his whereabouts unknown, (iii) cannot be consulted with promptness, reasonable under the circumstances, or (iv) fails to give such consent or provide such treatment when requested by the judge to do so.

E. Any person charged with deserting, abandoning or failing to provide support for any person in violation of law.

F. Any parent, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis of a child:

1. Who has been abused or neglected;
2. Who is the subject of an entrustment agreement entered into pursuant to § 63.2-903 or § 63.2-1817 or is otherwise before the court pursuant to subdivision A 4 of this section; or
3. Who has been adjudicated in need of services, in need of supervision, or delinquent, if the court finds that such person has by overt act or omission induced, caused, encouraged or contributed to the conduct of the child complained of in the petition.

G. Petitions filed by or on behalf of a child or such child's parent, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis for the purpose of obtaining treatment, rehabilitation or other services that are required by law to be provided for that child or such child's parent, guardian, legal custodian or other person standing in loco parentis. Jurisdiction in such cases shall be concurrent with and not exclusive of that of courts having equity jurisdiction as provided in § 16.1-244.

H. Judicial consent to apply for a work permit for a child when such child is separated from his parents, legal guardian or other person standing in loco parentis.

I. The prosecution and punishment of persons charged with ill-treatment, abuse, abandonment or neglect of children or with any violation of law that causes or tends to cause a child to come within the purview of this law, or with any other offense against the person of a child. In prosecution for felonies over which the court has jurisdiction, jurisdiction shall be limited to determining whether or not there is probable cause.

J. All offenses in which one family or household member is charged with an offense in which another family or household member is the victim and all offenses under § 18.2-49.1.

In prosecution for felonies over which the court has jurisdiction, jurisdiction shall be limited to determining whether or not there is probable cause. Any objection based on jurisdiction under this subsection shall be made before a jury is impaneled and sworn in a jury trial or, in a nonjury trial, before the earlier of when the court begins to hear or receive evidence or the first witness is sworn, or it shall be conclusively waived for all purposes. Any such objection shall not affect or be grounds for challenging directly or collaterally the jurisdiction of the court in which the case is tried.

K. Petitions filed by a natural parent, whose parental rights to a child have been voluntarily relinquished pursuant to a court proceeding, to seek a reversal of the court order terminating such parental rights. No such petition shall be accepted, however, after the child has been placed in the home of adoptive parents.

L. Any person who seeks spousal support after having separated from his spouse. A decision under this subdivision shall not be res judicata in any subsequent action for spousal support in a circuit court. A circuit court shall have concurrent original jurisdiction in all causes of action under this subdivision.

M. Petitions filed for the purpose of obtaining an order of protection pursuant to § 16.1-253.1 or § 16.1-279.1.

N. Any person who escapes or remains away without proper authority from a residential care facility in which he had been placed by the court or as a result of his commitment to the Virginia Department

1166 of Juvenile Justice.

1167 O. Petitions for emancipation of a minor pursuant to Article 15 (§ 16.1-331 et seq.) of this chapter.

1168 P. Petitions for enforcement of administrative support orders entered pursuant to Chapter 19
1169 (§ 63.2-1900 et seq.) of Title 63.2, or by another state in the same manner as if the orders were entered
1170 by a juvenile and domestic relations district court upon the filing of a certified copy of such order in the
1171 juvenile and domestic relations district court.

1172 Q. Petitions for a determination of parentage pursuant to Chapter 3.1 (§ 20-49.1 et seq.) of Title 20.

1173 R. Petitions for the purpose of obtaining an emergency protective order pursuant to § 16.1-253.4.

1174 S. Petitions filed by school boards against parents pursuant to §§ 16.1-241.2 and 22.1-279.3.

1175 T. Petitions to enforce any request for information or subpoena that is not complied with or to
1176 review any refusal to issue a subpoena in an administrative appeal regarding child abuse and neglect
1177 pursuant to § 63.2-1526.

1178 U. Petitions filed in connection with parental placement adoption consent hearings pursuant to
1179 § 63.2-1233. Such proceedings shall be advanced on the docket so as to be heard by the court within 10
1180 days of filing of the petition, or as soon thereafter as practicable so as to provide the earliest possible
1181 disposition.

1182 V. Petitions filed by a juvenile seeking judicial authorization for a physician to perform an abortion
1183 if a minor elects not to seek consent of an authorized person.

1184 After a hearing, a judge shall issue an order authorizing a physician to perform an abortion, without
1185 the consent of any authorized person, if he finds that (i) the minor is mature enough and well enough
1186 informed to make her abortion decision, in consultation with her physician, independent of the wishes of
1187 any authorized person, or (ii) the minor is not mature enough or well enough informed to make such
1188 decision, but the desired abortion would be in her best interest.

1189 If the judge authorizes an abortion based on the best interests of the minor, such order shall
1190 expressly state that such authorization is subject to the physician or his agent giving notice of intent to
1191 perform the abortion; however, no such notice shall be required if the judge finds that such notice would
1192 not be in the best interest of the minor. In determining whether notice is in the best interest of the
1193 minor, the judge shall consider the totality of the circumstances; however, he shall find that notice is not
1194 in the best interest of the minor if he finds that (i) one or more authorized persons with whom the
1195 minor regularly and customarily resides is abusive or neglectful, and (ii) every other authorized person,
1196 if any, is either abusive or neglectful or has refused to accept responsibility as parent, legal guardian,
1197 custodian or person standing in loco parentis.

1198 The minor may participate in the court proceedings on her own behalf, and the court may appoint a
1199 guardian ad litem for the minor. The court shall advise the minor that she has a right to counsel and
1200 shall, upon her request, appoint counsel for her.

1201 Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the provisions of this subsection shall govern
1202 proceedings relating to consent for a minor's abortion. Court proceedings under this subsection and
1203 records of such proceedings shall be confidential. Such proceedings shall be given precedence over other
1204 pending matters so that the court may reach a decision promptly and without delay in order to serve the
1205 best interests of the minor. Court proceedings under this subsection shall be heard and decided as soon
1206 as practicable but in no event later than four days after the petition is filed.

1207 An expedited confidential appeal to the circuit court shall be available to any minor for whom the
1208 court denies an order authorizing an abortion without consent or without notice. Any such appeal shall
1209 be heard and decided no later than five days after the appeal is filed. The time periods required by this
1210 subsection shall be subject to ~~§ 1-13.3:1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*. An order authorizing an abortion
1211 without consent or without notice shall not be subject to appeal.

1212 No filing fees shall be required of the minor at trial or upon appeal.

1213 If either the original court or the circuit court fails to act within the time periods required by this
1214 subsection, the court before which the proceeding is pending shall immediately authorize a physician to
1215 perform the abortion without consent of or notice to an authorized person.

1216 Nothing contained in this subsection shall be construed to authorize a physician to perform an
1217 abortion on a minor in circumstances or in a manner that would be unlawful if performed on an adult
1218 woman.

1219 A physician shall not knowingly perform an abortion upon an unemancipated minor unless consent
1220 has been obtained or the minor delivers to the physician a court order entered pursuant to this section
1221 and the physician or his agent provides such notice as such order may require. However, neither consent
1222 nor judicial authorization nor notice shall be required if the minor declares that she is abused or
1223 neglected and the attending physician has reason to suspect that the minor may be an abused or
1224 neglected child as defined in § 63.2-100 and reports the suspected abuse or neglect in accordance with
1225 § 63.2-1509; or if there is a medical emergency, in which case the attending physician shall certify the
1226 facts justifying the exception in the minor's medical record.

1227 For purposes of this subsection:

"Authorization" means the minor has delivered to the physician a notarized, written statement signed by an authorized person that the authorized person knows of the minor's intent to have an abortion and consents to such abortion being performed on the minor.

"Authorized person" means (i) a parent or duly appointed legal guardian or custodian of the minor or (ii) a person standing in loco parentis, including, but not limited to, a grandparent or adult sibling with whom the minor regularly and customarily resides and who has care and control of the minor. Any person who knows he is not an authorized person and who knowingly and willfully signs an authorization statement consenting to an abortion for a minor is guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor.

"Consent" means that (i) the physician has given notice of intent to perform the abortion and has received authorization from an authorized person, or (ii) at least one authorized person is present with the minor seeking the abortion and provides written authorization to the physician, which shall be witnessed by the physician or an agent thereof. In either case, the written authorization shall be incorporated into the minor's medical record and maintained as a part thereof.

"Medical emergency" means any condition which, on the basis of the physician's good faith clinical judgment, so complicates the medical condition of the pregnant minor as to necessitate the immediate abortion of her pregnancy to avert her death or for which a delay will create a serious risk of substantial and irreversible impairment of a major bodily function.

"Notice of intent to perform the abortion" means that (i) the physician or his agent has given actual notice of his intention to perform such abortion to an authorized person, either in person or by telephone, at least 24 hours previous to the performance of the abortion; or (ii) the physician or his agent, after a reasonable effort to notify an authorized person, has mailed notice to an authorized person by certified mail, addressed to such person at his usual place of abode, with return receipt requested, at least 72 hours prior to the performance of the abortion.

"Perform an abortion" means to interrupt or terminate a pregnancy by any surgical or nonsurgical procedure or to induce a miscarriage as provided in §§ 18.2-72, 18.2-73 or § 18.2-74.

"Unemancipated minor" means a minor who has not been emancipated by (i) entry into a valid marriage, even though the marriage may have been terminated by dissolution; (ii) active duty with any of the Armed Forces of the United States; (iii) willingly living separate and apart from his or her parents or guardian, with the consent or acquiescence of the parents or guardian; or (iv) entry of an order of emancipation pursuant to Article 15 (§ 16.1-331 et seq.) of this chapter.

W. Petitions filed pursuant to Article 17 (§ 16.1-349 et seq.) of this chapter relating to standby guardians for minor children.

The ages specified in this law refer to the age of the child at the time of the acts complained of in the petition.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no fees shall be charged by a sheriff for the service of any process in a proceeding pursuant to subdivision 3 of subsection A, except as provided in subdivision A 6 of § 17.1-272, or subsection B, D, M or R of this section.

Notwithstanding the provisions of § 18.2-71, any physician who performs an abortion in violation of subsection V shall be guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor.

§ 17.1-207. Days of operation of clerks' offices.

A. The clerk's office of every court shall be kept open on every day except Saturday, except as provided in subsection B, and Sunday, and the days provided for in § 2.2-3300, for the transaction of business; provided that:

1. The clerk's office of the circuit court of any county or city may be closed on any day which is established as a general holiday for the employees of such county or city by a resolution duly adopted by the governing body of such county or city and approved by the judge or judges of the circuit court and filed in the office of the clerk; provided that such general holiday shall have the same force and effect as a legal holiday as set forth in ~~§ 1-13.3:1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*;

2. The judge or judges of any circuit court in any county or city may authorize the clerk of such court to close the clerk's office on Christmas Eve; provided that the closing of any clerk's office as provided by this subdivision shall have the same force and effect as a legal holiday as set forth in ~~§ 1-13.3:1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*;

3. The chief judge or presiding judge of any circuit court may authorize the clerk of the court to close the clerk's office on any day when the chief judge or presiding judge determines that operation of the clerk's office, under prevailing conditions, would constitute a threat to the health and safety of the clerk's office personnel or the general public. Closing of the clerk's office pursuant to this subdivision shall have the same effect as provided in ~~§ 1-13.3:1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*;

4. The judge or judges of the circuit court of any county or city may authorize the clerk of such court to close the clerk's office on any day or portion of a day which the Governor declares as a holiday for state employees, or on any day or portion of a day on which the Governor authorizes state offices to be closed; provided that such closing of any clerk's office shall have the same force and effect as a legal

1289 holiday as set forth in ~~§ 1-13.3-1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*.

1290 Except for closings pursuant to subdivision 3, whenever the authorization of the judge is necessary to
1291 close a clerk's office and a court has more than one judge, the authorization of all such judges shall be
1292 necessary.

1293 The judge of the circuit court of any county or city may require the clerk's office to be kept open
1294 continuously for the transaction of business during convenient hours on all the days on which it is
1295 required by this section to be kept open.

1296 B. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the clerk, with the approval of the chief
1297 judge, to open the clerk's office on Saturdays, during such hours as the chief judge may authorize, solely
1298 for the purposes of (i) permitting examination and copying of court records, (ii) accepting applications
1299 for and granting licenses pursuant to applicable law, and (iii) recording instruments. For all other
1300 purposes, including without limitation the filing of actions at law and suits in equity and all pleadings,
1301 pleas and motions therein, such clerk's office shall be closed with the force and effect of a statutory
1302 closing as provided in ~~§ 1-13.3-1~~ *subsection B of § 1-210*.

1303 § 18.2-246.6. Definitions.

1304 For purposes of this article:

1305 "Adult" means a person who is at least the legal minimum purchasing age.

1306 "Board" means the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board.

1307 "Consumer" means an individual who is not permitted as a wholesaler pursuant to § 58.1-1011 or
1308 who is not a retailer.

1309 "Delivery sale" means any sale of cigarettes to a consumer in the Commonwealth regardless of
1310 whether the seller is located in the Commonwealth where either (i) the purchaser submits the order for
1311 such sale by means of a telephonic or other method of voice transmission, the mails or any other
1312 delivery service, or the Internet or other online service; or (ii) the cigarettes are delivered by use of the
1313 mails or a delivery service. A sale of cigarettes not for personal consumption to a person who is a
1314 wholesale dealer or retail dealer, as such terms are defined in § 58.1-1000, shall not be a delivery sale.
1315 A delivery of cigarettes, not through the mail or by a common carrier, to a consumer performed by the
1316 owner, employee or other individual acting on behalf of a retailer authorized to sell such cigarettes shall
1317 not be a delivery sale.

1318 "Delivery service" means any person who is engaged in the commercial delivery of letters, packages,
1319 or other containers.

1320 "Legal minimum purchasing age" is the minimum age at which an individual may legally purchase
1321 cigarettes in the Commonwealth.

1322 "Mails" or "mailing" means the shipment of cigarettes through the United States Postal Service.

1323 "Person" means the same as that term is defined in ~~§ 1-13.19~~.

1324 "Shipping container" means a container in which cigarettes are shipped in connection with a delivery
1325 sale.

1326 "Shipping documents" means bills of lading, airbills, or any other documents used to evidence the
1327 undertaking by a delivery service to deliver letters, packages, or other containers.

1328 § 18.2-308. Personal protection; carrying concealed weapons; when lawful to carry.

1329 A. If any person carries about his person, hidden from common observation, (i) any pistol, revolver,
1330 or other weapon designed or intended to propel a missile of any kind by action of an explosion of any
1331 combustible material; (ii) any dirk, bowie knife, switchblade knife, ballistic knife, machete, razor,
1332 slingshot, spring stick, metal knucks, or blackjack; (iii) any flailing instrument consisting of two or more
1333 rigid parts connected in such a manner as to allow them to swing freely, which may be known as a nun
1334 chahka, nun chuck, nunchaku, shuriken, or fighting chain; (iv) any disc, of whatever configuration,
1335 having at least two points or pointed blades which is designed to be thrown or propelled and which may
1336 be known as a throwing star or oriental dart; or (v) any weapon of like kind as those enumerated in this
1337 subsection, he shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. A second violation of this section or a
1338 conviction under this section subsequent to any conviction under any substantially similar ordinance of
1339 any county, city, or town shall be punishable as a Class 6 felony, and a third or subsequent such
1340 violation shall be punishable as a Class 5 felony. For the purpose of this section, a weapon shall be
1341 deemed to be hidden from common observation when it is observable but is of such deceptive
1342 appearance as to disguise the weapon's true nature.

1343 B. This section shall not apply to any person while in his own place of abode or the curtilage
1344 thereof.

1345 Except as provided in subsection J1, this section shall not apply to:

1346 1. Any person while in his own place of business;

1347 2. Any law-enforcement officer, wherever such law-enforcement officer may travel in the
1348 Commonwealth;

1349 3. Any regularly enrolled member of a target shooting organization who is at, or going to or from,
1350 an established shooting range, provided that the weapons are unloaded and securely wrapped while being

transported;

4. Any regularly enrolled member of a weapons collecting organization who is at, or going to or from, a bona fide weapons exhibition, provided that the weapons are unloaded and securely wrapped while being transported;

5. Any person carrying such weapons between his place of abode and a place of purchase or repair, provided the weapons are unloaded and securely wrapped while being transported;

6. Any person actually engaged in lawful hunting, as authorized by the Board of Game and Inland Fisheries, under inclement weather conditions necessitating temporary protection of his firearm from those conditions, provided that possession of a handgun while engaged in lawful hunting shall not be construed as hunting with a handgun if the person hunting is carrying a valid concealed handgun permit; and

7. Any State Police officer retired from the Department of State Police, any local law-enforcement officer retired from a police department or sheriff's office within the Commonwealth, any special agent retired from the State Corporation Commission or the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, any game warden retired from the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, and any Virginia Marine Police officer retired from the Law Enforcement Division of the Virginia Marine Resources Commission, other than an officer or agent terminated for cause, (i) with a service-related disability; (ii) following at least 15 years of service with any such law-enforcement agency, board or any combination thereof; or (iii) who has reached 55 years of age, provided such officer carries with him written proof of consultation with and favorable review of the need to carry a concealed handgun issued by the chief law-enforcement officer of the last such agency from which the officer retired or, in the case of special agents, issued by the State Corporation Commission or the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. A copy of the proof of consultation and favorable review shall be forwarded by the chief or the Board to the Department of State Police for entry into the Virginia Criminal Information Network. The chief law-enforcement officer shall not without cause withhold such written proof if the retired law-enforcement officer otherwise meets the requirements of this section.

For purposes of applying the reciprocity provisions of subsection P, any person granted the privilege to carry a concealed handgun pursuant to this subdivision, while carrying the proof of consultation and favorable review required, shall be deemed to have been issued a concealed handgun permit.

C. This section shall also not apply to any of the following individuals while in the discharge of their official duties, or while in transit to or from such duties:

1. Carriers of the United States mail;

2. Officers or guards of any state correctional institution;

3. [Repealed.]

4. Conservators of the peace, except that the following conservators of the peace shall not be permitted to carry a concealed handgun without obtaining a permit as provided in subsection D hereof: (a) notaries public; (b) registrars; (c) drivers, operators or other persons in charge of any motor vehicle carrier of passengers for hire; or (d) commissioners in chancery;

5. Noncustodial employees of the Department of Corrections designated to carry weapons by the Director of the Department of Corrections pursuant to § 53.1-29; and

6. Harbormaster of the City of Hopewell.

D. Any person 21 years of age or older may apply in writing to the clerk of the circuit court of the county or city in which he resides, or if he is a member of the United States Armed Forces, the county or city in which he is domiciled, for a five-year permit to carry a concealed handgun. There shall be no requirement regarding the length of time an applicant has been a resident or domiciliary of the county or city. The application shall be made under oath before a notary or other person qualified to take oaths and shall be made only on a form prescribed by the Department of State Police, in consultation with the Supreme Court, requiring only that information necessary to determine eligibility for the permit. The clerk shall enter on the application the date on which the application and all other information required to be submitted by the applicant is received. The court shall consult with either the sheriff or police department of the county or city and receive a report from the Central Criminal Records Exchange. As a condition for issuance of a concealed handgun permit, the applicant shall submit to fingerprinting if required by local ordinance in the county or city where the applicant resides and provide personal descriptive information to be forwarded with the fingerprints through the Central Criminal Records Exchange to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the purpose of obtaining criminal history record information regarding the applicant, and obtaining fingerprint identification information from federal records pursuant to criminal investigations by state and local law-enforcement agencies. Where feasible and practical, the local law-enforcement agency may transfer information electronically to the State Police instead of inked fingerprint cards. Upon completion of the criminal history records check, the State Police shall return the fingerprint cards to the submitting local agency or, in the case of scanned fingerprints, destroy the electronic record. The local agency shall then promptly notify the person that he

has 21 days from the date of the notice to request return of the fingerprint cards, if any. All fingerprint cards not claimed by the applicant within 21 days of notification by the local agency shall be destroyed. All optically scanned fingerprints shall be destroyed upon completion of the criminal history records check without requiring that the applicant be notified. Fingerprints taken for the purposes described in this section shall not be copied, held or used for any other purposes. The court shall issue the permit within 45 days of receipt of the completed application unless it is determined that the applicant is disqualified. Any order denying issuance of the permit shall state the basis for the denial of the permit and the applicant's right to and the requirements for perfecting an appeal of such order pursuant to subsection L. An application is deemed complete when all information required to be furnished by the applicant is delivered to and received by the clerk of court before or concomitant with the conduct of a state or national criminal history records check. If the court has not issued the permit or determined that the applicant is disqualified within 45 days of the date of receipt noted on the application, the clerk shall certify on the application that the 45-day period has expired, and send a copy of the certified application to the applicant. The certified application shall serve as a de facto permit, which shall expire 90 days after issuance, and shall be recognized as a valid concealed handgun permit when presented with a valid government-issued photo identification pursuant to subsection H, until the court issues a five-year permit or finds the applicant to be disqualified. If the applicant is found to be disqualified after the de facto permit is issued, the applicant shall surrender the de facto permit to the court and the disqualification shall be deemed a denial of the permit and a revocation of the de facto permit. If the applicant is later found by the court to be disqualified after a five-year permit has been issued, the permit shall be revoked. The clerk of court may withhold from public disclosure the social security number contained in a permit application in response to a request to inspect or copy any such permit application, except that such social security number shall not be withheld from any law-enforcement officer acting in the performance of his official duties.

E. The following persons shall be deemed disqualified from obtaining a permit:

1. An individual who is ineligible to possess a firearm pursuant to §§ 18.2-308.1:1, 18.2-308.1:2 or § 18.2-308.1:3 or the substantially similar law of any other state or of the United States.

2. An individual who was ineligible to possess a firearm pursuant to § 18.2-308.1:1 and who was discharged from the custody of the Commissioner pursuant to § 19.2-182.7 less than five years before the date of his application for a concealed handgun permit.

3. An individual who was ineligible to possess a firearm pursuant to § 18.2-308.1:2 and whose competency or capacity was restored pursuant to former § 37.1-134.1 or § 37.1-134.16 less than five years before the date of his application for a concealed handgun permit.

4. An individual who was ineligible to possess a firearm under § 18.2-308.1:3 and who was released from commitment less than five years before the date of this application for a concealed handgun permit.

5. An individual who is subject to a restraining order, or to a protective order and prohibited by § 18.2-308.1:4 from purchasing or transporting a firearm.

6. An individual who is prohibited by § 18.2-308.2 from possessing or transporting a firearm, except that a permit may be obtained in accordance with subsection C of that section.

7. An individual who has been convicted of two or more misdemeanors within the five-year period immediately preceding the application, if one of the misdemeanors was a Class 1 misdemeanor, but the judge shall have the discretion to deny a permit for two or more misdemeanors that are not Class 1. Traffic infractions and misdemeanors set forth in Title 46.2 shall not be considered for purposes of this disqualification.

8. An individual who is addicted to, or is an unlawful user or distributor of, marijuana or any controlled substance.

9. An individual who has been convicted of a violation of § 18.2-266 or a substantially similar local ordinance or of public drunkenness within the three-year period immediately preceding the application, or who is a habitual drunkard as determined pursuant to § 4.1-333.

10. An alien other than an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United States.

11. An individual who has been discharged from the Armed Forces of the United States under dishonorable conditions.

12. An individual who is a fugitive from justice.

13. An individual who it is alleged, in a sworn written statement submitted to the court by the sheriff, chief of police or attorney for the Commonwealth in the opinion of such sheriff, chief of police or attorney for the Commonwealth, is likely to use a weapon unlawfully or negligently to endanger others. The statement of the sheriff, chief of police or the attorney for the Commonwealth shall be based upon personal knowledge or upon the sworn written statement of a competent person having personal knowledge.

14. An individual who has been convicted of any assault, assault and battery, sexual battery, discharging of a firearm in violation of § 18.2-280 or § 18.2-286.1 or brandishing of a firearm in

violation of § 18.2-282 within the three-year period immediately preceding the application.

15. An individual who has been convicted of stalking.

16. An individual whose previous convictions or adjudications of delinquency were based on an offense which would have been at the time of conviction a felony if committed by an adult under the laws of any state, the District of Columbia, the United States or its territories. For purposes of this disqualifier, only convictions occurring within 16 years following the later of the date of (i) the conviction or adjudication or (ii) release from any incarceration imposed upon such conviction or adjudication shall be deemed to be "previous convictions."

17. An individual who has a felony charge pending or a charge pending for an offense listed in subdivision 14 or 15.

18. An individual who has received mental health treatment or substance abuse treatment in a residential setting within five years prior to the date of his application for a concealed handgun permit.

19. An individual not otherwise ineligible pursuant to this section, who, within the three-year period immediately preceding the application for the permit, was found guilty of any criminal offense set forth in Article 1 (§ 18.2-247 et seq.) of Chapter 7 of this title or of a criminal offense of illegal possession or distribution of marijuana or any controlled substance, under the laws of any state, the District of Columbia, or the United States or its territories.

20. An individual, not otherwise ineligible pursuant to this section, with respect to whom, within the three-year period immediately preceding the application, upon a charge of any criminal offense set forth in Article 1 (§ 18.2-247 et seq.) of Chapter 7 of this title or upon a charge of illegal possession or distribution of marijuana or any controlled substance under the laws of any state, the District of Columbia, or the United States or its territories, the trial court found that the facts of the case were sufficient for a finding of guilt and disposed of the case pursuant to § 18.2-251 or the substantially similar law of any other state, the District of Columbia, or the United States or its territories.

F. The making of a materially false statement in an application under this section shall constitute perjury, punishable as provided in § 18.2-434.

G. The court shall require proof that the applicant has demonstrated competence with a handgun and the applicant may demonstrate such competence by one of the following, but no applicant shall be required to submit to any additional demonstration of competence:

1. Completing any hunter education or hunter safety course approved by the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries or a similar agency of another state;

2. Completing any National Rifle Association firearms safety or training course;

3. Completing any firearms safety or training course or class available to the general public offered by a law-enforcement agency, junior college, college, or private or public institution or organization or firearms training school utilizing instructors certified by the National Rifle Association or the Department of Criminal Justice Services;

4. Completing any law-enforcement firearms safety or training course or class offered for security guards, investigators, special deputies, or any division or subdivision of law enforcement or security enforcement;

5. Presenting evidence of equivalent experience with a firearm through participation in organized shooting competition or current military service or proof of an honorable discharge from any branch of the armed services;

6. Obtaining or previously having held a license to carry a firearm in the Commonwealth or a locality thereof, unless such license has been revoked for cause;

7. Completing any firearms training or safety course or class conducted by a state-certified or National Rifle Association-certified firearms instructor;

8. Completing any governmental police agency firearms training course and qualifying to carry a firearm in the course of normal police duties; or

9. Completing any other firearms training which the court deems adequate.

A photocopy of a certificate of completion of any of the courses or classes; an affidavit from the instructor, school, club, organization, or group that conducted or taught such course or class attesting to the completion of the course or class by the applicant; or a copy of any document which shows completion of the course or class or evidences participation in firearms competition shall constitute evidence of qualification under this subsection.

H. The permit to carry a concealed handgun shall specify only the following information: name, address, date of birth, gender, height, weight, color of hair, color of eyes, and signature of the permittee; the signature of the judge issuing the permit, or of the clerk of court who has been authorized to sign such permits by the issuing judge; the date of issuance; and the expiration date. The permit to carry a concealed handgun shall be no larger than two inches wide by three and one-fourth inches long and shall be of a uniform style prescribed by the Department of State Police. The person issued the permit shall have such permit on his person at all times during which he is carrying a concealed handgun and

shall display the permit and a photo-identification issued by a government agency of the Commonwealth or by the United States Department of Defense or United States State Department (passport) upon demand by a law-enforcement officer.

I. Persons who previously have held a concealed handgun permit shall be issued, upon application as provided in subsection D, a new five-year permit unless there is good cause shown for refusing to reissue a permit. If the circuit court denies the permit, the specific reasons for the denial shall be stated in the order of the court denying the permit. Upon denial of the application, the clerk shall provide the person with notice, in writing, of his right to an ore tenus hearing. Upon request of the applicant made within 21 days, the court shall place the matter on the docket for an ore tenus hearing. The applicant may be represented by counsel, but counsel shall not be appointed, and the rules of evidence shall apply. The final order of the court shall include the court's findings of fact and conclusions of law.

J. Any person convicted of an offense that would disqualify that person from obtaining a permit under subsection E or who violates subsection F shall forfeit his permit for a concealed handgun and surrender it to the court. Upon receipt by the Central Criminal Records Exchange of a record of the arrest, conviction or occurrence of any other event that would disqualify a person from obtaining a concealed handgun permit under subsection E, the Central Criminal Records Exchange shall notify the court having issued the permit of such disqualifying arrest, conviction or other event.

J1. Any person permitted to carry a concealed handgun, who is under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs while carrying such handgun in a public place, shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. Conviction of any of the following offenses shall be prima facie evidence, subject to rebuttal, that the person is "under the influence" for purposes of this section: manslaughter in violation of § 18.2-36.1, maiming in violation of § 18.2-51.4, driving while intoxicated in violation of § 18.2-266, public intoxication in violation of § 18.2-388, or driving while intoxicated in violation of § 46.2-341.24. Upon such conviction that court shall revoke the person's permit for a concealed handgun and promptly notify the issuing circuit court. A person convicted of a violation of this subsection shall be ineligible to apply for a concealed handgun permit for a period of five years.

J2. An individual who has a felony charge pending or a charge pending for an offense listed in subdivision E 14 or E 15, holding a permit for a concealed handgun, may have the permit suspended by the court before which such charge is pending or by the court that issued the permit.

J3. No person shall carry a concealed handgun onto the premises of any restaurant or club as defined in § 4.1-100 for which a license to sell and serve alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption has been granted by the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board under Title 4.1 of the Code of Virginia; however, nothing herein shall prohibit any sworn law-enforcement officer from carrying a concealed handgun on the premises of such restaurant or club or any owner or event sponsor or his employees from carrying a concealed handgun while on duty at such restaurant or club if such person has a concealed handgun permit.

J4. Any individual for whom it would be unlawful to purchase, possess or transport a firearm under § 18.2-308.1:2 or § 18.2-308.1:3, who holds a concealed handgun permit, may have the permit suspended by the court that issued the permit during the period of incompetency, incapacity or disability.

K. No fee shall be charged for the issuance of such permit to a person who has retired from service (i) as a magistrate in the Commonwealth; (ii) as a law-enforcement officer with the Department of State Police or the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries or with a sheriff or police department, bureau or force of any political subdivision of the Commonwealth, after completing 15 years of service or after reaching age 55; (iii) as a law-enforcement officer with the United States Federal Bureau of Investigation, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, Secret Service Agency, Drug Enforcement Administration, United States Citizenship and Immigration Services, Customs Service, Department of State Diplomatic Security Service, U.S. Marshals Service or Naval Criminal Investigative Service, after completing 15 years of service or after reaching age 55; (iv) as a law-enforcement officer with any police or sheriff's department within the United States, the District of Columbia or any of the territories of the United States, after completing 15 years of service; or (v) as a law-enforcement officer with any combination of the agencies listed in clauses (ii) through (iv), after completing 15 years of service. The clerk shall charge a fee of \$10 for the processing of an application or issuing of a permit, including his costs associated with the consultation with law-enforcement agencies. The local law-enforcement agency conducting the background investigation may charge a fee not to exceed \$35 to cover the cost of conducting an investigation pursuant to this section. The \$35 fee shall include any amount assessed by the Federal Bureau of Investigation for providing criminal history record information, and the local law-enforcement agency shall forward the amount assessed by the Federal Bureau of Investigation to the State Police with the fingerprints taken from the applicant. The State Police may charge a fee not to exceed \$5 to cover their costs associated with processing the application. The total amount assessed for processing an application for a permit shall not exceed \$50, with such fees to be paid in one sum to the person who accepts the application. Payment may be made by any method accepted by that court for

payment of other fees or penalties. No payment shall be required until the application is accepted by the court as a complete application. The order issuing such permit, or the copy of the permit application certified by the clerk as a de facto permit pursuant to subsection D, shall be provided to the State Police and the law-enforcement agencies of the county or city. The State Police shall enter the permittee's name and description in the Virginia Criminal Information Network so that the permit's existence and current status will be made known to law-enforcement personnel accessing the Network for investigative purposes.

L. Any person denied a permit to carry a concealed handgun under the provisions of this section may present a petition for review to the Court of Appeals. The petition for review shall be filed within 60 days of the expiration of the time for requesting an ore tenus hearing pursuant to subsection I, or if an ore tenus hearing is requested, within 60 days of the entry of the final order of the circuit court following the hearing. The petition shall be accompanied by a copy of the original papers filed in the circuit court, including a copy of the order of the circuit court denying the permit. Subject to the provisions of subsection B of § 17.1-410, the decision of the Court of Appeals or judge shall be final. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, if the decision to deny the permit is reversed upon appeal, taxable costs incurred by the person shall be paid by the Commonwealth.

M. For purposes of this section:

"Handgun" means any pistol or revolver or other firearm, except a machine gun, originally designed, made and intended to fire a projectile by means of an explosion of a combustible material from one or more barrels when held in one hand.

"Lawfully admitted for permanent residence" means the status of having been lawfully accorded the privilege of residing permanently in the United States as an immigrant in accordance with the immigration laws, such status not having changed.

"Law-enforcement officer" means those individuals defined as a law-enforcement officer in § 9.1-101, campus police officers appointed pursuant to Chapter 17 (§ 23-232 et seq.) of Title 23, law-enforcement agents of the Armed Forces of the United States, the Naval Criminal Investigative Service, and federal agents who are otherwise authorized to carry weapons by federal law. "Law-enforcement officer" shall also mean any sworn full-time law-enforcement officer employed by a law-enforcement agency of the United States or any state or political subdivision thereof, whose duties are substantially similar to those set forth in § 9.1-101.

N. As used in this article:

"Ballistic knife" means any knife with a detachable blade that is propelled by a spring-operated mechanism.

"Spring stick" means a spring-loaded metal stick activated by pushing a button which rapidly and forcefully telescopes the weapon to several times its original length.

O. The granting of a concealed handgun permit shall not thereby authorize the possession of any handgun or other weapon on property or in places where such possession is otherwise prohibited by law or is prohibited by the owner of private property.

P. A valid concealed handgun or concealed weapon permit or license issued by another state shall authorize the holder of such permit or license who is at least 21 years of age to carry a concealed handgun in the Commonwealth, provided (i) the issuing authority provides the means for instantaneous verification of the validity of all such permits or licenses issued within that state, accessible 24 hours a day, and (ii) except for the age of the permit or license holder and the type of weapon authorized to be carried, the requirements and qualifications of that state's law are adequate to prevent possession of a permit or license by persons who would be denied a permit in the Commonwealth under this section. The Superintendent of State Police shall (a) in consultation with the Office of the Attorney General determine whether states meet the requirements and qualifications of this section, (b) maintain a registry of such states on the Virginia Criminal Information Network (VCIN), and (c) make the registry available to law-enforcement officers for investigative purposes. The Superintendent of the State Police, in consultation with the Attorney General, may also enter into agreements for reciprocal recognition with any state qualifying for recognition under this subsection.

P1. Nonresidents of the Commonwealth 21 years of age or older may apply in writing to the Virginia Department of State Police for a five-year permit to carry a concealed handgun. Every applicant for a nonresident concealed handgun permit shall submit two photographs of a type and kind specified by the Department of State Police for inclusion on the permit and shall submit fingerprints on a card provided by the Department of State Police for the purpose of obtaining the applicant's state or national criminal history record. As a condition for issuance of a concealed handgun permit, the applicant shall submit to fingerprinting by his local or state law-enforcement agency and provide personal descriptive information to be forwarded with the fingerprints through the Central Criminal Records Exchange to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the purpose of obtaining criminal history record information regarding the applicant and obtaining fingerprint identification information from federal records pursuant

to criminal investigations by state and local law-enforcement agencies. The application shall be made under oath before a notary or other person qualified to take oaths on a form provided by the Department of State Police, requiring only that information necessary to determine eligibility for the permit. If the permittee is later found by the Department of State Police to be disqualified, the permit shall be revoked and the person shall return the permit after being so notified by the Department of State Police. The permit requirement and restriction provisions of subsections E and F shall apply, mutatus mutandis, to the provisions of this subsection.

The applicant shall demonstrate competence with a handgun by one of the following:

1. Completing a hunter education or hunter safety course approved by the Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fisheries or a similar agency of another state;

2. Completing any National Rifle Association firearms safety or training course;

3. Completing any firearms safety or training course or class available to the general public offered by a law-enforcement agency, junior college, college, or private or public institution or organization or firearms training school utilizing instructors certified by the National Rifle Association or the Department of Criminal Justice Services or a similar agency of another state;

4. Completing any law-enforcement firearms safety or training course or class offered for security guards, investigators, special deputies, or any division or subdivision of law enforcement or security enforcement;

5. Presenting evidence of equivalent experience with a firearm through participation in organized shooting competition approved by the Department of State Police or current military service or proof of an honorable discharge from any branch of the armed services;

6. Obtaining or previously having held a license to carry a firearm in ~~this~~ the Commonwealth or a locality thereof, unless such license has been revoked for cause;

7. Completing any firearms training or safety course or class conducted by a state-certified or National Rifle Association-certified firearms instructor;

8. Completing any governmental police agency firearms training course and qualifying to carry a firearm in the course of normal police duties; or

9. Completing any other firearms training that the Virginia Department of State Police deems adequate.

A photocopy of a certificate of completion of any such course or class, an affidavit from the instructor, school, club, organization, or group that conducted or taught such course or class attesting to the completion of the course or class by the applicant, or a copy of any document which shows completion of the course or class or evidences participation in firearms competition shall satisfy the requirement for demonstration of competence with a handgun.

The Department of State Police may charge a fee not to exceed \$100 to cover the cost of the background check and issuance of the permit. Any fees collected shall be deposited in a special account to be used to offset the costs of administering the nonresident concealed handgun permit program. The Department of State Police shall enter the permittee's name and description in the Virginia Criminal Information Network so that the permit's existence and current status are known to law-enforcement personnel accessing the Network for investigative purposes.

The permit to carry a concealed handgun shall contain only the following information: name, address, date of birth, gender, height, weight, color of hair, color of eyes, and photograph of the permittee; the signature of the Superintendent of the Virginia Department of State Police or his designee; the date of issuance; and the expiration date. The person to whom the permit is issued shall have such permit on his person at all times when he is carrying a concealed handgun in the Commonwealth and shall display the permit on demand by a law-enforcement officer.

The Superintendent of the State Police shall promulgate regulations, pursuant to the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq.), for the implementation of an application process for obtaining a nonresident concealed handgun permit.

Q. A valid concealed handgun permit issued by the State of Maryland shall be valid in the Commonwealth provided, (i) the holder of the permit is licensed in the State of Maryland to perform duties substantially similar to those performed by Virginia branch pilots licensed pursuant to Chapter 9 (§ 54.1-900 et seq.) of Title 54.1 and is performing such duties while in the Commonwealth, and (ii) the holder of the permit is 21 years of age or older.

R. For the purposes of participation in concealed handgun reciprocity agreements with other jurisdictions, the official government-issued law-enforcement identification card issued to an active-duty law-enforcement officer in the Commonwealth who is exempt from obtaining a concealed handgun permit under this section shall be deemed a concealed handgun permit.

S. The provisions of this statute or the application thereof to any person or circumstances that are held invalid shall not affect the validity of other provisions or applications of this statute that can be given effect without the invalid provisions or applications. This subsection is to reiterate § 1-17.1 and is not meant to add to or subtract from that provision.

§ 19.2-5. Meaning of certain terms.

In the construction of this title and of each section thereof, the rules of construction set forth in Chapter 2 (§ 1-10 et seq.) of Title 1 shall be observed, unless such construction would be inconsistent with the manifest intent of the General Assembly.

The word *As used in this title, unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context in which it appears:*

"Court" as used in this title, unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context in which it appears, shall mean means and include any court vested with appropriate jurisdiction under the Constitution and laws of this the Commonwealth.

The word "Judge" as used in this title, unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context in which it appears, shall mean means and include any judge, associate judge or substitute judge, or magistrate, of any court.

The words "Courts Court not of record," and "district court" as used in this title, unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context in which they appear, shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in Chapter 4.1 (§ 16.1-69.1 et seq.) of Title 16.1.

§ 19.2-95. Rights of accused persons; application for writ of habeas corpus.

No person arrested upon such warrant shall be delivered over to the agent whom the executive authority demanding him shall have appointed to receive him unless he shall first be taken forthwith before a judge of a circuit or general district court in this the Commonwealth, who shall inform him of the demand made for his surrender and of the crime with which he is charged, and that he has the right to demand and procure legal counsel; and if the prisoner or his counsel shall state that he or they desire to test the legality of his arrest, the judge or trial justice shall fix a reasonable time to be allowed him within which to apply for a writ of habeas corpus. When such writ is applied for, notice thereof and of the time and place of hearing thereon shall be given to the attorney for the Commonwealth of the county or city in which the arrest is made and in which the accused is in custody, and to the agent of the demanding state.

§ 21-119. Sanitary districts are special taxing districts; nature of improvements; jurisdiction of governing bodies, etc., not affected.

A. Each sanitary district created or purported to be created by an order of the circuit court of any county of this the Commonwealth, or a judge thereof, heretofore or hereafter made and entered pursuant to any general law of this the Commonwealth, is hereby determined to be and is hereby made, from and after the date of such creation or purported creation, a special taxing district for the purposes for which created; and any improvements heretofore or hereafter made by or for any such district are hereby determined to be general tax improvements and of general benefit to all of the property within the sanitary district, as distinct from peculiar or special benefits to some or all of the property within the sanitary district.

B. Neither the creation of the sanitary districts as special taxing districts nor any other provision in this chapter shall in any wise affect the authority, power and jurisdiction of the respective county governing bodies, sheriffs, treasurers, commissioners of the revenue, circuit courts, clerks, trial justices judges, justices of the peace magistrates or any other county, district or state officer over the area embraced in any such district, nor shall the same restrict or affect in any way any county, or the governing body of any county, from imposing on and collecting from abutting landowners, or other landowners receiving special or peculiar benefits, in any such district, taxes or assessments for local public improvements as permitted by the Constitution and by other statutes of the Commonwealth.

C. Notwithstanding subsections A and B of this section, the board of supervisors of any county with a population between 15,400 and 15,950 may impose on, and collect from, landowners abutting a street being improved by the sanitary district a user fee for such service. Such fee may be enforced as provided in § 21-118.4.

§ 22.1-208.01. Character education required.

A. Each school board shall establish, within its existing programs, a character education program in its schools. The purpose of the character education program shall be to instill in students civic virtues and personal character traits so as to improve the learning environment, promote student achievement, reduce disciplinary problems, and develop civic-minded students of high character. The components of each program shall be developed in cooperation with the students, their parents, and the community at large. The basic character traits taught may include (i) trustworthiness, including honesty, integrity, reliability, and loyalty; (ii) respect, including the precepts of the Golden Rule, tolerance, and courtesy; (iii) responsibility, including hard work, economic self-reliance, accountability, diligence, perseverance, and self-control; (iv) fairness, including justice, consequences of bad behavior, principles of nondiscrimination, and freedom from prejudice; (v) caring, including kindness, empathy, compassion, consideration, generosity, and charity; and (vi) citizenship, including patriotism, the Pledge of Allegiance, respect for the American flag, concern for the common good, respect for authority and the law, and community-mindedness.

1781 Classroom instruction may be used to supplement a character education program; however, each
1782 program shall be interwoven into the school procedures and environment and structured to instruct
1783 primarily through example, illustration, and participation, in such a way as to complement the Standards
1784 of Learning.

1785 This provision is intended to educate students regarding those core civic values and virtues which are
1786 efficacious to civilized society and are common to the diverse social, cultural, and religious groups of
1787 the Commonwealth. Consistent with this purpose, Virginia's civic values, which are the principles
1788 articulated in the Bill of Rights (Article I) of the Constitution of Virginia and the ideals reflected in the
1789 seal of the Commonwealth, as described in § ~~7.1-261-500~~, may be taught as representative of such civic
1790 values. Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring or authorizing the indoctrination in any particular
1791 religious or political belief.

1792 B. The Board of Education shall establish criteria for character education programs, consistent with
1793 the provisions of this section. To assist school divisions in implementing character education programs
1794 and practices that are designed to promote the development of personal qualities as set forth in this
1795 section and the Standards of Quality and that will improve family and community involvement in the
1796 public schools, the Board of Education shall also establish, within the Department of Education, the
1797 Commonwealth Character Initiative. The Board shall provide resources and technical assistance to school
1798 divisions regarding successful character education programs and shall (i) identify and analyze effective
1799 character education programs and practices and (ii) collect and disseminate among school divisions
1800 information regarding such programs and practices and potential funding and support sources. The Board
1801 may also provide resources supporting professional development for administrators and teachers in the
1802 delivery of any character education programs.

1803 C. The Board of Education shall award, with such funds as are appropriated for this purpose, grants
1804 to school boards for the implementation of innovative character education programs.

1805 § 22.1-212.1. Obligations of school boards.

1806 Pursuant to § ~~7.1-421-511~~, school boards shall have no obligation to teach the standard curriculum,
1807 except courses in foreign languages, in a language other than English. School boards shall endeavor to
1808 provide instruction in the English language which shall be designed to promote the education of students
1809 for whom English is a second language.

1810 § 28.2-1205. Permits for the use of state-owned bottomlands.

1811 A. When determining whether to grant or deny any permit for the use of state-owned bottomlands,
1812 the Commission shall be guided in its deliberations by the provisions of Article XI, Section I of the
1813 Constitution of Virginia. In addition to other factors, the Commission shall also consider the public and
1814 private benefits of the proposed project and shall exercise its authority under this section consistent with
1815 the public trust doctrine as defined by the common law of the Commonwealth adopted pursuant to
1816 § ~~4-101-200~~ in order to protect and safeguard the public right to the use and enjoyment of the
1817 subaqueous lands of the Commonwealth held in trust by it for the benefit of the people as conferred by
1818 the public trust doctrine and the Constitution of Virginia. The Commission shall also consider the
1819 project's effect on the following:

1820 1. Other reasonable and permissible uses of state waters and state-owned bottomlands;

1821 2. Marine and fisheries resources of the Commonwealth;

1822 3. Tidal wetlands, except when this has or will be determined under the provisions of Chapter 13 of
1823 this title;

1824 4. Adjacent or nearby properties;

1825 5. Water quality; and

1826 6. Submerged aquatic vegetation (SAV).

1827 B. The Commission shall consult with other state agencies, including the Virginia Institute of Marine
1828 Science, the State Water Control Board, the Virginia Department of Transportation, and the State
1829 Corporation Commission, whenever the Commission's decision on a permit application relates to or
1830 affects the particular concerns or activities of those agencies.

1831 C. No permit for a marina or boatyard for commercial use shall be granted until the owner or other
1832 applicant presents to the Commission a plan for sewage treatment or disposal facilities that has been
1833 approved by the State Department of Health.

1834 D. A permit is required and shall be issued by the Commission for placement of any private pier
1835 measuring 100 or more feet in length from the mean low-water mark, which is used for noncommercial
1836 purposes by an owner of the riparian land in the waters opposite the land, and that traverses
1837 commercially productive leased oyster or clam grounds, as defined in § 28.2-630, provided that the pier
1838 does not extend beyond the navigation line established by the Commission or the United States Army
1839 Corps of Engineers. The permit may reasonably prescribe the design and location of the pier for the sole
1840 purpose of minimizing the adverse impact on such oyster or clam grounds or the harvesting or
1841 propagation of oysters or clams therefrom. The permit shall contain no other conditions or requirements.
1842 Unless information or circumstances materially alter the conditions under which the permit would be

issued, the Commission shall act within 90 days of receipt of a complete joint permit application to approve or deny the application. If the Commission fails to act within that time, the application shall be deemed approved and the applicant shall be notified of the deemed approval.

E. All permits issued by the Commission for the use of state-owned bottomlands pursuant to § 28.2-1204, or to recover underwater historic property shall be in writing and specify the conditions and terms that the Commission determines are appropriate, and royalties unless prohibited under other provisions of this chapter.

F. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Commission under this section is entitled to judicial review in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq.). However, any decision made by the Commission hereunder consistent with the public trust doctrine as defined by the common law of the Commonwealth adopted pursuant to § 1-401-200 shall not be deemed to have been made pursuant to the police power. No person shall reapply for the same or substantially similar use of the bottomlands within 12 months of the denial of a permit by the Commission. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to deprive a riparian landowner of such rights as he may have under common law.

§ 30-13. Other duties of Clerk of House of Delegates; publication of proposed amendments to Constitution.

In addition to such duties as may be prescribed by the rules of the House of Delegates, the Clerk thereof of the House of Delegates shall at the end of the session of the General Assembly cause to be prepared prepare a well-arranged index to the journal of the House and the documents printed during the session by order of the House. He shall cause to be printed have published, with the acts and joint resolutions proposing amendments to the Constitution: joint resolutions providing for studies for legislation of each session of the General Assembly; the unadjusted United States decennial census counts for the Commonwealth's counties, cities, and towns; and a carefully prepared and well-arranged index of the acts and joint resolutions.

The Clerk of the House of Delegates shall cause to be have published all proposed amendments to the Constitution. Such publications shall be done as follows: He shall have printed copies for distribution for distribution from his office and to the clerk of the circuit court of each county and city two copies of such the proposed amendments, one of which shall be posted at the front door of the courthouse and the other shall be made available for public inspection by any citizen who may apply therefor. Every such clerk of the circuit court shall complete the posting hereby required not later than three months prior to the next ensuing general election of members of the House of Delegates and shall make return thereof certify such posting to the Clerk of the House of Delegates upon the completion of such posting. All costs, the payment of which is not hereinabove provided for, shall be certified by the Clerk of the House of Delegates to the Comptroller for payment. The Clerk of the House of Delegates shall make report of to the General Assembly at its next regular session the action taken by him under this paragraph to the next succeeding General Assembly session, including the costs incurred in the printing and distribution of the amendments. The report shall be published in the Journal of the House of Delegates.

§ 30-14. Clerk to be Keeper of the Rolls; other duties.

The Clerk of the House of Delegates shall be the Keeper of Rolls of the Commonwealth. As such, heHe shall cause enroll all of the acts of the General Assembly and joint resolutions proposing amendments to the Constitution to be enrolled on substantial paper, of uniform size, either by the use of pen and ink, typewriter, printing or lithographing, or by such other permanent and substantial method or methods as he may deem proper; and shall have the enrolled acts bound for publication after they shall have been signed by the President of the Senate and Speaker of the House of Delegates; he shall cause the same to be bound in durable style and the President of the Senate.

He The Clerk of the House of Delegates shall have the custody of the acts and joint resolutions of the General Assembly, and the records and papers of the House of Delegates; and, when required, shall furnish a copy of any or any part of any of them, or of any section or sections of the Code in the form published pursuant to § 30-148; which copy, being certified by him shall be evidence for any purpose for which the original would be received, and with as much effect. If an act or part of an act of the General Assembly has been codified and assigned a section number as a part of the Code of Virginia, by the Virginia Code Commission pursuant to § 30-148, he may also certify that fact.

He shall, as soon as practicable after every act is passed, prepare the same acts for publication, and with a notation of the day upon which every act was approved by the Governor or became law without his approval. He shall furnish to the Director of the Division of Legislative Automated Systems the manuscript of all acts of the General Assembly and joint resolutions proposing amendments to the Constitution and joint resolutions providing for studies for legislation, or a copy thereof, properly arranged for being printed. And he shall, for publication. As soon as practicable after the adjournment of the General Assembly, he shall furnish the index and the tables required by law and the date of

adjournment of the session, and shall superintend the publication of such acts, joint resolutions, resolutions, date of adjournment, tables and index, in connection with the Director of the Division of Legislative Automated Systems.

§ 30-15.1:1. Use of Senate armorial bearings; penalty.

The armorial bearings adopted by the Senate of Virginia as their official armorial bearings shall carry the following protections on their use:

1. Only current and former members of the Senate of Virginia and the Clerk of the Senate shall have the authority to utilize such armorial bearings or any facsimile or representations of the armorial bearings.

2. Representations of such armorial bearings used by former members of the Senate shall be colored blue.

3. Such use shall not be for any commercial purpose.

4. Any person violating the provisions of subdivision 1 shall be guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor. Any person violating the provisions of subdivisions 2 and 3 shall be guilty of a Class 4 misdemeanor.

§ 30-28.18. Requests for drafting bills or resolutions; bills to conform to request; public access.

A. All requests for the drafting of bills or resolutions by the Division shall be submitted in person, in writing, as defined in § 1-43.32, or by voice transmission. Each request shall contain a general statement respecting the policies and purposes that the requester desires incorporated in and accomplished by the bill. All written requests shall be signed by the person submitting them. Neither the Director nor any employee of the Division shall reveal to any person outside of the Division, except to the Division of Legislative Automated Systems in fulfilling its duties as provided in § 30-34.14, the contents or nature of any request or statements except with the consent of the person signing such request. Exceptions to this general rule are as follows:

1. When the Director or an employee receives a request that is substantially the same as one previously received, he may, unless specifically directed not to do so by the person first submitting such request, so inform the person submitting the similar request;

2. Unless specifically directed otherwise, the Director or employee may reveal the nature of a request when seeking information from anyone to assist in drafting the bill; and

3. Copies of all floor substitute bills, conference committee reports, and substitute bills accompanying a conference committee report shall be placed in a secure electronic file immediately following the final drafting of the legislation and may be accessed by either the Clerk of the House of Delegates or the Clerk of the Senate or their employee designees after such legislation is offered for introduction in either house.

Bills drafted by the Division shall conform to the statements submitted with the request or any supplementary instructions submitted by the person who originally made the request.

B. All legislative drafting requests and accompanying documents shall be maintained by the Division as permanent records. Each of these separate files shall be considered the property of the requester and no one other than members of the Division staff shall have access to any such file without the specific approval of the requester. However, on the effective date of legislation drafted for the 1989 Session or thereafter, the file for a bill that was enacted, including any amendments in the nature of a substitute or conference reports that were offered for consideration shall become public property.

C. All legislative drafting requests from the Governor, a Governor's Secretary, the Lieutenant Governor, the Attorney General, or the head of any judicial, legislative, or independent agency shall be submitted to the Division on or before the same deadline applicable to members of the General Assembly for submitting legislative drafting requests for legislation to be prefiled to the Division, as established by the procedural resolution adopted by the General Assembly, or in default thereof, as adopted by the Joint Rules Committee. Requests from the Governor may also be submitted in accordance with the procedures established by the Rules Committees of the House of Delegates and the Senate for the conduct of business during a legislative session.

§ 32.1-229.01. Companies listed as proficient to perform radon screening, testing or mitigation; compliance.

A. No person shall conduct or offer to conduct any radon screening, testing or mitigation in the Commonwealth unless he has been listed as proficient by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the National Radon Measurement Proficiency Program of the National Environmental Health Association or the National Radon Safety Board Certified Radon Professional Program or any other proficiency program acceptable to the Board of Health to offer such screening, testing or mitigation.

For the purposes of this article, "person" shall be defined as provided in § 1-43.191-230.

B. Radon professionals listed as proficient pursuant to subsection A shall comply with the radon mitigation and testing standards outlined in the Environmental Protection Agency's publication, EPA 402-R-93-078, as revised, or the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM International) Standard, E-2121-02, or any other radon testing and mitigation standards accepted by the Environmental Protection Agency and the Board.

§ 32.1-325.1:1. Definitions; recovery of overpayment for medical assistance services.

A. For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

"Agreement" means any contract executed for the delivery of services to recipients of medical assistance pursuant to subdivision D 2 of § 32.1-325.

"Successor in interest" means any person as defined in § 1-13.191-230 having stockholders, directors, officers, or partners in common with a health care provider for which an agreement has been terminated.

"Termination" means (i) the cessation of operations by a provider, (ii) the sale or transfer of the provider, (iii) the reorganization or restructuring of the health care provider, or (iv) the termination of an agreement by either party.

B. The Director of Medical Assistance Services shall collect by any means available to him at law any amount owed to the Commonwealth because of overpayment for medical assistance services. Upon making an initial determination that an overpayment has been made to the provider pursuant to § 32.1-325.1, the Director shall notify the provider of the amount of the overpayment. Such initial determination shall be made within the earlier of (i) four years, or (ii) ~~fifteen~~ 15 months after filing of the final cost report by the provider subsequent to sale of the facility or termination of the provider. The provider shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Director to repay the amount due. If the provider fails or refuses to make arrangements satisfactory to the Director for such repayment or fails or refuses to repay the Commonwealth for the amount due for overpayment in a timely manner, the Director may devise a schedule for reducing the Medicaid reimbursement due to any successor in interest.

C. In any case in which the Director is unable to recover the amount due for overpayment pursuant to subsection B, he shall not enter into another agreement with the responsible provider or any person who is the transferee, assignee, or successor in interest to such provider unless (i) he receives satisfactory assurances of repayment of all amounts due or (ii) the agreement with the provider is necessary in order to ensure that Medicaid recipients have access to the covered services rendered by the provider.

Further, to the extent consistent with federal and state law, the Director shall not enter into any agreement with a provider having any stockholder possessing a material financial interest, partner, director, officer, or owner in common with a provider which has terminated a previous agreement for participation in the medical assistance services program without making satisfactory arrangements to repay all outstanding Medicaid overpayment.

D. The provisions of this section shall not apply to successors in interest with respect to transfer of a medical care facility pursuant to contracts entered into before February 1, 1990.

§ 33.1-12. General powers and duties of Board, etc.; definitions.

The Commonwealth Transportation Board shall be vested with the following powers and shall have the following duties:

(1) Location of routes. - To locate and establish the routes to be followed by the roads comprising systems of state highways between the points designated in the establishment of such systems.

(2) Construction and maintenance contracts and activities related to passenger and freight rail and public transportation.

(a) To let all contracts for the construction, maintenance, and improvement of the roads comprising systems of state highways and for all activities related to passenger and freight rail and public transportation in excess of \$2 million. The Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner shall have authority to let all contracts for highway construction, maintenance, and improvements up to \$2 million in value. The Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation shall have the authority to let contracts for passenger and freight rail and public transportation improvements up to \$2 million in value. The Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner is authorized to enter into agreements with localities, authorities, and transportation districts to administer projects and to allow those localities, authorities, and transportation districts to let contracts up to \$2 million in value for highway construction, maintenance, and improvements within their jurisdictions. The Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation is authorized to enter into agreements with localities, authorities, and transportation districts to administer projects and to allow those localities, authorities, and transportation districts to let contracts up to \$2 million in value for passenger and freight rail and public transportation activities within their jurisdictions. The Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner and the Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation shall report on their respective transportation contracting activities at least quarterly to the Board.

(b) The Commonwealth Transportation Board may award contracts for the construction of transportation projects on a design-build basis. The Board may annually award five design-build contracts valued no more than \$20 million. The Board may also award design-build contracts valued more than \$20 million, provided that no more than five of these latter contracts are in force at the same time. These contracts may be awarded after a written determination is made by the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner or the Director of the Department of Rail and Public Transportation,

2027 pursuant to objective criteria previously adopted by the Board regarding the use of design-build, that
2028 delivery of the projects must be expedited and that it is not in the public interest to comply with the
2029 design and construction contracting procedures normally followed. Such objective criteria will include
2030 requirements for prequalification of contractors and competitive bidding processes. These contracts shall
2031 be of such size and scope to encourage maximum competition and participation by agency prequalified
2032 and otherwise qualified contractors. Such determination shall be retained for public inspection in the
2033 official records of the Department of Transportation or the Department of Rail and Public
2034 Transportation, as the case may be, and shall include a description of the nature and scope of the project
2035 and the reasons for the Commissioner's or Director's determination that awarding a design-build contract
2036 will best serve the public interest. The provisions of this section shall supersede contrary provisions of
2037 subdivision 2 of subsection C of § 11-41 and § 11-41.2.

2038 (c) For transportation construction projects valued in excess of \$100 million, the Commonwealth
2039 Transportation Board shall require that a financial plan be prepared. This plan shall include, but not be
2040 limited to, the following: (i) a complete cost estimate for all major project elements; (ii) an
2041 implementation plan with the project schedule and cost-to-complete information presented for each year;
2042 (iii) identified revenues by funding source available each year to meet project costs; and (iv) a detailed
2043 cash-flow analysis for each year of the proposed project.

2044 (3) Traffic regulations. - To make rules and regulations, from time to time, not in conflict with the
2045 laws of ~~this~~ the Commonwealth, for the protection of and covering traffic on and the use of systems of
2046 state highways and to add to, amend or repeal the same.

2047 (4) Naming highways. - To give suitable names to state highways and change the names of any
2048 highways forming a part of the systems of state highways, except such roads as have been or may
2049 hereafter be named by the General Assembly.

2050 (5) Compliance with federal acts. - To comply fully with the provisions of the present or future
2051 federal aid acts. The Board may enter into all contracts or agreements with the United States
2052 government and may do all other things necessary to carry out fully the cooperation contemplated and
2053 provided for by present or future acts of Congress in the area of transportation.

2054 (6) Information and statistics. - To gather and tabulate information and statistics relating to
2055 transportation and disseminate the same throughout the Commonwealth. In addition, the Commissioner
2056 shall provide a report to the Governor, the General Assembly, the Commonwealth Transportation Board,
2057 and the public concerning the current status of all highway construction projects in the Commonwealth.
2058 This report shall be posted at least four times each fiscal year, but may be updated more often as
2059 circumstances allow. The report shall contain, at a minimum, the following information for every project
2060 in the Six-Year Improvement Program: (i) project description; (ii) total cost estimate; (iii) funds
2061 expended to date; (iv) project timeline and completion date; (v) statement of whether project is ahead of,
2062 on, or behind schedule; and (vi) the name of the prime contractor. Use of one or more Internet websites
2063 may be used to satisfy this requirement. Project specific information posted on the Internet shall be
2064 updated daily as information is available.

2065 (7) Policies and operation of Departments. - To review and approve policies and transportation
2066 objectives of the Department of Transportation and the Department of Rail and Public Transportation, to
2067 assist in establishing such policies and objectives, to oversee the execution thereof, and to report thereon
2068 to the Commonwealth Transportation Commissioner and the Director of the Department of Rail and
2069 Public Transportation, respectively.

2070 (8) Cooperation with other agencies and local governments.

2071 (a) To cooperate with the federal government, the American Association of State Highway and
2072 Transportation Officials and any other organization in the numbering, signing and marking of highways,
2073 in the taking of measures for the promotion of highway safety, in research activities, in the preparation
2074 of standard specifications, in the testing of highway materials and otherwise with respect to
2075 transportation projects.

2076 (b) To offer technical assistance and coordinate state resources to work with local governments, upon
2077 their request, in developing sound transportation components for their local comprehensive plans.

2078 (9) Transportation.

2079 (a) To monitor and, where necessary, approve actions taken by the Department of Rail and Public
2080 Transportation pursuant to Chapter 10.1 (§ 33.1-391.1 et seq.) of this title in order to ensure the efficient
2081 and economical development of public transportation, the enhancement of rail transportation, and the
2082 coordination of such rail and public transportation plans with highway programs.

2083 (b) To coordinate the planning for financing of transportation needs, including needs for highways,
2084 railways, seaports, airports, and public transportation and to set aside funds as provided in
2085 § 33.1-23.03:1. To allocate funds for these needs pursuant to §§ 33.1-23.1 and 58.1-638, the Board shall
2086 adopt a Six-Year Improvement Program of anticipated projects and programs by July 1 of each year.
2087 This program shall be based on the most recent official Transportation Trust Fund revenue forecast and
2088 shall be consistent with a debt management policy adopted by the Board in consultation with the Debt

Capacity Advisory Committee and the Department of the Treasury.

(c) To recommend to the General Assembly for their consideration at the next session of the General Assembly, objective criteria to be used by the Board in selecting those transportation projects to be advanced from the feasibility to the construction stage. If such criteria are enacted into law, such objectives shall apply to the interstate, primary, and urban systems of highways.

(d) To enter into contracts with local districts, commissions, agencies, or other entities created for transportation purposes.

(10) Contracts with other states. - To enter into all contracts with other states necessary for the proper coordination of the location, construction, maintenance, improvement and operation of transportation systems, including the systems of state highways with the highways of such other states and, where necessary, to seek the approval of such contracts by the Congress of the United States.

(11) Use of funds. - To administer, distribute, and allocate funds in the Transportation Trust Fund as provided by law.

(12) Financial and investment advisors. - With the advice of the Secretary of Finance and the State Treasurer, to engage a financial advisor and investment advisor who may be anyone within or without the government of the Commonwealth, to assist in planning and making decisions concerning the investment of funds and the use of bonds for transportation purposes. The work of these advisors shall be coordinated with the Secretary of Finance and the State Treasurer.

(13) The powers of the Virginia Aviation Board set out in Chapter 1 (§ 5.1-1 et seq.) of Title 5.1 and the Virginia Port Authority set out in Chapter 10 (§ 62.1-128 et seq.) of Title 62.1 are in no way diminished by the provisions of this title.

(14) To enter into payment agreements with the Treasury Board related to payments on bonds issued by the Commonwealth Transportation Board.

(15) Outdoor theaters. - By regulation:

(a) To prevent the erection of moving picture screens of outdoor theaters in such a manner as to be ordinarily visible from any highway;

(b) To require that a sufficient space is left between any highway and the entrance to any outdoor theater to prevent congestion on the highway; and

(c) To require that outdoor theater entrances and exits are adequately lighted and marked.

~~Throughout this title the term "systems of state highways" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto by § 1-13.40.~~

The term "public transportation" or "mass transit" as used in this title means passenger transportation by rubber-tired, rail, or other surface conveyance which provides shared ride services open to the general public on a regular and continuing basis. The term does not include school buses; charter or sight-seeing service; vehicular ferry service which serves as a link in the highway network; or human service agency or other client-restricted transportation.

§ 33.1-320.2. Preamble; Woodrow Wilson Bridge and Tunnel Compact.

Whereas, traffic congestion imposes serious economic burdens on the metropolitan Washington, D.C., area, costing each commuter an estimated \$1,000 per year; and

Whereas, the volume of traffic in the metropolitan Washington, D.C., area is expected to increase by more than 70 percent between 1990 and 2020; and

Whereas, the deterioration of the Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge and the growing population of the metropolitan Washington, D.C., area contribute significantly to traffic congestion; and

Whereas, the Bridge serves as a vital link in the Interstate Highway System and in the Northeast corridor; and

Whereas, identifying alternative methods for maintaining this vital link of the Interstate System is critical to addressing the traffic congestion of the area; and

Whereas, the Bridge is the only drawbridge in the metropolitan Washington, D.C., area on the Interstate System; and

Whereas, the Bridge is the only segment of the Capital Beltway with only six lanes; and

Whereas, the Bridge is the only segment of the Capital Beltway with a remaining expected life of less than 10 years; and

Whereas, the Bridge is the only part of the Interstate Highway System owned by the federal government; and

Whereas, the Bridge was constructed by the federal government; and

Whereas, prior to the date of the enactment of this Act, the federal government will have contributed 100 percent of the cost of building and rehabilitating the Bridge; and

Whereas, the federal government has a continuing responsibility to fund future costs associated with the upgrading of the Interstate Route 95 crossing, including the rehabilitation and construction of the Bridge; and

Whereas, the Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge Coordination Committee is undertaking planning

2150 studies pertaining to the Bridge, consistent with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42
2151 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.) and other applicable federal laws; and

2152 Whereas, the transfer of ownership of the Bridge to a regional authority under the terms and
2153 conditions described in this Act would foster regional transportation planning efforts to identify solutions
2154 to the growing problem of traffic congestion on and around the Bridge; and

2155 Whereas, the Authority shall maximize the use of existing public or private sector entities to provide
2156 necessary project services, including management, construction, legal, accounting, and operating services
2157 and not create a new bureaucracy or organizational structure; and

2158 Whereas, any material change to the Bridge must take into account the interests of nearby
2159 communities, the commuting public, federal, state, and local government organizations, and other
2160 affected groups; and

2161 Whereas, a commission of congressional, state, and local officials and transportation representatives
2162 has recommended to the Secretary of the United States Department of Transportation that the Bridge be
2163 transferred to an independent authority to be established by the State of Maryland, the District of
2164 Columbia and the Commonwealth of Virginia; now, therefore,

2165 The State of Maryland, the District of Columbia and the Commonwealth of Virginia, hereinafter
2166 referred to as the signatories, do hereby covenant and agree as follows:

2167 WOODROW WILSON BRIDGE AND TUNNEL COMPACT.

2168 CHAPTER I.

2169 GENERAL COMPACT PROVISIONS.

2170 Article I.

2171 Authority Created.

2172 There is hereby created the Woodrow Wilson Bridge and Tunnel Authority, hereinafter referred to as
2173 the "Authority."

2174 Article II.

2175 Powers and Duties.

2176 The Authority shall be an instrumentality and common agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the
2177 District of Columbia and the State of Maryland, and shall have the powers and duties set forth in this
2178 compact and such additional powers and duties as may be conferred upon it by subsequent action of the
2179 signatories.

2180 Article III.

2181 Board; Terms of Office; Officers.

2182 1. The Authority shall be governed by a board of nine voting and two nonvoting members appointed
2183 as follows:

- 2184 a. Three members shall be appointed by the Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia;
2185 b. Three members shall be appointed by the Governor of the State of Maryland;
2186 c. Two members shall be appointed by concurrence of the Mayor of the District of Columbia and the
2187 Governors of Maryland and Virginia;
2188 d. One member shall be appointed by the U.S. Secretary of Transportation; and
2189 e. Two additional members, who shall be nonvoting members, shall be appointed by the Mayor of
2190 the District of Columbia.

2191 2. Members, other than members who are elected officials, shall have backgrounds in finance,
2192 construction lending, and infrastructure policy disciplines. At least one member of the Board from
2193 Maryland and one member of the Board from Virginia shall be elected officials each of whom
2194 represents a political subdivision that has jurisdiction over the area at an end of the project bridge,
2195 bridges or tunnels.

2196 3. No person in the employment of or holding any official relationship to any person or company
2197 doing business with the Authority, or having any interest of any nature in any such person or company
2198 or affiliate or associate thereof, shall be eligible for appointment as a member or to serve as an
2199 employee of the Authority or to have any power or duty or receive any compensation in relation thereto.

2200 4. The Chairperson of the Authority shall be elected from among the voting members on a biennial
2201 basis.

2202 5. The members may also elect a secretary and a treasurer, or a secretary-treasurer, who may be
2203 members of the Authority, and prescribe their duties and powers.

2204 6. Each member shall serve a six-year term, except that each signatory shall make its initial
2205 appointments as follows:

- 2206 a. One member appointed by the Governor of Maryland and one member appointed by the Governor
2207 of Virginia shall each be appointed for a six-year term;
2208 b. One member appointed by the Governor of Maryland and one member appointed by the Governor
2209 of Virginia shall each be appointed for a four-year term;
2210 c. One member appointed by the Governor of Maryland and one member appointed by the Governor
2211 of Virginia shall each be appointed for a two-year term;

d. One member appointed by concurrence of the Governors of Maryland and Virginia and the Mayor of the District of Columbia shall be appointed for a six-year term;

e. One member appointed by concurrence of the Governors of Maryland and Virginia and the Mayor of the District of Columbia shall be appointed for a four-year term; and

f. The member appointed by the U.S. Secretary of Transportation shall be appointed for a two-year term.

g. The initial terms of the nonvoting members appointed by the Mayor of the District of Columbia shall be as follows:

(1) One member shall be appointed for a six-year term; and

(2) One member shall be appointed for a four-year term.

7. The failure of a signatory or the Secretary of Transportation to appoint one or more members shall not impair the Authority's creation or operations when the signatories and Authority are in compliance with the other terms of this compact.

8. Any person appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term. A member of the Authority may not serve for more than two full terms.

9. The members of the Authority, including nonvoting members, shall not be personally liable for any act done or action taken in their capacities as members of the Authority, nor shall they be personally liable for any bond, note, or other evidence of indebtedness issued by the Authority.

10. Six members shall constitute a quorum, with the following exceptions:

a. Seven affirmative votes shall be required to approve bond issues and the annual budget of the Authority.

b. A motion may not be approved if all three members appointed solely by one Governor cast negative votes.

11. Any sole source procurement of goods, services, or construction in excess of \$250,000 shall require the prior approval of a majority of all of the voting members of the Authority.

12. Members shall serve without compensation and shall reside within the Washington, D.C., metropolitan area. Members shall be entitled to reimbursement for their expenses incurred in attending the meetings of the Authority and while otherwise engaged in the discharge of their duties as members of the Authority.

13. The Authority may employ such engineering, technical, legal, clerical, and other personnel on a regular, part-time, or consulting basis as in its judgment may be necessary for the discharge of its duties. The Authority shall not be bound by any statute or regulation of any signatory in the employment or discharge of any officer or employee of the Authority, except that Article 3 (§ 40.1-58 et seq.) of Chapter 4 of Title 40.1 of the Code of Virginia shall be applicable to employees whose situs of employment is in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

14. a. The Authority shall establish its office for the conduct of its affairs at a location to be determined by the Authority and shall publish rules and regulations governing the conduct of its operations.

b. (1) The Authority may adopt rules and regulations which shall include, but shall not be limited to, an ethics code, public access to information, administrative procedures, and open meetings and shall be consistent with similar practices currently adopted in Maryland, Virginia, or the District of Columbia.

(2) The Authority may adopt regulations after publication of notice of intention to adopt such regulations published in a newspaper of general circulation in the metropolitan Washington, D.C., area and after an opportunity for public comment.

(3) The Authority shall also publish a notice to adopt such regulations in the Maryland Register and in the Virginia Register.

Article IV.

Signatories; Taxing Powers.

Nothing herein shall be construed to amend, alter, or in any way affect the power of the signatories and their political subdivisions to levy and collect taxes on property or income or upon the sale of any material, equipment, or supplies or to levy, assess, and collect franchise or other similar taxes or fees for the licensing of vehicles and the operation thereof.

Article V.

Adoption of Compact by Signatories; Withdrawal; Cooperation.

1. This compact shall be adopted by the signatories in the manner provided by law. This compact shall become effective after the State of Maryland and the District of Columbia have passed acts similar in substance to this Act.

2. Any signatory may withdraw from the compact upon one year's written notice to that effect to the other signatories. In the event of a withdrawal of one of the signatories from the compact, the compact shall be terminated; provided, however, that no revenue bonds, notes, or other evidence of obligation issued pursuant to Article VII of Chapter II, or any other financial obligations of the Authority remain

2273 outstanding and that the withdrawing signatory has made a full accounting of its financial obligations, if
2274 any, to the other signatories.

2275 3. Upon the termination of this compact, the jurisdiction over the matters and persons covered by
2276 this compact shall revert to the signatories and the federal government, as their interests may appear.

2277 4. Each of the signatories pledges to each of the other signatory parties faithful cooperation in the
2278 development and implementation of the project.

2279 Article VI.

2280 Terms of Agreement Between Signatories.

2281 The Authority shall not undertake the ownership of the existing Woodrow Wilson Bridge, or any
2282 duties or responsibilities associated therewith, nor undertake any of the responsibilities and powers
2283 provided in this Act until the Governors of the State of Maryland and the Commonwealth of Virginia
2284 and the Mayor of the District of Columbia have entered into an agreement with the U.S. Secretary of
2285 Transportation including provisions governing the transfer of the existing Bridge from the federal
2286 government to the Authority, and which shall provide for a contractual commitment by the federal
2287 government to provide federal funding for the project, including, at a minimum, a 100 percent federal
2288 share for the following:

2289 (1) The cost of continuing rehabilitation of the Bridge until such time as the project is operational;

2290 (2) An amount, as determined by the Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge Coordination Committee,
2291 equivalent to the cost of replacing the Bridge with a comparable modern bridge designed according to
2292 current engineering standards;

2293 (3) The cost of planning, preliminary engineering and design, right-of-way acquisition, environmental
2294 studies and documentation, and final engineering for the project; and

2295 (4) A substantial contribution towards remaining project costs.

2296 Such federal funds shall be in addition to and shall not diminish the federal transportation funding
2297 allocated or apportioned to the Commonwealth of Virginia and the State of Maryland and the District of
2298 Columbia. Upon all parties' approval of this agreement, this compact shall become effective and the
2299 Authority shall have responsibility for duties concerning ownership, construction, operation, and
2300 maintenance of the project. At least ~~thirty~~ 30 days before the Governor of Virginia enters into the
2301 agreement described under this article, the Governor shall submit the agreement to the Commonwealth
2302 Transportation Board for its review and comment.

2303 Article VII.

2304 Management Plan.

2305 Within a reasonable period after this compact becomes effective under Article VI of this chapter, the
2306 Authority shall prepare and submit to the Governors of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the State of
2307 Maryland and the Mayor of the District of Columbia, a management plan that includes:

2308 A. An organizational structure;

2309 B. A staffing plan that includes job descriptions; and

2310 C. A proposed salary schedule consistent with existing salary schedules for similar positions in the
2311 State of Maryland, the Commonwealth of Virginia, or the District of Columbia.

2312 The Authority shall not implement the provisions of this Act until the Governors of the
2313 Commonwealth of Virginia and the State of Maryland and the Mayor of the District of Columbia have
2314 approved the management plan.

2315 Subsequent to the approval of the management plan, the Authority may increase the number of its
2316 employees and their salary levels, provided that such increases do not result in a ~~twenty~~ 20 percent
2317 increase above the level in the approved management plan. Increases in excess of ~~twenty~~ 20 percent
2318 shall require an amendment to the approved management plan. A proposed amendment shall be
2319 submitted to and approved by the Governors of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the State of
2320 Maryland and the Mayor of the District of Columbia prior to becoming effective.

2321 In the conduct of its responsibilities and duties, the Authority shall maximize the use of existing
2322 public and private sector entities to provide necessary services, including management, construction,
2323 legal, accounting, and other services, as the Authority may deem necessary.

2324 Article VIII.

2325 Jurisdiction of Courts; Liability for Contracts and Torts.

2326 1. Except as provided herein, the Authority shall be liable for its contracts and for its torts and those
2327 of its directors, officers, employees, and agents. For tort actions arising out of conduct occurring in
2328 Maryland, Maryland tort and sovereign immunity law shall apply. The exclusive remedy for such breach
2329 of contracts and torts for which the Authority shall be liable, as herein provided, shall be by suit against
2330 the Authority. Nothing contained in this Act shall be construed as a waiver by Maryland, the District of
2331 Columbia, or Virginia of any immunity from suit.

2332 2. The United States district courts shall have original jurisdiction, concurrent with the courts of
2333 Virginia, the District of Columbia, and Maryland, of all actions brought by or against the Authority.
2334 Any such action initiated in a state court or the superior court of the District of Columbia shall be

removable to the appropriate United States district court in the manner provided by act of June 25, 1948, as amended (28 U.S.C. § 1446).

3. If any part or provision of this compact or the application thereof to any person or circumstances be adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision or application directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall have been rendered and shall not affect or impair the validity of the remainder of this compact or the application thereof to other persons or circumstances, and the signatories hereby declare that they would have entered into this compact or the remainder thereof had the invalidity of such provision or application thereof been apparent.

4. This compact shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes for which it is created.

CHAPTER II.

ADDITIONAL POWERS; FINANCING; PROPERTY ACQUISITION; PROCUREMENT.

Article I.

Definitions.

As used in this Act the following words shall have the following meanings:

"Bonds" or "revenue bonds" means bonds and notes or refunding bonds and notes or bond anticipation notes or other obligations of the Authority issued under the provisions of this Act.

"Cost," as applied to the project, means the cost of acquisition of all lands, structures, rights-of-way, franchises, easements and other property rights and interests; the cost of lease payments; the cost of construction; the cost of demolition of the current structure; the cost of demolishing, removing or relocating any buildings or structures on lands acquired, including the cost of acquiring any lands to or on which such buildings or structures may be moved, relocated, or reconstructed; the cost to relocate residents or businesses from properties acquired for the project; the cost of any extensions, enlargements, additions and improvements; the cost of all labor, materials, machinery and equipment; all financing charges, and interest on all bonds prior to and during construction; and, if deemed advisable by the Authority of such construction, the cost of engineering, financial and legal services; plans, specifications, studies, and surveys; estimates of cost and of revenues and other expenses necessary or incident to determining the feasibility or practicability of constructing the project; administrative expenses; provisions for working capital; reserves for interest and for extensions, enlargements, additions and improvements; the cost of bond insurance and other devices designed to enhance the creditworthiness of the bonds; and such other expenses as may be necessary or incidental to the construction of the project, the financing of such construction and the planning of the project in operation.

"Owner" includes all persons as defined in § 1-13.19 of the Code of Virginia having any interest or title in and to property, rights, franchises, easements and interests authorized to be acquired by this Act.

"Project" means the upgrading of the Interstate Route 95 Potomac River crossing in accord with the selected alternative developed by the Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge Coordination Committee. "Project" includes ongoing short-term rehabilitation and repair of the Bridge and may include one or more of the following:

1. Construction of a new bridge or bridges in the vicinity of the Bridge;
2. Construction of a tunnel in the vicinity of the Bridge;
3. Long-term rehabilitation or reconstruction of the Bridge;
4. Upon the bridges or within the tunnel described in subparagraphs 1, 2, and 3 of this paragraph, or in conjunction with work on Interstate Route 95 and other approach roadways as described in subparagraph 5 of this paragraph:

a. Work necessary to provide rights-of-way for a rail transit facility or bus or high occupancy vehicle lanes, including the construction or modifications of footings, piers, bridge decks, roadways, other structural support systems and related improvements; or

b. The construction of travel lanes for high occupancy vehicles or buses;

5. Work on Interstate Route 95 and other approach roadways if necessitated by, or necessary to accomplish, an activity described in subparagraph 1, 2, or 3 of this paragraph; or

6. Construction or acquisition of any building, improvement, addition, replacement, appurtenance, land, interest in land, easement, water right, air right, machinery, equipment, furnishing, landscaping, utility, roadway, or other facility that is necessitated by or necessary to accomplish an activity described in this paragraph.

Article II.

Additional Powers of the Authority.

Without in any manner limiting or restricting the powers heretofore given to the Authority, and contingent upon the execution of the agreement referred to in Chapter I, Article VI, the Authority is hereby authorized and empowered:

1. To establish, finance, construct, maintain, repair and operate the project;
2. To assume full rights of ownership of the existing Woodrow Wilson Bridge;

- 2396 3. Subject to the approval of the Governor of Maryland, the Mayor of the District of Columbia, and
2397 the Virginia Commonwealth Transportation Board of the portions of the project in their respective
2398 jurisdictions, and in accordance with the recommendations of the Woodrow Wilson Memorial Bridge
2399 Coordination Committee, to determine the location, character, size and capacity of the project; to
2400 establish, limit and control such points of ingress to and egress from the project as may be necessary or
2401 desirable in the judgment of the Authority to ensure the proper operation and maintenance of the
2402 project; and to prohibit entrance to such project from any point or points not so designated;
- 2403 4. To secure all necessary federal, state, and local authorizations, permits and approvals for the
2404 construction, maintenance, repair and operation of the project;
- 2405 5. To adopt and amend bylaws for the regulation of its affairs and the conduct of its business;
- 2406 6. To adopt and amend rules and regulations to carry out the powers granted by this section;
- 2407 7. To acquire, by purchase or condemnation, in the name of the Authority, and to hold and dispose
2408 of real and personal property for the corporate purposes of the Authority;
- 2409 8. To employ consulting engineers, a superintendent or manager of the project, and such other
2410 engineering, architectural, construction, accounting experts, inspectors, attorneys, and other employees as
2411 may be necessary; and, within the limitations prescribed in this Act, to prescribe their powers and duties,
2412 and fix their compensation;
- 2413 9. To pay, from any available moneys, the cost of plans, specifications, surveys, estimates of cost
2414 and revenues, legal fees and other expenses necessary or incident to determining the feasibility or
2415 practicability of financing, constructing, maintaining, repairing and operating the project;
- 2416 10. To issue revenue bonds of the Authority, for any of its corporate purposes, payable solely from
2417 the tolls and revenues pledged for their payment, and to refund its bonds, all as provided in this Act;
- 2418 11. To fix and revise from time to time and to charge and collect tolls and other charges for the use
2419 of the project;
- 2420 12. To make and enter into all contracts or agreements, as the Authority may determine, which are
2421 necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and to the execution of the powers granted under
2422 this Act. The Authority may contract with any governmental agency or instrumentality for services
2423 within the power of the agency or authority related to the financing, construction or operation of the
2424 facilities and services to be provided;
- 2425 13. To accept loans and grants of money, or materials or property at any time from the United States
2426 of America, the Commonwealth of Virginia, the State of Maryland, the District of Columbia or any
2427 agency or instrumentality thereof;
- 2428 14. To adopt an official seal and alter the same at its pleasure;
- 2429 15. Subject to Chapter I, Article VIII, to sue and be sued, plead and be impleaded, all in the name of
2430 the Authority;
- 2431 16. To exercise any power usually possessed by private corporations performing similar functions
2432 including the right to expend, solely from funds provided under the authority of this Act, such funds as
2433 may be considered by the Authority to be advisable or necessary in advertising its facilities and services
2434 to the traveling public;
- 2435 17. To enter into contracts with existing governmental entities in the Commonwealth of Virginia, the
2436 State of Maryland, or the District of Columbia, or with private entities, the purpose of which contracts
2437 or agreements would be to allow such parties to undertake all or portions of the project, including but
2438 not limited to design, engineering, financing, construction, and operation of the project, as the Authority
2439 may deem necessary;
- 2440 18. To establish and maintain a police force, or to enter into a contract with an existing
2441 governmental entity in the State of Maryland, the Commonwealth of Virginia, or the District of
2442 Columbia to provide police services, as the Authority may deem necessary;
- 2443 19. To enter into partnerships or grant concessions between the public and private sectors for the
2444 purpose of:
- 2445 a. Financing, constructing, maintaining, improving or operating the project; or
- 2446 b. Fostering development of new transportation-related technologies to be used in the construction or
2447 operation of the project, utilizing for such purposes the law of any signatory, as the Authority may in its
2448 sole discretion determine;
- 2449 20. To carry out or contract with other entities to carry out such maintenance of traffic activities
2450 during the construction of the project as is considered necessary by the Authority to manage traffic and
2451 minimize congestion such as public information campaigns, improvements designed to encourage
2452 appropriate use of alternative routes, use of high occupancy vehicles and transit services, and
2453 deployment and operation of intelligent transportation technologies; and
- 2454 21. To do all acts and things necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and the
2455 execution of its powers under this Act.

The Authority shall have power to construct grade separations at intersections of the project with public highways and to change and adjust the lines and grades of such highways so as to accommodate the same to the design of such grade separation. The cost of such grade separations and any damage incurred in changing and adjusting the lines and grades of such highways shall be ascertained and paid by the Authority as a part of the cost of the project.

If the Authority shall find it necessary to change the location of any portion of any public highway, it shall cause the same to be reconstructed at such location as the Authority shall deem most favorable and be of substantially the same type and in as good condition as the original highway. The cost of such reconstruction and any damage incurred in changing the location of any such highway shall be ascertained and paid by the Authority as a part of the cost of the project.

Any public highway affected by the construction of the project may be vacated or relocated by the Authority in the manner now provided by law for the vacation or relocation of public roads, and any damages awarded on account thereof shall be paid by the Authority as a part of the cost of the project.

The Authority shall also have power to make regulations for the installation, construction, maintenance, repair, renewal, relocation and removal of tracks, pipes, mains, conduits, cables, wires, towers, poles and other equipment and appliances (herein called "public utility facilities") of any public utility in, on, along, over or under the project. Whenever the Authority shall determine that it is necessary that any such public utility facilities which now are, or hereafter may be, located in, on, along, over or under the project should be relocated in the project, or should be removed from the project, the public utility owning or operating such facilities shall relocate or remove the same in accordance with the order of the Authority, provided that the cost and expenses of such relocation or removal, including the cost of installing such facilities in a new location or new locations, and the cost of any lands, or any rights or interests in lands, and any other rights, acquired to accomplish such relocation or removal, shall be ascertained and paid by the Authority as a part of the cost of the project. In case of any such relocation or removal of facilities, the public utility owning or operating the same, its successors or assigns, may maintain and operate such facilities, with the necessary appurtenances, in the new location or new locations, for as long a period, and upon the same terms and conditions, as it had the right to maintain and operate such facilities in their former location or locations.

Article IV.

Acquisition of Property.

The Authority is hereby authorized and empowered to acquire by purchase, whenever it shall deem such purchase expedient, solely from funds provided under the authority of this Act, such lands, structures, rights-of-way, property, rights, franchises, easements and other interest in lands, including lands lying under water and riparian rights, which are located within the Washington, D.C., metropolitan area, as it may deem necessary or convenient for the construction and operation of the project, upon such terms and at such prices as may be considered by it to be reasonable and can be agreed upon between it and the owner thereof; and to take title thereto in the name of the Authority.

All counties, cities, towns and other political subdivisions and all public agencies and authorities of the signatories, notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, are hereby authorized and empowered to lease, lend, grant or convey to the Authority at the Authority's request, upon such terms and conditions as the governing bodies of such counties, cities, towns, political subdivisions, agencies or authorities may deem reasonable and fair and without the necessity for any advertisement, order of court or other action or formality, other than the regular and formal action of the authorities concerned, any real property which may be necessary or convenient to the effectuation of the authorized purposes of the Authority, including public roads and other real property already devoted to public use.

Whenever a reasonable price cannot be agreed upon, or whenever the owner is legally incapacitated or is absent, unknown or unable to convey valid title, the Authority is hereby authorized and empowered to acquire by condemnation or by the exercise of the power of eminent domain any lands, property, rights, rights-of-way, franchises, easements and other property deemed necessary or convenient for the construction or the efficient operation of the project or necessary in the restoration of public or private property damaged or destroyed.

Whenever the Authority acquires property under this article, it shall comply with the applicable federal law relating to relocation and relocation assistance. If there is no applicable federal law, the Authority shall comply with the provisions of the state law of the signatory in which the property is located governing relocation and relocation assistance.

In advance of undertaking any acquisition of property or easements in Maryland or the condemnation of such property, the Authority must obtain from the Maryland Board of Public Works approval of a plan identifying the properties or easements to be obtained for the project. In advance of undertaking any acquisition of property or easements in Virginia or the condemnation of such property, the Authority must obtain from the Virginia Commonwealth Transportation Board approval of a plan identifying the properties to be obtained for the project. Condemnation proceedings shall be in accordance with the

2519 provisions of state law of the signatory in which the property is located governing condemnation by the
2520 highway agency of such state. Nothing in this act shall be construed to authorize the authority to
2521 condemn the property of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the District of Columbia, or the State of
2522 Maryland.

2523 Article V.

2524 Procurement.

2525 1. Except as provided in subdivisions 2, 3, and 6 of this article, and except in the case of
2526 procurement procedures otherwise expressly authorized by law, the Authority in conducting a
2527 procurement of goods, services, or construction shall obtain full and open competition through the use of
2528 competitive procedures in accordance with the requirements of this section and use the competitive
2529 procedure or combination of procedures that is most suitable under the circumstances of the
2530 procurement.

2531 The Authority shall solicit sealed bids if (i) time permits the solicitation, submission, and evaluation
2532 of sealed bids; (ii) the award will be made on the basis of price and other price-related factors; (iii) it is
2533 not necessary to conduct discussions with the responding sources about their bids; and (iv) there is a
2534 reasonable expectation of receiving more than one sealed bid. If the Authority does not solicit sealed
2535 bids, it shall request competitive proposals.

2536 2. The Authority may use procedures other than competitive procedures if:

2537 a. the goods, services, or construction needed by the Authority are available from only one
2538 responsible source and no other type of property, services, or construction will satisfy the needs of the
2539 Authority;

2540 b. the Authority's need for the property, services, or construction is of such unusual and compelling
2541 urgency that the Authority would be seriously injured unless the Authority limits the number of sources
2542 from which it solicits bids or proposals; or

2543 c. the goods or services needed can be obtained through federal or other governmental sources at
2544 reasonable prices.

2545 3. For the purpose of applying subdivision 2 a of this article:

2546 a. in the case of a contract for goods, services, or construction to be awarded on the basis of
2547 acceptance of an unsolicited proposal, the goods, services, or construction shall be deemed to be
2548 available from only one responsible source if the source has submitted an unsolicited proposal that
2549 demonstrates a concept:

2550 (1) that is unique and innovative or, in the case of a service, for which the source demonstrates a
2551 unique capability to provide the service; and

2552 (2) the substance of which is not otherwise available to the Authority and does not resemble the
2553 substance of a pending competitive procurement.

2554 b. in the case of a follow-on contract for the continued development or production of a major system
2555 or highly specialized equipment or the continued provision of highly specialized services, the goods,
2556 services, or construction may be deemed to be available from only the original source and may be
2557 procured through procedures other than competitive procedures if it is likely that award to a source other
2558 than the original source would result in:

2559 (1) substantial duplication of cost to the Authority that is not expected to be recovered through
2560 competition; or

2561 (2) unacceptable delays in fulfilling the Authority's needs.

2562 4. If the Authority uses procedures other than competitive procedures to procure property, services,
2563 or construction under subdivision 2 b of this article, the Authority shall request offers from as many
2564 potential sources as is practicable under the circumstances.

2565 5. a. To promote efficiency and economy in contracting, the Authority may use simplified acquisition
2566 procedures for purchases of property, services and construction.

2567 b. For the purposes of this section, simplified acquisition procedures may be used for purchases for
2568 an amount that does not exceed the simplified acquisition threshold adopted by the federal government.

2569 c. A proposed purchase or contract for an amount above the simplified acquisition threshold may not
2570 be divided into several purchases or contracts for lesser amounts in order to use the procedures under
2571 subdivision a of this section.

2572 d. In using simplified acquisition procedures, the Authority shall promote competition to the
2573 maximum extent practicable.

2574 6. The Authority shall adopt policies and procedures to implement this article. The policies and
2575 procedures shall provide for publication of notice of procurements and other actions designed to secure
2576 competition where competitive procedures are used.

2577 7. The Authority in its sole discretion may reject any and all bids or proposals received in response
2578 to a solicitation.

2579 8. In structuring all procurements under this article, the Authority shall comply with federal laws and
2580 regulations, and other federal requirements set forth in grant agreements or elsewhere, as they may be

amended from time to time, governing minority business enterprise participation.

Article VI.

Revenues.

The Authority is hereby authorized to fix, revise, charge and collect tolls for the use of the project, and to contract with any person, partnership, association or corporation desiring the use of the project, and to fix the terms, conditions, rents and rates of charges for such use.

Such tolls shall be so fixed and adjusted in respect of the aggregate of tolls from the project as to provide a fund sufficient in combination with other revenues, if any, to pay (i) the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating such project and (ii) the principal of and the interest on the bonds as the same shall become due and payable, and to create reserves for such purposes. Such tolls shall be not subject to supervision or regulation by any other authority, board, bureau, or agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia or the State of Maryland or the District of Columbia. The tolls and all other revenues derived from the project in connection with which the bonds of any issue shall have been issued, except such part thereof as may be necessary to pay such cost of maintenance, repair, and operation and to provide such reserves therefor as may be provided for in the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds or in the trust indenture securing the same, shall be set aside at such regular intervals as may be provided in such resolution or such trust indenture in a sinking fund which is hereby pledged to, and charged with, the payment of the principal of and the interest on such bonds as the same shall become due, and, upon the approval of the Governors of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the State of Maryland, and the Mayor of the District of Columbia, the redemption price or the purchase price of bonds retired by call or purchase as therein provided. Such pledge shall be valid and binding from the time when the pledge is made; the tolls or other revenues or other moneys so pledged and thereafter received by the Authority shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of any such pledge shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise against the Authority, irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. Neither the resolution nor any trust indenture by which a pledge is created need be filed or recorded except in the records of the Authority. The use and disposition of moneys to the credit of such sinking fund shall be subject to the provisions of the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds or of such trust indenture. Except as may otherwise be provided in such resolution or such trust indenture, such sinking fund shall be a fund for all such bonds without distinction or priority of one over another.

Tolls shall not be set at rates such that toll revenues generated by the project exceed those necessary to meet requirements under any applicable trust indenture for the project.

Article VII.

Revenue Bonds.

The Authority is hereby authorized to provide for the issuance, at one time or from time to time, of revenue bonds of the Authority for the purpose of paying all or any part of the cost of the project or of any portion or portions thereof. The principal of and the interest of such bonds shall be payable solely from the funds provided in this compact for such payment. Any bonds of the Authority issued pursuant to this article shall not constitute a debt of the Commonwealth, or any political subdivision thereof other than the Authority, and shall so state on their face. Neither the members of the Authority nor any person executing such bonds shall be liable personally thereon by reason of the issuance thereof. The bonds of each issue shall be dated, shall bear interest at a rate or rates or in a manner, shall mature at such time or times not exceeding ~~forty~~ 40 years from their date or dates, as may be determined by the Authority, and may be made redeemable before maturity, at the option of the Authority, at such price or prices and under such terms and conditions as may be fixed by the Authority prior to the issuance of the bonds. The Authority shall determine the form and the manner of execution of the bonds and shall fix the denomination or denominations of the bonds and the place or places of payment of principal and interest, which may be at any bank or trust company within or without the Commonwealth. In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on any bonds or coupons shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such bonds, such signature or such facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if he had remained in office until such delivery. The bonds may be issued in such form as the Authority may determine. The Authority may sell such bonds in such manner, either at public or private sale, and for such price as it may determine will best effect the purposes of this compact.

The proceeds of the bonds of each issue shall be used solely for the payment of the cost of the project, and shall be disbursed in such manner and under such restrictions, if any, as the Authority may provide in the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds or in the trust indenture securing the same. If the proceeds of the bonds of any issue, by error of estimates or otherwise, shall be less than such cost, additional bonds may in like manner be issued to provide the amount of such deficit, and, unless otherwise provided in the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds or in the trust

indenture securing the same, shall be deemed to be of the same issue and shall be entitled to payment from the same fund without preference or priority of the bonds first issued. If the proceeds of the bonds of any issue shall exceed such cost, the surplus shall be deposited to the credit of the sinking fund for such bonds.

Prior to the preparation of definitive bonds, the Authority may, under like restrictions, issue interim receipts or temporary bonds, with or without coupons, exchangeable for definitive bonds when such bonds shall have been executed and are available for delivery. The Authority may also provide for the replacement of any bonds which shall become mutilated or shall be destroyed or lost. Bonds may be issued under the provisions of this compact without obtaining the consent of any department, division, commission, board, bureau or agency of the compact signatories, and without any other proceedings or the happening of any other conditions or things than those proceedings, conditions or things which are specifically required by this article.

Article VIII.

Bonds Not to Constitute a Debt or Pledge of Taxing Power.

Revenue bonds issued under the provisions of this Act shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or of any signatory government or political subdivision thereof, but such bonds shall be payable solely from the funds provided from tolls and other revenues. The issuance of revenue bonds under the provisions of this Act shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the Authority, or any signatory government or political subdivision thereof, to levy or to pledge any form of taxation whatever. All such revenue bonds shall contain a statement on their face substantially to the foregoing effect.

Article IX.

Bonds Eligible for Investment.

Bonds issued by the Authority under the provisions of this Act are hereby made securities in which all public officers and public bodies of the Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all insurance companies, trust companies, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees and other fiduciaries may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging to them. Such bonds are hereby made securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any Commonwealth or municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or obligations is now or may hereafter be authorized by law.

Article X.

Trust Funds.

All moneys received pursuant to this Act, whether as proceeds from the sale of bonds or as revenues, shall be deemed to be trust funds to be held and applied solely as provided in this Act. The resolution authorizing the bonds of any issue or the trust indenture securing such bonds shall provide that any officer with whom, or any bank or trust company with which, such moneys shall be deposited shall act as trustee of such moneys and shall hold and apply the same for the purposes thereof, subject to such regulations as this Act and such resolution or trust indenture may provide.

Article XI.

Trust Indenture.

In the discretion of the Authority, any bonds issued under the provisions of this Act may be secured by a trust indenture by and between the Authority and a corporate trustee, which may be any trust company or bank having the powers of a trust company within or without the Commonwealth. Such trust indenture or the resolution providing for the issuance of such bonds may pledge or assign the tolls and other revenues to be received, but shall not convey or mortgage the project or any part thereof.

Article XII.

Remedies.

Any holder of bonds issued under the provisions of this Act or any of the coupons appertaining thereto, and the trustee under any trust indenture, except to the extent the rights herein given may be restricted by such trust indenture or the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the State of Maryland, or the District of Columbia or granted hereunder or under such trust indenture or the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds, and may enforce and compel the performance of all duties required by this Act or by such trust indenture or resolution to be performed by the Authority or by any officer thereof, including the fixing, charging and collecting of tolls.

Article XIII.

Tax Exemption.

The exercise of the powers granted by this Act will be in all respects for the benefit of the people of the Commonwealth and for the increase of their commerce and prosperity, and as the operation and maintenance of the project will constitute the performance of essential governmental functions, the

Authority shall not be required to pay any taxes or assessments upon the project or any property acquired or used by the Authority under the provisions of this Act or upon the income therefrom, and the bonds issued under the provisions of this Act, and the income therefrom, shall at all times be free from taxation within the Commonwealth.

Article XIV.
Miscellaneous.

Any action taken by the Authority under the provisions of this Act may be authorized by resolution at any regular or special meeting, and each such resolution shall take effect immediately and need not be published or posted, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Act.

The project when constructed and opened to traffic shall be maintained and kept in good condition and repair by the Authority. The project shall also be policed and operated by such force of police, toll-takers and other operating employees as the Authority may in its discretion employ. The Authority may enter into a contractual agreement with an existing governmental entity in Maryland or Virginia to provide these services. An Authority police officer shall have all the powers granted to a peace officer and a police officer of the State of Maryland. However, an Authority police officer may exercise these powers only on property owned, leased, operated by, or under the control of the Authority, and may not exercise these powers on any other property unless:

1. Engaged in fresh pursuit of a suspected offender;
2. Specially requested or permitted to do so in a political subdivision by its chief executive officer or its chief police officer; or

3. Ordered to do so by the Governor of Virginia or Maryland, or the Mayor of the District of Columbia, as the circumstances may require.

All other police officers of the signatory parties and of each county, city, town or other political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia through which any project, or portion thereof, extends shall have the same powers and jurisdiction within the limits of such projects as they have beyond such limits and shall have access to the project at any time for the purpose of exercising such powers and jurisdiction.

On or before August 31 in each year, the Authority shall make an annual report of its activities for the preceding fiscal year to the Governors of Maryland and Virginia and the Mayor of the District of Columbia. Each such report shall set forth a complete operating and financial statement covering its operations during the year. The Authority shall cause an audit of its books and accounts to be made at least once in each year by certified public accountants and the cost thereof may be treated as a part of the cost of construction or operation of the project. The records, books and accounts of the Authority shall be subject to examination and inspection by duly authorized representatives of the governing bodies of Maryland, the District of Columbia and Virginia, and by any bondholder or bondholders at any reasonable time, provided the business of the Authority is not unduly interrupted or interfered with thereby.

Any member, agent or employee of the Authority who contracts with the Authority or is interested, either directly or indirectly, in any contract with the Authority or in the sale of any property, either real or personal, to the Authority shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and, upon conviction, may be punished by a fine of not more than \$1,000 or by imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.

Any person who uses the project and fails or refuses to pay the toll provided therefor shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and, upon conviction, may be punished by a fine of not more than \$100 or by imprisonment for not more than ~~thirty~~ 30 days, or both.

§ 34-32. Illegal to garnish such exempt wages out of Commonwealth, etc.

No person shall institute or permit to be instituted proceedings in his own name or in the name of any other person or shall assign or transfer, either for or without value, any claim for debt or liability of any kind held by him against a resident of ~~this the~~ Commonwealth who is a laboring person and a householder for the purpose of having payment of the same or any part thereof enforced out of the wages exempted by § 34-29 by proceedings in attachment or garnishment in courts or before ~~justices of the peace or other trial justices~~ magistrates in any other state than ~~this the~~ Commonwealth, or to send out of ~~this the~~ Commonwealth by assignment, transfer or in any other manner whatsoever, either for or without value, any claim or debt against any resident thereof for the purpose or with the intent of depriving such person of the right to have his wages exempt from distress, levy or garnishment according to the provisions of § 34-29. And the person instituting such suit or permitting such suit to be instituted or sending, assigning, or transferring any such claim or debt for the purpose or with the intent aforesaid shall, upon conviction thereof, be fined not less than \$10 nor more than \$100 and shall, in addition thereto, be civilly liable to the person from whom payment of the same, or any part thereof, shall have been enforced by attachment or garnishment or otherwise, elsewhere than in ~~this the~~ Commonwealth, for the full amount, payment whereof shall have been so enforced, together with interest thereon and the costs of the attachment or garnishee proceedings, as well as the costs of such

2765 action.

2766 The amount recovered in such action shall stand on the same footing with the wages of the plaintiff
2767 under § 34-29 and shall be exempt and free from any and all liability of the plaintiff to the defendant in
2768 the way of setoff or otherwise.

2769 The fact that the payment of a claim or debt against any person entitled to the exemption provided
2770 for in § 34-29 has been enforced by legal proceedings in some state other than ~~this~~ *the* Commonwealth
2771 in such manner as to deprive such person to any extent of the benefit of such exemption shall be prima
2772 facie evidence that any resident of ~~this~~ *the* Commonwealth who may at any time have been owner or
2773 holder of the claim or debt has violated this section.

2774 § 43-35. How and when validity of lien, or claim of other person to property, is tried.

2775 Any person may file his petition, at any time before the property is sold or the proceeds of sale are
2776 paid to the plaintiff under the judgment of the ~~trial justice~~ *or* court, disputing the validity of the
2777 plaintiff's lien thereon, or stating a claim thereto, or an interest in or lien on the same, and its nature;
2778 and the ~~trial justice~~ *or* the court, ~~as the case may be~~, shall inquire into such claim, and if it be found
2779 that the petitioner has title to, or a lien on, or any interest in, such property or proceeds of sale, the ~~trial~~
2780 ~~justice~~ *or* court shall make such order as is necessary to protect his rights.

2781 § 43-36. Appeals, how taken and tried.

2782 Any party may appeal from the judgment of the ~~trial justice~~ *general district court*, as in case of
2783 warrants for small claims under Chapter 6 (§ 16.1-76 et seq.) of Title 16.1, and such appeal shall be
2784 heard and determined in like manner, as appeals under such chapter.

2785 § 46.2-728.3. Special license plates displaying the official insect of the Commonwealth; fees.

2786 On receipt of an application, the Commissioner shall issue license plates displaying the official insect
2787 of the Commonwealth as designated by § ~~7.1-40.51-510~~.

2788 § 52-10. Fees and rewards.

2789 No ~~trial justice~~ *or* court, in ~~this~~ *the* Commonwealth, shall in any case, in which a fine is assessed for
2790 the violation of any law of ~~this~~ *the* Commonwealth, or any subdivision thereof, assess, as a part of the
2791 cost of the case any fee for arrest, or as a witness, for the benefit of any police officer of the
2792 Department of State Police; nor shall any such police officer receive any such fee. Any such police
2793 officer who accepts or receives any such fee shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by
2794 a fine of not more than \$100, and in addition the Superintendent may remove him therefor. But such
2795 officers are not prohibited from accepting or receiving rewards.

2796 § 54.1-3401. Definitions.

2797 As used in this chapter, unless the context requires a different meaning:

2798 "Administer" means the direct application of a controlled substance, whether by injection, inhalation,
2799 ingestion or any other means, to the body of a patient or research subject by (i) a practitioner or by his
2800 authorized agent and under his direction or (ii) the patient or research subject at the direction and in the
2801 presence of the practitioner.

2802 "Advertisement" means all representations disseminated in any manner or by any means, other than
2803 by labeling, for the purpose of inducing, or which are likely to induce, directly or indirectly, the
2804 purchase of drugs or devices.

2805 "Agent" means an authorized person who acts on behalf of or at the direction of a manufacturer,
2806 distributor, or dispenser. It does not include a common or contract carrier, public warehouseman, or
2807 employee of the carrier or warehouseman.

2808 "Anabolic steroid" means any drug or hormonal substance, chemically and pharmacologically related
2809 to testosterone, other than estrogens, progestins, and corticosteroids, that promotes muscle growth.

2810 "Animal" means any nonhuman animate being endowed with the power of voluntary action.

2811 "Automated drug dispensing system" means a mechanical or electronic system that performs
2812 operations or activities, other than compounding or administration, relating to pharmacy services,
2813 including the storage, dispensing, or distribution of drugs and the collection, control, and maintenance of
2814 all transaction information, to provide security and accountability for such drugs.

2815 "Board" means the Board of Pharmacy.

2816 "Bulk drug substance" means any substance that is represented for use, and that, when used in the
2817 compounding, manufacturing, processing, or packaging of a drug, becomes an active ingredient or a
2818 finished dosage form of the drug; however, "bulk drug substance" shall not include intermediates that
2819 are used in the synthesis of such substances.

2820 "Change of ownership" of an existing entity permitted, registered or licensed by the Board means (i)
2821 the sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the entity or of any corporation that owns
2822 or controls the entity; (ii) the creation of a partnership by a sole proprietor, the dissolution of a
2823 partnership, or change in partnership composition; (iii) the acquisition or disposal of 50 percent or more
2824 of the outstanding shares of voting stock of a corporation owning the entity or of the parent corporation
2825 of a wholly owned subsidiary owning the entity, except that this shall not apply to any corporation the
2826 voting stock of which is actively traded on any securities exchange or in any over-the-counter market;

(iv) the merger of a corporation owning the entity or of the parent corporation of a wholly-owned subsidiary owning the entity with another business or corporation; or (v) the expiration or forfeiture of a corporation's charter.

"Compounding" means the combining of two or more ingredients to fabricate such ingredients into a single preparation and includes the mixing, assembling, packaging, or labeling of a drug or device (i) by a pharmacist, or within a permitted pharmacy, pursuant to a valid prescription issued for a medicinal or therapeutic purpose in the context of a bona fide practitioner-patient-pharmacist relationship, or in expectation of receiving a valid prescription based on observed prescribing patterns; (ii) by or for a practitioner of medicine, osteopathy, podiatry, dentistry, or veterinary medicine as an incident to his administering or dispensing, if authorized to dispense, a controlled substance in the course of his professional practice; or (iii) for the purpose of, or as incident to, research, teaching, or chemical analysis and not for sale or for dispensing.

"Controlled substance" means a drug, substance or immediate precursor in Schedules I through VI of this chapter. The term shall not include distilled spirits, wine, malt beverages, or tobacco as those terms are defined or used in Title 3.1 or Title 4.1.

"DEA" means the Drug Enforcement Administration, United States Department of Justice, or its successor agency.

"Deliver" or "delivery" means the actual, constructive, or attempted transfer of any item regulated by this chapter, whether or not there exists an agency relationship.

"Device" means instruments, apparatus, and contrivances, including their components, parts and accessories, intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease in man or animals or to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or animals.

"Dialysis care technician" or "dialysis patient care technician" means an individual who is certified by an organization approved by the Board of Health Professions pursuant to Chapter 27.01 (54.1-2729.1 et seq.) of this title and who, under the supervision of a licensed physician, nurse practitioner, physician assistant or a registered nurse, assists in the care of patients undergoing renal dialysis treatments in a Medicare-certified renal dialysis facility.

"Dialysis solution" means either the commercially available, unopened, sterile solutions whose purpose is to be instilled into the peritoneal cavity during the medical procedure known as peritoneal dialysis, or commercially available solutions whose purpose is to be used in the performance of hemodialysis not to include any solutions administered to the patient intravenously.

"Dispense" means to deliver a drug to an ultimate user or research subject by or pursuant to the lawful order of a practitioner, including the prescribing and administering, packaging, labeling or compounding necessary to prepare the substance for that delivery.

"Dispenser" means a practitioner who dispenses.

"Distribute" means to deliver other than by administering or dispensing a controlled substance.

"Distributor" means a person who distributes.

"Drug" means (i) articles or substances recognized in the official United States Pharmacopoeia National Formulary or official Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or any supplement to any of them; (ii) articles or substances intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment or prevention of disease in man or animals; (iii) articles or substances, other than food, intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or animals; or (iv) articles or substances intended for use as a component of any article specified in clause (i), (ii) or (iii). "Drug" does not include devices or their components, parts or accessories.

"Drug product" means a specific drug in dosage form from a known source of manufacture, whether by brand or therapeutically equivalent drug product name.

"Electronic transmission prescription" means any prescription, other than an oral or written prescription or a prescription transmitted by facsimile machine, that is electronically transmitted directly to a pharmacy without interception or intervention from a third party from a practitioner authorized to prescribe or from one pharmacy to another pharmacy.

"Facsimile (FAX) prescription" means a written prescription or order, which is transmitted by an electronic device over telephone lines that sends the exact image to the receiving pharmacy in hard copy form.

"FDA" means the United States Food and Drug Administration.

"Hashish oil" means any oily extract containing one or more cannabinoids, but shall not include any such extract with a tetrahydrocannabinol content of less than 12 percent by weight.

"Immediate precursor" means a substance which the Board of Pharmacy has found to be and by regulation designates as being the principal compound commonly used or produced primarily for use, and which is an immediate chemical intermediary used or likely to be used in the manufacture of a controlled substance, the control of which is necessary to prevent, curtail, or limit manufacture.

"Label" means a display of written, printed or graphic matter upon the immediate container of any

2888 article. A requirement made by or under authority of this chapter that any word, statement or other
2889 information appear on the label shall not be considered to be complied with unless such word, statement
2890 or other information also appears on the outside container or wrapper, if any, of the retail package of
2891 such article, or is easily legible through the outside container or wrapper.

2892 "Labeling" means all labels and other written, printed or graphic matter on an article or any of its
2893 containers or wrappers, or accompanying such article.

2894 "Manufacture" means the production, preparation, propagation, conversion or processing of any item
2895 regulated by this chapter, either directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of natural origin, or
2896 independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a combination of extraction and chemical
2897 synthesis, and includes any packaging or repackaging of the substance or labeling or relabeling of its
2898 container. This term does not include compounding.

2899 "Manufacturer" means every person who manufactures.

2900 "Marijuana" means any part of a plant of the genus *Cannabis* whether growing or not, its seeds or
2901 resin; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of such plant, its seeds,
2902 or its resin. Marijuana shall not include any oily extract containing one or more cannabinoids unless
2903 such extract contains less than 12 percent of tetrahydrocannabinol by weight, nor shall marijuana include
2904 the mature stalks of such plant, fiber produced from such stalk, oil or cake made from the seeds of such
2905 plant, unless such stalks, fiber, oil or cake is combined with other parts of plants of the genus *Cannabis*.

2906 "Medical equipment supplier" means any person, as defined in § ~~4-13.191~~-230, engaged in the
2907 delivery to the ultimate consumer, pursuant to the lawful order of a practitioner, of hypodermic syringes
2908 and needles, medicinal oxygen, Schedule VI controlled devices, those Schedule VI controlled substances
2909 with no medicinal properties which are used for the operation and cleaning of medical equipment and
2910 solutions for peritoneal dialysis.

2911 "Narcotic drug" means any of the following, whether produced directly or indirectly by extraction
2912 from substances of vegetable origin, or independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a
2913 combination of extraction and chemical synthesis: (i) opium, opiates, and any salt, compound, derivative,
2914 or preparation of opium or opiates; (ii) any salt, compound, isomer, derivative, or preparation thereof
2915 which is chemically equivalent or identical with any of the substances referred to in clause (i), but not
2916 including the isoquinoline alkaloids of opium; (iii) opium poppy and poppy straw; (iv) coca leaves and
2917 any salt, compound, derivative, or preparation of coca leaves, and any salt, compound, isomer,
2918 derivative, or preparation thereof which is chemically equivalent or identical with any of these
2919 substances, but not including decocainized coca leaves or extraction of coca leaves which do not contain
2920 cocaine or ecgonine.

2921 "New drug" means: (i) any drug, except a new animal drug or an animal feed bearing or containing
2922 a new animal drug, the composition of which is such that such drug is not generally recognized, among
2923 experts qualified by scientific training and experience to evaluate the safety and effectiveness of drugs,
2924 as safe and effective for use under the conditions prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling,
2925 except that such a drug not so recognized shall not be deemed to be a "new drug" if at any time prior
2926 to the enactment of this chapter it was subject to the Food and Drugs Act of June 30, 1906, as
2927 amended, and if at such time its labeling contained the same representations concerning the conditions
2928 of its use; or (ii) any drug, except a new animal drug or an animal feed bearing or containing a new
2929 animal drug, the composition of which is such that such drug, as a result of investigations to determine
2930 its safety and effectiveness for use under such conditions, has become so recognized, but which has not,
2931 otherwise than in such investigations, been used to a material extent or for a material time under such
2932 conditions.

2933 "Nuclear medicine technologist" means an individual who holds a current certification with the
2934 American Registry of Radiological Technologists or the Nuclear Medicine Technology Certification
2935 Board.

2936 "Official compendium" means the official United States Pharmacopoeia National Formulary, official
2937 Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or any supplement to any of them.

2938 "Official written order" means an order written on a form provided for that purpose by the United
2939 States Drug Enforcement Administration, under any laws of the United States making provision therefor,
2940 if such order forms are authorized and required by federal law, and if no such order form is provided
2941 then on an official form provided for that purpose by the Board of Pharmacy.

2942 "Opiate" means any substance having an addiction-forming or addiction-sustaining liability similar to
2943 morphine or being capable of conversion into a drug having such addiction-forming or
2944 addiction-sustaining liability. It does not include, unless specifically designated as controlled under
2945 Article 4 (§ 54.1-3437 et seq.) of this chapter, the dextrorotatory isomer of
2946 3-methoxy-n-methylmorphinan and its salts (dextromethorphan). It does include its racemic and
2947 levorotatory forms.

2948 "Opium poppy" means the plant of the species *Papaver somniferum* L., except the seeds thereof.

2949 "Original package" means the unbroken container or wrapping in which any drug or medicine is

enclosed together with label and labeling, put up by or for the manufacturer, wholesaler, or distributor for use in the delivery or display of such article.

"Person" means both the plural and singular, as the case demands, and includes an individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental agency, trust, or other institution or entity.

"Pharmacist-in-charge" means the person who, being licensed as a pharmacist, signs the application for a pharmacy permit and assumes full legal responsibility for the operation of the relevant pharmacy in a manner complying with the laws and regulations for the practice of pharmacy and the sale and dispensing of controlled substances; the "pharmacist-in-charge" shall personally supervise the pharmacy and the pharmacy's personnel as required by § 54.1-3432.

"Poppy straw" means all parts, except the seeds, of the opium poppy, after mowing.

"Practitioner" means a physician, dentist, licensed nurse practitioner pursuant to § 54.1-2957.01, licensed physician assistant pursuant to § 54.1-2952.1, pharmacist pursuant to § 54.1-3300, TPA-certified optometrist pursuant to Article 5 (§ 54.1-3222 et seq.) of Chapter 32 of this title, veterinarian, scientific investigator, or other person licensed, registered or otherwise permitted to distribute, dispense, prescribe and administer, or conduct research with respect to, a controlled substance in the course of professional practice or research in ~~this~~ the Commonwealth.

"Prescriber" means a practitioner who is authorized pursuant to §§ 54.1-3303 and 54.1-3408 to issue a prescription.

"Prescription" means an order for drugs or medical supplies, written or signed or transmitted by word of mouth, telephone, telegraph or other means of communication to a pharmacist by a duly licensed physician, dentist, veterinarian or other practitioner, authorized by law to prescribe and administer such drugs or medical supplies.

"Prescription drug" means any drug required by federal law or regulation to be dispensed only pursuant to a prescription, including finished dosage forms and active ingredients subject to § 503 (b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. § 353 (b)).

"Production" or "produce" includes the manufacture, planting, cultivation, growing or harvesting of a controlled substance or marijuana.

"Proprietary medicine" means a completely compounded nonprescription drug in its unbroken, original package which does not contain any controlled substance or marijuana as defined in this chapter and is not in itself poisonous, and which is sold, offered, promoted or advertised directly to the general public by or under the authority of the manufacturer or primary distributor, under a trademark, trade name or other trade symbol privately owned, and the labeling of which conforms to the requirements of this chapter and applicable federal law. However, this definition shall not include a drug which is only advertised or promoted professionally to licensed practitioners, a narcotic or drug containing a narcotic, a drug which may be dispensed only upon prescription or the label of which bears substantially the statement "Warning - may be habit-forming," or a drug intended for injection.

"Radiopharmaceutical" means any drug that exhibits spontaneous disintegration of unstable nuclei with the emission of nuclear particles or photons and includes any non-radioactive reagent kit or radionuclide generator that is intended to be used in the preparation of any such substance, but does not include drugs such as carbon-containing compounds or potassium-containing salts that include trace quantities of naturally occurring radionuclides. The term also includes any biological product that is labeled with a radionuclide or intended solely to be labeled with a radionuclide.

"Sale" includes barter, exchange, or gift, or offer therefor, and each such transaction made by any person, whether as an individual, proprietor, agent, servant or employee.

"Therapeutically equivalent drug products" means drug products that contain the same active ingredients and are identical in strength or concentration, dosage form, and route of administration and that are classified as being therapeutically equivalent by the United States Food and Drug Administration pursuant to the definition of "therapeutically equivalent drug products" set forth in the most recent edition of the Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations, otherwise known as the "Orange Book."

"USP-NF" means the current edition of the United States Pharmacopeia-National Formulary.

"Warehouser" means any person, other than a wholesale distributor, engaged in the business of selling or otherwise distributing prescription drugs or devices to any person who is not the ultimate user or consumer. No person shall be subject to any state or local tax by reason of this definition.

"Wholesale distribution" means distribution of prescription drugs to persons other than consumers or patients, subject to the exceptions set forth in § 54.1-3401.1.

"Wholesale distributor" means any person engaged in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs including, but not limited to, manufacturers; repackers; own-label distributors; private-label distributors; jobbers; brokers; warehouses, including manufacturers' and distributors' warehouses, chain drug warehouses conducting wholesale distributions, and wholesale drug warehouses; independent wholesale drug traders; and retail pharmacies conducting wholesale distributions. No person shall be subject to any

3011 state or local tax as a wholesale merchant by reason of this definition.

3012 The words "drugs" and "devices" as used in Chapter 33 (§ 54.1-3300 et seq.) of this title and in this
 3013 chapter shall not include surgical or dental instruments, physical therapy equipment, X-ray apparatus or
 3014 glasses or lenses for the eyes.

3015 The terms "pharmacist," "pharmacy" and "practice of pharmacy" as used in this chapter shall be
 3016 defined as provided in Chapter 33 of this title unless the context requires a different meaning.

3017 § 55-161. How and when made.

3018 Whenever any ~~trial justice~~ or judge is of the opinion that any debtor desires honestly to pay his just
 3019 debts and can do so with the cooperation of his creditors, and such debtor is willing to assign his salary,
 3020 wages or income to a trustee for the benefit of his creditors, subject to the supervision and orders of the
 3021 court, the ~~trial justice~~ or judge may, on the written assignment, under oath, of the salary, wages or
 3022 income of such debtor, setting forth the names of his creditors and the amount due each one, and upon
 3023 the filing of the same with the court, together with the written consent of a majority of his creditors in
 3024 number and in amount, appoint some responsible person, ~~firm or corporation~~ willing to accept such
 3025 appointment as trustee to receive the salary, wages or income of such debtor and pay off the obligations
 3026 due by him as hereinafter provided. When the debtor is employed on a salary or for wages the written
 3027 consent of his employer shall be necessary.

3028 § 55-531. Definitions.

3029 As used in this chapter, the following words shall have the following meanings:

3030 "Disposition of assets" means any action undertaken by a nonprofit entity to dispose of control of all
 3031 or substantially all of its assets pursuant to an agreement of sale, transfer, lease, exchange, option, joint
 3032 venture, or partnership, or to convert to a for-profit entity or to otherwise restructure the nonprofit entity
 3033 or its assets resulting in a change in control or governance of the entity or assets.

3034 "Nonprofit entity" means (a) a foreign or domestic nonstock corporation licensed and subject to
 3035 regulation under Chapter 42 (§ 38.2-4200 et seq.) of Title 38.2 or (b) a person, ~~as defined in § 1-13.19,~~
 3036 that is exempt from taxation under 26 U.S.C. § 501 (c) (3) or (4) and is, or owns, one of the following:
 3037 (i) a hospital licensed under Chapter 5 (§ 32.1-123 et seq.) of Title 32.1 or Chapter 8 (§ 37.1-179 et
 3038 seq.) of Title 37.1; (ii) a health maintenance organization licensed under Chapter 43 (§ 38.2-4300 et
 3039 seq.) of Title 38.2; (iii) a nursing home, including a facility known by varying nomenclature or
 3040 designation such as convalescent home, skilled nursing facility or skilled care facility, intermediate care
 3041 facility, extended care facility, a certified nursing facility or nursing care facility, licensed under the
 3042 provisions of Article 1 (§ 32.1-123 et seq.) of Chapter 5 of Title 32.1; or (iv) a facility for the provision
 3043 of continuing care registered with the State Corporation Commission pursuant to Chapter 49
 3044 (§ 38.2-4900 et seq.) of Title 38.2.

3045 § 56-123. Adjustment of claims against carriers.

3046 Every claim against a common carrier doing business in ~~this the~~ Commonwealth for loss or damage
 3047 to property while in its possession, and every claim for storage, demurrage and car service against such
 3048 carrier under the rules and regulations prescribed by the State Corporation Commission, shall be adjusted
 3049 and paid within ~~sixty~~ 60 days in case of shipments wholly within ~~this the~~ Commonwealth, and within
 3050 ~~ninety~~ 90 days in case of interstate shipment, and within ~~sixty~~ 60 days in case of claims for demurrage
 3051 or car service after the filing of such claim with the agent of such carrier at the point of destination of
 3052 such shipment or with the claims department of such common carrier. No such claims shall be filed
 3053 until after the arrival of shipment or some part thereof at the point of destination or until after the lapse
 3054 of a reasonable time for the arrival thereof, when such claim is for loss or damage to freight. In every
 3055 case such carrier shall be liable for the amount of such loss or damage to freight, or such penalty as is
 3056 prescribed for failure to comply with the rules and regulations of the Commission, relating to storage,
 3057 demurrage, and car service, together with interest thereon from the date of the filing of the claim
 3058 therefor, until the payment thereof. Failure to adjust and pay such claim within the periods herein
 3059 respectively prescribed shall subject such common carrier so failing to a penalty of ~~twenty-five dollars~~
 3060 \$25 for each and every such failure, to be recovered by such claimant so aggrieved in the same action
 3061 or proceedings in any court ~~or before any trial justice~~ having jurisdiction in ~~this the~~ Commonwealth;
 3062 provided, that unless such claimant recover in such action the full amount claimed by him no penalty
 3063 shall be recovered, but only the actual amount of the loss or damage to freight, or amount due for
 3064 storage, demurrage or car service, with interest as aforesaid; and, provided further, that if in such action
 3065 or proceedings such claim shall be found to be fraudulent the claimant shall pay to the carrier a penalty
 3066 of ~~twenty-five dollars~~ \$25, to be recovered along with the costs. If after such periods above prescribed,
 3067 the carrier shall voluntarily pay the full amount so claimed, then such penalty alone may be recovered
 3068 as aforesaid by the claimant.

3069 § 56-124. Procedure in action on such claims.

3070 In any action which may be instituted pursuant to § 56-123 before a ~~trial justice~~ general district court
 3071 for an amount not exceeding \$300, either party at or before the return day of the warrant may, in lieu of
 3072 or in addition to giving evidence at the hearing, file an affidavit relating to the subject matter and in

such case the other party to such action shall have a right to a continuance for a reasonable time; provided, that any party to such action may give reasonable notice to the party filing such affidavit and take the deposition of the affiant, at such time and place as the court may prescribe, the taking of such deposition to be governed by the rules of law in force regarding the cross-examination of witnesses. Such affidavits and depositions shall be read with the same force and effect as if taken in the form of a deposition after due notice to the other party. In the event of appeal of any such action such affidavits and depositions shall be read in the appellate court with the same force and effect as before the ~~trial~~ *justicegeneral district court*.

§ 56-265.10. Definitions.

(a) "Water system" as used herein means any privately owned connected system of mains, pipes, conduits, pumping stations, reservoirs and related facilities furnishing water to ~~forty~~ 50 or more subscribers for compensation when the person who furnishes the service is not subject to regulation by the Commission as a public utility under Chapter 10 (§ 56-232 et seq.) of Title 56.

(b) "Sewerage system" means any privately owned system of pipelines or conduits, pumping stations, force mains, sewage treatment plants, and all other constructions, devices, and appliances appurtenant thereto, used for conducting or treating sewage as that term is defined in Chapter 3.1 (§ 62.1-44.2 et seq.) of Title 62.1, which furnishes service for compensation to ~~forty~~ 50 or more subscribers, which is not subject to regulation by the Commission as a public utility, and for which a certificate has not been issued or applied for in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 3.1 of Title 62.1.

(c) "Commission" means the State Corporation Commission.

(d) "Person" means person as that term is defined in § ~~1-13.19~~ 1-230.

§ 56-435. Appeal from ~~trial justicegeneral district court~~ to circuit court in cattle-guard cases.

In all suits brought before a ~~trial justice~~ *the general district court* against railroad companies to recover penalties for failure to construct cattle guards as required by law, either party shall have the right of appeal to the circuit court of the county where such suit is brought, from the judgment of the ~~trial justicegeneral district court~~, without regard to the amount in controversy.

§ 58.1-3732.4. Limitation on gross receipts; staffing firms.

A. Gross receipts for license tax purposes under this chapter shall not include employee benefits paid by a staffing firm to, or for the benefit of, any contract employee for the period of time that the contract employee is actually employed for the use of the client company pursuant to the terms of a PEO services contract or temporary help services contract. The taxable gross receipts of a staffing firm shall include any administrative fees received by such firm from a client company, whether on a fee-for-service basis or as a percentage of total receipts from the client company.

B. For the purpose of this section:

"Client company" means a person, ~~as defined in § 1-13.19~~, that enters into a contract with a staffing firm by which the staffing firm, for a fee, provides PEO services or temporary help services.

"Contract employee" means an employee performing services under a PEO services contract or temporary help services contract.

"Employee benefits" means wages, salaries, payroll taxes, payroll deductions, workers' compensation costs, benefits, and similar expenses.

"PEO services" or "professional employer organization services" means an arrangement whereby a staffing firm assumes employer responsibility for payroll, benefits, and other human resources functions with respect to employees of a client company with no restrictions or limitations on the duration of employment.

"PEO services contract" means a contract pursuant to which a staffing firm provides PEO services for a client company.

"Staffing firm" means a person, ~~as defined in § 1-13.19~~, that provides PEO services or temporary help services.

"Temporary help services" means an arrangement whereby a staffing firm temporarily assigns employees to support or supplement a client company's workforce.

"Temporary help services contract" means a contract pursuant to which a staffing firm provides temporary help services for a client company.

§ 59.1-21.10. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless the context requires otherwise:

"Dealer" means any person who purchases motor fuel for sale to the general public for ultimate consumption. "Dealer" shall not mean any person, including any affiliate of such person, who (i) purchases motor fuel for sale, consignment, or distribution to another; (ii) receives motor fuel on consignment for consignment or distribution to his own motor fuel accounts or to accounts of his supplier; or (iii) who is an employee of, or merely serves as a common carrier providing transportation service, for such person.

3134 "Designated family member" means the adult spouse, adult child or stepchild, or adult brother or
3135 sister of the dealer who is designated in the franchise agreement as the successor to the dealer's interest
3136 under the agreement and who shall become the dealer upon the completion of the succession.

3137 "Franchise" or "franchise agreement" means any agreement, express or implied, between a refiner and
3138 a dealer under which a refiner authorizes or permits a dealer to use, in connection with the sale,
3139 consignment, or distribution of motor fuel, a trademark which is owned or controlled by such refiner.
3140 "Franchise" or "franchise agreement" shall also mean any agreement, express or implied, under which a
3141 dealer is granted the right to occupy leased marketing premises, which premises are to be employed in
3142 connection with the sale, consignment, or distribution of motor fuel under a trademark which is owned
3143 or controlled by such refiner.

3144 "Franchise fee" means any fee or charge that a dealer is required to pay or agrees to pay for the
3145 right to enter into a franchise agreement or to become a dealer at the premises to which the franchise
3146 agreement relates. The term "franchise fee" shall not include reasonable actual costs and expenses
3147 incurred by the refiner in effecting the assignment, transfer, or sale.

3148 "Franchisor" means a refiner who authorizes or permits, under a franchise, a dealer to use a
3149 trademark in connection with the sale, consignment, or distribution of motor fuel.

3150 "Newly remodeled facility" means a retail outlet, marketing premises, or leased marketing premises
3151 which, within an 18-month period, has been rebuilt, renovated, or reconstructed at a cost of (i) for
3152 facilities remodeled before January 1, 2004, a minimum of \$560,000; or (ii) for facilities remodeled on
3153 or after January 1, 2004, a minimum of \$560,000 plus an amount reflecting the annual rate of inflation,
3154 such amount to be calculated on January 1 of each year by the Commissioner of the Department of
3155 Agriculture and Consumer Services by referring to the Consumer Price Index published by the United
3156 States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

3157 "Operation of a retail outlet" means the ownership or option to buy a properly zoned parcel of
3158 property for which a permit to build a retail outlet has been granted.

3159 ~~"Person" means person as defined in § 1-13.19.~~

3160 "Petroleum products" or "motor fuel" means gasoline and diesel fuel of a type distributed for use as
3161 a fuel in self-propelled vehicles designed primarily for use on public streets, roads, and highways.

3162 "Profit" means the net gain, for income tax purposes, realized by the dealer upon the assignment,
3163 transfer, or sale of the franchise agreement.

3164 "Refiner" means any person engaged in the refining of crude oil to produce motor fuel and includes
3165 any affiliate of such person.

3166 "Retail" means the sale of petroleum products for purposes other than resale.

3167 "Retail outlet," "marketing premises," or "leased marketing premises" means the premises at which
3168 petroleum products are sold to the general public.

3169 "Trial franchise" means the same as provided in the Petroleum Marketing Practices Act (15 U.S.C.
3170 § 2803 et seq.).

3171 § 59.1-443.1. Recording date of birth as condition of accepting checks prohibited.

3172 A. As used in this section:

3173 1. "Check" shall have the same meaning as defined in § 8.3A-104.

3174 2. ~~"Person" shall have the same meaning as defined in § 1-13.19.~~

3175 B. Except as provided in subsection C, no person who accepts checks for the transaction of business
3176 shall, as a condition of accepting the check, record, or request or require a person to record, his or her
3177 date of birth upon the check or otherwise.

3178 C. This section does not require a person to accept checks for the transaction of business. Nothing in
3179 this section shall apply to (i) the collection or use of a date of birth that is unrelated to accepting
3180 payment by check or (ii) a requirement that the person paying by check provide the year of his birth.

3181 § 62.1-44.114. Use of Potomac River; riparian rights.

3182 The Commonwealth and its citizens shall have the right to such use of the Potomac River as may be
3183 necessary to the full enjoyment of their riparian ownership as provided at common law and in ~~§ 7.1-7~~
3184 ~~of the~~ Compact of 1785 with Maryland, and confirmed by the Black-Jenkins Determination of 1877 and
3185 Article VII, § 1 of § 28.1-203, cited as the Potomac River Compact of 1958.

3186 2. That whenever any of the conditions, requirements, provisions or contents of any section or
3187 chapter of Titles 1 and 7.1 or any other title of the Code of Virginia as such titles existed prior to
3188 October 1, 2005, are transferred in the same or modified form to a new section or chapter of Title
3189 1 or any other title of the Code and whenever any such former section or chapter is given a new
3190 number in Title 1 or any other title, all references to any such former section or chapter of Title 1
3191 or other title appearing in this Code shall be construed to apply to the new or renumbered section
3192 or chapter containing such conditions, requirements, provisions, contents or portions thereof.

3193 3. That the regulations of any department or agency affected by the revision of Titles 1 or 7.1 or
3194 such other titles in effect on the effective date of this act shall continue in effect to the extent that
3195 they are not in conflict with this act and shall be deemed to be regulations adopted under this act.

4. That the title revisions of Titles 1 and 7.1 as Chapters 2.1, 3.1, 4, and 5 of Title 1 shall not be construed to require the reappointment of any officer or any member of a board, council, committee or other appointed body referred to in Titles 1 and 7.1 and each such officer and member shall continue to serve for the term for which appointed pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2 and Chapter 3 of Title 1 and Title 7.1.

5. That the provisions of § 30-152 of the Code of Virginia shall apply to the revision of Titles 1 and 7.1 so as to give effect to other laws enacted by the 2005 session of the General Assembly notwithstanding the delay in the effective date of this act.

6. That the repeal of Chapters 2 and 3 of Title 1 and Title 7.1, effective as of October 1, 2005, shall not affect any act or offense done or committed, or any penalty incurred, or any right established, accrued or accruing on or before such date, or any proceeding, prosecution, suit or action pending on that day. Except as otherwise provided in this act, neither the repeal of Chapters 2 and 3 of Title 1 and Title 7.1 nor the enactment of Chapters 2.1, 3.1, 4 and 5 of Title 1 shall apply to offenses committed prior to October 1, 2005, and prosecution for such offenses shall be governed by the prior law, which is continued in effect for that purpose. For the purpose of this enactment, an offense was committed prior to October 1, 2005, if any of the essential elements of the offense occurred prior thereto.

7. That any notice given, recognizance taken, or process or writ issued before October 1, 2005, shall be valid although given, taken or to be returned to a day after such date, in like manner as if Chapters 2.1, 3.1, 4 and 5 of Title 1 had been effective before the same was given, taken or issued.

8. That if any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision or section of Chapters 2.1, 3.1, 4 and 5 of Title 1 shall be adjudged in any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision or section thereof directly involved in the controversy in which the judgment shall have been rendered, and to this end the provisions of Title 1 are declared severable.

9. All actions of any county, city or town or political subdivision of the Commonwealth or any combination thereof identified by population classification under an act of the Assembly enacted prior to July 1, 1960, and of the officers thereof and of the clerks of courts thereof in the operation of their respective offices either on a fee or salary basis for the calendar year of 1961, and until March 30, 1962, are hereby ratified, validated and confirmed.

10. That Chapter 2 (§§ 1-10 through 1-17.2) and Chapter 3 (§§ 1-18 through 1-21) of Title 1, Title 7.1 (§§ 7.1-1 through 7.1-43), and §§ 13.1-1069 and 18.2-5 are repealed.

11. That the provisions of this act shall become effective on October 1, 2005.